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Corporate Profile
(ot ity

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson” or “Hopson
Development” or the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”) since 1998 (Stock code: 00754). Hopson Development is a
major property group that specializes in the development of medium-to-
high-end large-scale residential properties. In terms of land bank, it is one
of the largest property developers in The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on a
nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy and
business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic Zones,
namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai area and Yangtze River Delta, with
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core cities. In
Guangzhou and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”, “Gallopade”
and “Fairview” have been established to cover a range of businesses
including product designs, customer services and facilities; and to
accommodate different community cultures and different operating
models. Each property project is featured with a unique theme to
demonstrate the strength of our corporate branding. Strong brand
recognition at project level enhances the positioning and marketability of
the corporate branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Corporate and Listing Information

A 36 J b E R

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)

CHU Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman)

AU Wai Kin

LIAO Ruo Qing

XIE Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)
BAO Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

LEE Tsung Hei, David
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver (Passed away on 9th April 2015)
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

CHING Yu Lung (Appointed on 1st July 2015)

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

LEE Tsung Hei, David (Chairman)
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver (Passed away on 9th April 2015)
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron

CHING Yu Lung (Appointed on 1st July 2015)

Nomination Committee

CHU Mang Yee

CHU Kut Yung

LEE Tsung Hei, David
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver (Passed away on 9th April 2015)
TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron
CHING Yu Lung

(Chairman)

(Appointed on 1st July 2015)

Company Secretary

MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorized Representatives

AU Wai Kin
XIE Bao Xin

Independent Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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Corporate and Listing Information (continued)

M2 K& B E R )

Legal Advisor EREE

As to Hong Kong Law & B L0

Minter Ellison SrEER BT
Level 25, One Pacific Place a5

88 Queensway ©EE B 88

Hong Kong K EH1E 2518
Principal Bankers FEFRET
Agricultural Bank of China PR R RIRTT

Bank of China PR 7T

Bank of Communications RBIRTT

Bank of East Asia HanfR1T

China CITIC Bank P RT

China Construction Bank R ERTT
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China R T rgiRTT
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) R TR RTT (M)
Standard Chartered Bank EITIRTT

Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong EBROBFERXRIE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

BEETREBHFELBRAT
EBEFRER1835%
A A L4612

AfRER

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office FERER
Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House HE
1 Connaught Place IR

Central R4 E S — 5%

Hong Kong & F1 K B 331 3305-09 F

Representative Offices REPWSE

Guangzhou —  16th Floor, South Tower BEM - EIMNWETHM
Zhujiang Investment Building TROT R B 421 5%
421 Zhujiang East Road RIKEKRE
Zhujiang New City, Guangzhou m 1618

Beijing —  Hopson Office Building = —  JdRmHER
23A West Dawang Road 78K 2B B8 23 5% FF
Chaoyang District, Beijing BHEERERBRAE

Shanghai —  19th Floor, Block 3 L& - LkemEitE
No. 695 Lingshi Road A 6955
Zhabei District, Shanghai 39E1E19

Tianjin —  No. 1 Zhujiang South Road P - XREMELRE
Jingjin New Town R FTI
Baodi District, Tianjin PROL B8 1 5%
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SHAREHOLDERS’ CALENDAR

Register of Shareholders

Closure of Register
For Annual General Meeting:
14th June 2016 to 17th June 2016 (both days inclusive)

For Final Dividend:
23rd June 2016 to 27th June 2016 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
17th June 2016

Dividend (Per Share)

Proposed final dividend HK10 cents
Payable on 8th July 2016

LISTING INFORMATION

Shares Listing

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code
00754

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 11.75% Guaranteed Senior Notes
were redeemed on 5th May 2015

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing

The Company’s 9.875% Guaranteed Senior Notes
were redeemed on 17th March 2016

Corporate and Listing Information (continued)
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Corporate Structure
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Corporate Structure (continued)
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Financial Highlights
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2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—E——%F —T—=F —T—=F —T—mF —Z-RHF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHT FEx
Revenues Wz 8,007,537 9,926,605 15,648,207 17,044,862 12,845,184
Profit before taxation B B 1 35 2,197,184 4,248,851 6,309,673 4,995,193 2,839,305
Taxation 725 (788,773) (1,360,748) (2,475,187) (2,067,257) (1,257,267)
Profit for the year EE A 1,408,411 2,888,103 3,834,486 2,927,936 1,582,038
Non-controlling interests FEIEHIE R S 21,620 94,687 17,587 19,365 63,904
Profit attributable to equity holders AR B A JE A5 4 T 1,430,031 2,982,790 3,852,073 2,947,301 1,645,942
Profit attributable to equity holders A& HEE 5B A FEAR % A
(excluding the effect of revaluation (REtEFHTE
and other non-recurring income) PELES PN 1,349,484 1,130,610 2,059,948 2,026,973 700,738
Earnings per share BREF
— Basic —HK HK82 cents 781l HK172 cents 7811l HK210 cents 7811l HK131 cents 7811l HK74 cents 3l
— Diluted — H5H HK82 cents i1l HK172 cents i1l HK210 cents j#&flll  HK131 cents i#1ll HK74 cents 5l
Dividends per share TR S — - — — HK10 cents 54l
Net assets value per share BRAEEZRE HK$25.38 7T HK$25.92 7T HK$24.56 #7T HK$25.84 87T HK$25.30 & 7T
Revenues Profit attributable to equity holders
Wz IR RERSE AL R R
(HK$’000) (HK$’000)
FET FERT
17,000,000 — 4,000,000 R
16,000,000 3,500,000
14,000,000 3.000.000 .
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2,000,000 500,000
0 —— 0 —
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(RETEMEFEREMFEL
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LA PN
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(HK cents) (HK$)
Bl BT
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Chairman’s Statement
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Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Chairman
Rk » B

In 2015, the Group followed the guidance of the State’s policies while adjusting itself
to the market trends, so as to strive to achieve stable performance amid the
economic situation of the New Norm development of the real estate industry and the
deepened market reform. Looking ahead to 2016, the Group will continue to make
progress amidst stability and promote corporate development under the new macro-
economic situation. With an ultimate goal of maximizing shareholders’ benefit, the
Group will fully leverage on the advantages of its solid operation strategies and
diversified financial channels, as well as continue to build on its core assets to realize
its strategic transformation of business diversification.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
BV E At )

MARKET ENVIRONMENT AND OPERATION
ANALYSIS

National Market
1. Overview of the Economic Environment

In 2015, China’s economy continued to maintain mid- to high-speed
growth under the New Norm. The gross domestic product (the “GDP”)
for the year was RMB67,670.8 billion, which grew 6.9% as compared to
that of last year. Disposable income per capita of urban households was
RMB31,195, representing a growth of 8.2% from the same period last
year.

2016 marks the launch of the “13th Five-Year Plan” of China’s economy.
On one hand, China’'s economy is confronted with problems and
challenges such as structural overcapacity; while on the other hand, the
current economic fundamentals are positive, with high potential, strong
resilience and great room to recover. The Central Economic Work
Conference has pointed out that “understanding the New Norm,
adjusting to the New Norm and leading the New Norm will remain the
overarching principles that guide China’s economic development at the
present moment and the days to come”. On this basis and under the
requirement of leading the New Norm of economic development,
although China’s economic growth has slowed down, more emphasis
was placed on improvements in development quality and efficiency when
pursuing development. Through promoting “Supply Side Reforms”,
China’s economy could continue to keep the goal of mid- to high-speed
growth with an average annual growth of over 6.5%.

2. Overview of Real Estate Market

In 2015, the real estate policy adhered to the general tone of “Promoting
Consumption and Trimming Inventory”. Loose policies on both supply
and demand sides were frequently introduced to facilitate steady
recovery of the market volume and price while the environment of
industry has improved significantly. From the view of the demand side,
measures introduced by the central government, such as repeatedly
lowering deposit reserve ratio, interest rate and down payment, and
reducing tax expenses, have lowered home buying cost and promoted
the demand for entering the market. Local policies were adjusted flexibly;
a series of measures, such as reduction of tax expenses, financial
subsidies, cancellation of purchase and non-resident limitations, were
adopted to stimulate consumption. From the view of the supply side,
scale was controlled and structure was adjusted in land supply, hence
improving the market environment.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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In general, the real estate sector made steady progress during the year.
The investment in real estate development across the country amounted
to RMB9,597.9 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.0%; the
paid-in investment for the year of real estate developers was
RMB12,520.3 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 2.6%; the
area of commodity housing sold across the country reached 1,284.95
million sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 6.5%; the sales of
commaodity housing across the country amounted to RMB8,728.1 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 14.4%; the area of land
purchased by real estate developers was 228.11 million sqg.m.,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 31.7%.

After the real estate industry has entered into the New Norm, the
government emphasized more on the important roles of real estate
industry in promoting consumption and boosting investments in the face
of the current decelerating economic growth rate and relatively huge
inventory pressure. Policies have been focused on exploring consumption
potential of real estate and stimulating demand to enter the market with a
view to further recovering and boosting confidence in investment. With
the support of a series of policies, huge market demand was unleashed
and the overall recovery trend of the real estate market was basically
Clear.

With respect to cities of different tier, the policies have relatively obvious
effects on first-tier cities and some of the key second-tier cities. However,
impacts on third-and-fourth-tier cities are relatively limited as indicated by
the continuous huge inventory pressure; some cities lack subsequent
sales momentum and still required the impetus from further policy
loosening.

In 2016, under the background of the macro policy of “Strive for Solving
Excess Capacity and Real Estate Inventory” required by the Central
Economic Work Conference, policies regarding the real estate sector will
remain relatively loose and inventory reduction will be the focal point for
the general recovery of the market. Under active response to the “Supply
Side Reforms”, real estate industry will still be able to maintain steady
development. At the same time, the new situation will also be favourable
for real estate enterprises to actively carry out transformation and
development towards diversification and this will also be a favourable
timing to get well-prepared for future development.

Regional Markets
1. Southern China

For Southern China, the Group positioned Guangzhou as the major value
driver which extended into other regions with rapid economic growth
such as Zhongshan, Huizhou and Foshan. The Group adopted advanced
operating strategies and engaged in land bank and project development
in prime locations of the said regions. In 2015, approximately 32% of the
Group’s results were attributable to Southern China.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
BV E At )

Guangzhou could be called the centre of economy, technology and
culture in Guangdong province or even in the whole Southern China. It is
an international metropolis with well-established industrial foundation. In
2015, Guangzhou’s regional GDP amounted to RMB1,810.041 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 8.4%. Its economy maintained a
steady growth in general and the quality of the region’s operation
efficiency was commendable. Altogether, Guangzhou played a crucial
role in supporting the development of the real estate sector.

In 2015, Guangzhou's economy advanced steadily and positively in
general. The city effectively coped with economic downward pressure
and achieved steady economic growth. Facing the complicated domestic
and foreign environment, Guangzhou city insisted on putting development
as the top priority to achieve balanced growth of consumption,
investments and external demand which in turn jointly promoted steady
economic development. Guangzhou’s robust economic development
has supported the rapid integration of the Pearl River Delta and fortified
the value fusion function of Guangzhou as the central city of the Delta.

2. Northern China

Currently, the Group’s main value generating regions in Northern China,
which influence has extended to key second-and-third-tier cities in
Huanbohai Economic Zone, center on Beijing with Tianjin assuming the
supporting role. In 2015, approximately 26% of the Group's results were
attributable to Northern China.

As the capital of China, not only is Beijing the political, economic and
cultural centre of the country but also a city of great prominence in the
whole Asia and the world. Judging from its development in recent years,
Beijing’s economy has come to influence wider areas with more
penetrating power. Regions such as Hebei, Shanxi and Shandong have
also become more closely coordinated with Beijing in their economic
development. In 2015, Beijing’s economy kept up a rapid pace, with
GDP amounting to RMB2,296.86 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 6.9%; disposable income per capita of urban households
grew 8.9% to RMB52,859 as compared with the same period last year.

As the sea gate of the capital of China, Tianjian is the economic center in
the Huanbohai Area which is to be gradually developed into an
international port city, an economic center in the north as well as an
ecological city. Tianjian was historically the largest city of finance and
trading in Northern China. It boasts the largest sea port in Northern
China, connecting Northern China with the Northwest and Inner Mongolia
and covering a population of more than 100 million. As a result, in the
Group’s outer suburban layout, Tianjin has great prospects. In the future,
along with the development trend of the integration of Beijing-Tianjin-
Hebei area, the value of Tianjin’s real estate market will further increase.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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In 2015, the Group leveraged on the favourable policy opportunity of the
coordinated development of Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei to actively promote
the development of both Beijing and Tianjin and continued to promote its
projects in key second-tier cities such as Dalian, Qinhuangdao and
Taiyuan. As development in these regions starts to take shape, these
projects will contribute to the Group’s income in the future.

3. Eastern China

Centering on Shanghai, the strategic layout of the Group in Eastern China
relied heavily on Ningbo, a major city within the Yangtze River Delta
Economic Rim, and extended to prosperous second-and-third-tier cities
such as Cixi and Kunshan. In 2015, approximately 42% of the Group’s
results were attributable to Eastern China.

For the year of 2015, Shanghai’s economy was progressing steadlily;
GDP of the city reached RMB2,496.499 billion with an increase of 6.9%
over the previous year. The per capita disposable income of urban and
rural permanent residents increased 8.4% and 9.5% respectively over the
previous year. Shanghai has long been an influential world-class city with
stable commodity prices, employment rate, economic growth and market
sales. In 2016, Shanghai will focus on stepping up reform and opening-
up efforts with establishment of Free Trade Agreement (“FTA”) pilot area
as the key initiative and accelerating the establishment of the Technology
Innovation Center with global influence. By virtue of the city’s strong
adaptability and well-coordinated economic versatility, it is predicted that
the Shanghai market will maintain its stable and upward momentum in
the future.

In 2015, the Group placed Shanghai as its strategic center in Eastern
China and surrounding second-and-third-tier key cities as main
supporting points. The Group carried out supply side reforms in cities
such as Taicang, Kunshan and Cixi while bringing down inventory level
by capitalizing on local market demand. Such initiatives have realized the
strategic layout with “One Center Radiating Outward In Every Direction”
for Eastern China.

PROSPECTS OF THE PRC REAL ESTATE
SECTOR

Looking ahead to 2016, there will be a lot of uncertainties in macro-
economy. Through deepened reforms, China’s economy is expected to
maintain steady growth. In general, China’s overall real estate market will
be relatively steady in 2016 while differentiation among different cities will
grow.

It is expected that in 2016, the further loosening of monetary policies and
the central government’s encouragement on inventory reduction will
conduce to a moderate recovery of the real estate market. In the future,
the real estate industry will be subdivided into segments such as
commercial real estate, tourism real estate, retirement real estate and
industrial real estate. Therefore, traditional real estate enterprises must
focus more on achieving diversified development, expanding upstream
and downstream industry chain, closely aligning with capital market and
achieving breakthrough towards the directions of informatization and
megadata so as to lead the industry development trend under the New
Norm.

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
B E At )

—E-0F SEGPREEBRBRNOEN
BREET  BBESHUEMBANERE EE
HHERE RES ARFEH _KUTH
HE BESREBRAELMLE  ELEBEBERK
XearnsEBOBAELER -

3. EREI

AEBEERBHALBRAARE YBEHNR=
AREERITERTER B EE BLUFEK
HEDERRERN - =ZKBMm - —_FT—HF 4
R%BEFKENERRE -

ZE-RAFLBKBETBATE ATWAEE
BEEDAREE24064.991E L L EFEER
6.9%  WEMENBEER AV ZREKAD
B LL FFIER8.4%F9.5%  F/E—BHIAKE 2
TEE FAERBEZENNHREHT Y
B HE LEER THEHEERFET =
TE—RF LEMENEFAEEAEEAR
REZASHHNEFAM MREZEFE2IK
FENNBFAFRL BEEE BT EE
B NRZEEMBAEROYMTES - Bt
RREBMSHESRFETFEANRIEZE

e

—E-AFEEERBREHA LS RERERL
NESEEH - =GB MEASTEXERM I
RAE B BEFHMETHRGEANREE
A AREEENTEFRECEFNEE
FERBHEZRA—@EH O ZEFHE] B
o fs -

TEEBETERRAIR

2T RF REREBEGFERZTHEER
BB AEBRENE  HetDeE T
R-BEBRF —T-—RFhEEHL
I'Z

&
=
2 B-BETRAMTEIIEER[BEK -

=
b
B

BN T - A"EFEERRE-THZE - kT
RBEAHBEEFNABRERT  BHED
SRR MER - RREMETEHAD ERK
BRME REME BEHE EXMES
R - BWEREHELRLAFIMEIES TE
BR - WMRETHERE BEAMETIE
B YHEEBACTMAREET RETTRE K5
BHNHFRETNTRERBS -

SHAREEARAR —E-AFFRH

13



14

Chairman’s Statement (continued)
BV E At )

FUTURE PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP

As the Central Government further loosens the regulatory measures
regarding China’s real estate sector, the sector will be more market-
oriented. In response, the Group will follow the guidance of the State’s
policies while adjusting itself to the market trends, so as to strive to
achieve stable performance amid a new environment characterized by
the New Norm control measures and market reform. The Group will
continue to be optimistic yet prudent and adhere to the ultimate goal of
maximizing shareholders’ benefit. To achieve this, the Group will fully
leverage on the advantages of its solid operation strategies and diversified
financial channels. The Group will also build on its core assets and make
continuous efforts to optimize its management and control system,
establish its brand and promote its strategic transformation of business
diversification.

Optimizing the Monitoring System and
Implementing an Informatizationed Corporate
Governance System

The Group will, in all aspects, promote its operation towards
standardization, systematism, informatization and fine management so as
to facilitate high integration of the real estate market and the capital
market, promote diversified development and realize transformation and
development. Through Informatizationed management, the Group
managed to achieve a well-coordinated work flow among different
regions and projects. With the goal of serving the Group’s coordinated
business needs across different regions and divisions, we seek to
establish a business coordination platform and corporate information
portal based on the Internet and electronic integration.

Scrutinizing the Land Bank and Strengthening
Strategic Advantages

To actively develop our massive land reserve, the Group will continue to
optimize its product structure through development of land reserve while
paying close attention to the land market and actively participating in the
“Urban Renewal and Redevelopment” projects in accordance with our
conditions and market trend to obtain land resources with the best
quality in city centers. The Group will emphasize on coordinating the
relations among the aggregate development quantity, the proportion of
various types of development and the total size of our land bank. The
Group will continue to fully develop its lands in Huanbohai Economic
Zone, Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River Delta with the goal of
strengthening its strategic deployment across the country.
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Extending Business Coverage and Promoting
Diversified Development

The Group will actively explore new business areas in upstream and
downstream real estate industries. Besides continuously pursuing stable
development in residential real estate and commercial real estate, the
Group will strive to expand the source of operating income from various
property management services through establishing industrial real estate,
under which the Group will provide rental service and park integrated
services for enterprises which operate in the industrial parks.

Creating Premium Quality and Establishing Brand
Equity

The Group will adhere to its commitment to offer premium products so
as to provide the most comfortable and highest quality living to home
owners. At the same time, the Group will maintain a solid operation and
focus on improving product quality. By ceaselessly enhancing our service
quality, we hope to obtain a substantial boost to our development as well
as establishing brand assets.

Raising Risk Awareness and Seeking
Opportunities in a Volatile Environment

In 20186, the Group will continue to develop in a prudent manner and lead
the development situation of the real estate industry under the New
Norm. At the same time, the Group will seize the favourable opportunities
brought about by more comprehensive economic reforms and effective
demand and supply of the real estate market to achieve significant
development of the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Group shall persist in employing the spirit of mutualism with integrity
and innovation as its strategic guidelines, act in concert, innovate with
dedication, faithfully provide market and customers with quality products
and services, establish Hopson Development’s living ideology with all-
encompassing facilities, ensure the Group’s healthy and sustainable
development, and achieve the maximization of investors’ interest.

CHU Mang Yee
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2016
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In 2015, China’s economy was in a New Norm stage; in response to the development
trend of China’s property market, the Group stepped up its efforts in developing
residential property projects targeting at rigid demand and improvement demand in
first-and-second-tier cities. While optimizing the product structure of its residential
business, the Group also developed commercial property projects in core areas of
first-tier cities steadily, thereby realizing the diversified business development
strategy implemented by the Group in recent years.

20155  FEIKEBENNEREER SEHERTEFEHEDTSNERBE  MX
TEBERE- ZHATHRFIRSEEIEYXER SEELEEZEXEBNERS
B TRIBRE-GSETROMBNERMERR  FERELFHETHNES
BRRZTIERBEBIURR -
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

During the past year, with more in-depth adjustment of China’s property
market, the growth rate of investment in real estate development across
the country sank to a new low and market differentiation aggravated:
diverging demand emerged between different cities, under which prices
of land transactions in first-and-second-tier cities inflated while inventory
pressure in third-and-fourth-tier cities increased, prompting property
developers to accelerate the pace of transformation. The government
introduced policies to actively cater to the house-purchasing needs of
low consumption group and implemented financial policies and measures
such as reduction of interest rate and down-payment ratio to rejuvenate
the real estate market. On the basis of the existing development of high-
quality residential properties, the Group ratcheted up its development
efforts in increasing the proportion of residential properties targeting at
rigid demand and improvement demand in first-and-second-tier cities.
Meanwhile, the Group also strived to promote the development of large-
scale commercial buildings, office buildings and industrial parks. Through
establishing systems and standards, enhancing informatizationed
construction, increasing the efforts in production and operation
governance and other initiatives, the Group was able to actively promote
its corporate development strategy of refined and standardized corporate
management.

1. RESULTS OVERVIEW OF 2015

2015 major operating results figures:

EIENE & A )

BE—F FEAEHMETSARRLC 28R
WERBERERRATHE  mHI2LME :
ERTmzEFER2REE(N — ZBETL
MR B TR = MRMmEFE DM
R ERMEREEMR - BFRRE®RRK
BEEEHREXT R BRESRBERR
BRBRENEISFREEEDEE SEAE
FEEREEEEMENER L MANEH
FB— —HBETHFERZEEETWENEL -
By FE RECE N EERDEBHE BFE
REXRENER SEGETHERERR
MBEBILER MALEELERTILIE
NEBHEECRBACREECEENLRE
R B BE o

1. —E—0LF¥EHNE

SE-REEEEEEEE:

Unit 2015 2014 Year-on-Year
Results Figures BEEE BN —E-HE CZE—NF 54
Turnover EEIA HK$ million 12,845 17,045 —25%
BEBTT
Gross floor area (“GFA”) FERN®TEEME  sqm. 510,870 1,433,994 -64%
completed during the year ([ E &) 5K
AHEBIREBBRAR T —HAFFR
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
35 RS e (0

2. BUSINESS REVIEW 2. ¥iMOkEE

China’s property market was in the New Norm in 2015, during
which real estate enterprises shifted their focus to stepping up
development efforts in first-tier cities; various types of property
businesses were conducted in a more refined manner. The Group
followed the development trends of the macro-economy and the
property market to actively carry out strategic transformation. The
Group pushed forward sound development of residential properties

—E-RF O PEBHMETSERHTE
B EHECERERRM —BHUT  Z8E
FHEXHETEREAL KSEHIEELE
REMEHMEDSERBY  THETH
MR BRER— —GETHEEH
B W RIHEE—REH R OB AR
HE MERENEBZTOEE -

in first-and-second-tier cities and strenuously promoted the
development of commercial projects in core areas of first-tier cities,
thus expediting the diversified business development of the Group.

(1) Turnover

(1) ERWA

Turnover by geographical locations: REEHE S 2EERA

2015 2014
—E-1F —T-mEF
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Region &= BEBT Lt 45 (%) BEET 51 (%)
Southern China S I 4,146 32 6,703 39
Northern China AL R I 3,259 26 8,430 50
Eastern China WS I 5,440 42 1,912 11
Total A&t 12,845 100 17,045 100

18

During the reporting period, the Group continued to have its base
in the three core economic zones in Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai
and Yangtze River Delta, made in-depth development in core cities
and explored surrounding potential cities. Southern China, Northern
China and Eastern China contributed profits of HK$4,146 million,
HK$3,259 million and HK$5,440 million respectively.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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2. BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(1) Turnover (Continued)

Turnover by business segments:

Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

2. ¥ O Em)

EIENE & A )

(1) EZWA @
MEBDBEH T LEWA

2015 2014
—E-IF —T-mE
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Business Segment Ko BEATT Lt 45 (%) BEBTT Lt 51(9%)
Property development MEZR 11,157 87 15,515 91
Property investment MERE 656 5 462 3
Property management Y EE IR 824 6 816 5
Hotel operations o JE & E 208 2 252 1
Total &zt 12,845 100 17,045 100

During the reporting period, the Group’s strategy to optimize
income structure and balance various sources of income had
In 2015, income from property
development was HK$11,157 million, income from property
management was HK$824 million, income from property
investment and income from hotel operations were HK$656 million

proven to be successful.

and HK$208 million respectively.

Turnover by major projects:

JC °

REHR EEELCKALRE BHESE
WA SR K RS 15 2
FYEBRRBWABINLSTEBET MEE
BIWA B84 EBTTL MERERARE
JEEBIRA D R A6.56188 T % 2.081E H

—E8H —_FT—10

BERHEBE D 2EXEA:

2015 2014

—E-E1F —E—F
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
Region B BEBTT Lt 651 (%) BEBT Lt 151 (%)
Hopson Times Garden A4 FTE— 5k 2,807 22 — —
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera EM& A KL T = 1,334 11 3,171 19
Tianjin Hopson Belvedere Bay REEEERE 774 6 - -
Ningbo Hopson International City 22 i & 4 B B 35 768 6 420 2
Hopson Dreams World & AR 756 6 1,611 9
Hopson Pleasant View Garden AEBRER 572 4 1,469 9
The Town of Hangzhou Bay A UM E BRI 546 4 468 3
Hopson International New City A 4 B BRI 545 4 432 3

Kunshan Hopson International BLA& £BRE

Garden 397 3 — —
Hopson World Garden A At R 384 3 2,100 12
Others Hib 3,962 31 7,374 43
12,845 100 17,045 100

SHAREEARAR —E-AFFRH
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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2. BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(1) Turnover (Continued)

Contracted sales by major projects:

2. ¥ EE @
(1) EEWAum
RIEEBEASZANNE
2015 2014

—E-REF —T-mEF
HK$ million  Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)

Region & BEART Lt 1l (%) BEBTT Lt 51(9%)
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera EM& 4 KL HE = 1,378 11 1,200 18
Nanhai Hopson Belvedere Bay HEAEERE 1,126 9 476 7
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa BEMILBERER 1,013 8 196 3
Hopson Regal Park AEBITS 998 8 386 6
Hopson Xiaogui Bay AHENEE 888 7 44 1
Ningbo Hopson International City 22 & 4 Bl B2 827 7 283 4
Hopson International New City & BB 737 6 428 6
Hopson Times Garden & £ B — R 691 6 260 4
Hopson Asset Seascape AEHNEBEREE 680 6 165 2
Residence

Tianjin Hopson Belvedere Bay RKEEERSE 529 4 115 2
Others Hi 3,412 28 3,192 47

12,279 100 6,745 100
(2) Project Completion Volume 2 IEXIE
Completed area in 2015: TE-RAFATIMEE:

2015 2014
ZE-5F —T-mEF
Area  Ratio (%) Area Ratio (%)
[ Lt 51 (%) [ERE Lt 151(%)

(sq-m.) (sa.m.)
Region thE (7 3K) (FFFK)
Southern China Erago 254,395 50 335,881 24
Northern China ESiATe 57,641 11 863,304 60
Eastern China I [@ 15 198,834 39 234,809 16
Total &&t 510,870 100 1,433,994 100

20
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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(2) Project Completion Volume (continued)

2. ¥R @)

2 IBTIE@m

Property development completed area (projected): YR TEiE(GEET) -

2016 2017 2018 2019 and after

Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area

ZE-AF —E—tF ZE-N\F ZE-AFRU#E

Project Name EHEER T IME&E TIME®E TIEE TIEE

(sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)

(FF7K) (FF72K) (FF72K) (FF7K)
Beiiing Hopson Regal Riviera EREERIFTR = 175,766
Hopson No. 8 Royal Park AETEERESYE 53,371 183,373
Hopson Dreams World & At FA 113,355 42,640
Yuhe Project EAIEE = =
Hopson Regal Park AEABEITR 168,963 —
Hopson Regal Court AEEBRTR — 58,414
Beijing Miyun Project ItmmEEE 12,327 _
Makeyan Project BRIER 309,898 —
Jingjin New Town TR 75,488 233,500
Tianjin Hopson Belvedere Bay RKEEEESRE 69,995 7,880
Tianjin Hopson International Tower KEAHLBBAXE 95,999 —
Tianjin Hopson International Mansion K32 & 4 B A & 144,880 =
Dongli Lake Project HEHIAR - —
Hopson Regal Seashore AETLFE 14,999 -
Taiyuan Hopson International City KIRE A& BB 5 — 80,000
Hopson Seasky Villa A ERE M 38,318 —
Hopson Town A E W 2,742 =
Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan AEHELINER 18,005 —
Hopson International Plaza EEERES = -
Hopson Guangfuhui EEESE — 25,102
Hopson Asset Seascape Residence EEMEEBRDE — 12,964
Shanghai Tea Factory Project FEFRERER = —
Kunshan Hopson International Garden & 1L & 4 Bl i 7E & 50,670 144,284

The Town of Hangzhou Bay

Hopson Sea Block

Hopson Gallopade Park

Hopson Pleasant View Garden
Hopson Huanan New City

Hopson Gallopade Park-South Court
Guangzhou Hopson Regal Riviera
Hopson Regal Villa

Guangzhou Hopson Belvedere Bay
Hopson Plaza

Hopson Xijing Banshan

Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park
Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa

Qianjin Road Project

Hopson TIT International Industrial Park

TIT Project (International Park)
Hopson Yijing Mingyuan
Hopson Yujing Bay

Hopson Regal Bay

Hopson International New City

B E RN S BB

AEMRE
EEBERIER
EEBRERE

A EERI
AHEBEED
BEMAEEHKI®E
AEBHE L
BMeEEERE
AEES
AEESFIL
KIRKEER
& L E
AT IER
EETTREEREXE
TITIEE (BHER)
AEBESER
AERMRE
AEBRE

A E BB

46,126

52,792

20,214

118,402

48,042
25,979

190,749

43,915
46,945
90,557
23,290
263,013
50,728

268,213

30,112
132,078

247,683

438,860

AHEREEERAA

—E-REFR
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

R 35 %8 i ()
2. BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) 2. ¥%EFEm@m
(2) Project Completion Volume (Continued) 2 IERXIEw®@m
Property development completed area (projected): (Continued) MERETIEE(GER) « (&)
2016 2017 2018 2019 and after
Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area Completed Area
—E-AF —E—tF —T-N\F —F-hERNK
Project Name BHEEB EIME&E EIME®E EIME&E EIME®E
(sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.) (sg.m.)
(75 K) (75 K) (FF 75 K) (75 K)
Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park Bk #1 AV E ¥ A8l = — — — 1,383,667
Shidai City Project R IE B — 56,730 85,730 1,328,970
Hopson Xiaogui Bay BENESE 57,979 207,966 25,007 1,607,184
Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court AHEFPILTRL — 51,235 13,583 -
Zhongshan Dongkeng Project FRILELIAR = 51,000 51,000 267,929
Zhongshan Rainbow Project FROLR AT IE B 19,230 — 53,000 373,455
Total A st 1,557,774 2,601,209 2,998,386 20,873,043
(3) Land Bank (3) i
The Group possesses adequate land banks in the first-tier cities, SEEtR L - BENE—GREmES
such as Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou, with excellent quality AEBEAXNAREN THEHE E6
while at lower costs. This is also one of the Group’s core EHBLRAABEERENRLOBFES 2
competitive strengths to sustain persistent corporate growth. The — EETEHERRERAZNERENS
Group balanced the need of long-term and current development ZRBREBEEEFMRAGE T HE
and acquired new lands pursuant to a prudent and orderly —E-RAFTZA=1T—H K&EBEHSE
principle. As at 31st December 2015, the land bank of the Group T 3,008 F IOk BRAMES
was 30.99 million sq.m., which is sufficient for the rapid RRIRRERATT ©

development of the Group in the future.
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2. BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

(3) Land Bank (continued)

Usage and Location

Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
i 35 RS e (0

2. ¥R @)

(8) L it @
AERibE

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)

AHEEER (BB A XK)

Guangzhou Huizhou  Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
&M =M R RE tB iR st
Residential *= 4.64 3.16 3.64 22.90
Shopping arcade BE] 1.09 0.38 0.19 2.06
Office /N 0.71 0.34 0.15 1.45
Car parks FE5 1.36 0.58 0.48 3.57
Hotels BIE 0.22 0.22 0.17
Total st 8.02
Development Status and Location BREMARHE
Saleable Area (million sg.m.)
AHEEEBE(BEFAXK)
Guangzhou Huizhou  Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
&M =M E R K= g R Ly
Completed properties & 5& ik ¥ % 0.52 0.72 0.54 2.96
Properties under BREPYE 1.24 1.46 1.48 5.90
development
Properties to be FERYE 6.26 2.50 2.61 22.13
developed
Total et 8.02
Development Status and Usage BRMRE AR
Saleable Area (million sq.m.)
AMHEEEE (ABFHXK)
Shopping
Residential arcade Office Car parks Hotels Total
FE mE BAZE  FEE BIE e
Completed properties [RREIBRYES 1.29 0.26
Properties under R 4.08 0.39
development
Properties to be developed 153¢E 1% 17.53 0.80
Total Bt 22.90

BHEREEERAT —T-AFFRH 23
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2. BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) 2. EMEEE @
(3) Land Bank (Continued) (3) T ibfEME @
Title Status and Location FrERRRERitE

Saleable Area (million sg.m.)
THEEER(BBYAK)
Guangzhou Huizhou  Beijing Tianjin Shanghai  Ningbo Total
&M =M itx RiE L& B #Et

Land use rights BES b FRE 1.51 2.43
certificates and RiEH TIRAE
construction works AR
planning permits
obtained
Land use rights DS+ E R E 4.93
certificates obtained B REV/SiE R
but without TiRREFTA &
construction
works planning
permits
Construction land ERFER -
use planning FRh AR &
permits obtained FTAIEER
but without land use ~ EX{§t 3
rights certificates ERAFE
Grant of major EFEEHIRE 1.68
approvals and EHH

certificates pending

Total 4Bt 8.02
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT

In 2015, various risks emerged in China’s property market, among
which include housing oversupply in third-and-fourth tier cities
where certain real estate enterprises faced pressure from strained
cash flows; slowdown in income growth of urban residents and
hence diminishing consumption power of potential buyers; and the
generally increasing foreign exchange risk faced by real estate
enterprises due to depreciation of Renminbi against United States
dollars.

During the year, the Group has considered such risks thoroughly
and implemented a series of operational and financial strategies to
manage these risks.

With respect to the problem of housing oversupply in third-and-
fourth tier cities, the Group persisted in only increasing land banks
and launching developments in first-and-second-tier cities, so as to
avoid the risks arising from the collapse of the bubbles in the third-
and-fourth-tier cities’ property markets.

To tackle the problem of slowdown in income growth of urban
residents and hence the reduction of consumption power of
potential buyers, the Group introduced a series of reforms in
product structure since 2013. In specific, the Group increased the
proportion of products targeting at rigid demand and improvement
demand in order to expand its customer base for such products.
Such initiative has extended the Group’s potential customer base
as a whole and therefore minimized the risk posed by diminishing
consumption power of potential buyers.

Furthermore, regarding to the depreciation of Renminbi against
United States dollars, the Group has also redeemed its United
States Dollar denominated Senior Notes due 2016 on 5th May
2015 and redeemed its United States Dollar denominated Senior
Notes due 2018 on 17th March 2016, so as to lower the proportion
of United States dollars debt in its debt portfolio and thus mitigating
the foreign exchange risk faced by the Group when paying
principals and interests in United States dollars.

EIENE & A )
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NOETHE UBR= WOEWHFEME

55 8 K R B8 P 5 SR B L B

REMBTERKRAZERE BEEX
BENTEROEE SFEE-F—=FH
o ETTEZHREREAGNENTE 12
FATRIFERNEEERNIGL  ARA
MBELNEEERNETR BEATEH
ERBENEPE REEEXREBENT
R ) LB P E AR o

o mHARBEHETCRENME &
ERER - E-—AFRAAABELOEE
%ﬁmmmiﬂ%%ﬁ@%%ﬁ'u&
ERZ-ZZE—A"FE=-ZA+TLtHELONEEH
THI2018F B BAE LB B4 - KR
LETEBEHEHAEPHLE  URIEKE S
W%ia‘%%ﬁ$<ﬁ&a’w%ﬁ% + BT T ¥ O BE R
[2 B Sl 72

SHAREEARAF —ZE-AFFRH

25



Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
35 RS e (0

4. PRINCIPAL OPERATING STRATEGIES 4,

26

AND ARRANGEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY IN 2016

(1) Following the development trends under
the New Norm and resolving to promote
corporate strategic transformation

In 2016, the Group will follow the development trends in the
property market under the New Norm. Apart from continuing to
step up its all-out efforts in developing residential properties and
commercial properties in the first-tier cities steadily, the Group will
also continue to build up its business of industrial real estate, so as
to realize the diversified business strategy of the Group.

(2) Optimizing product structure, improving
property quality and service

In 2016, on top of developing existing premium properties, the
Group will also follow the trends of the property market to optimize
its product structure continuously. Besides increasing the
proportion of products targeting at rigid demand and improvement
demand in the first-and-second-tier cities, the Group will also
increase its investment in ancillary facilities of residential properties
and provide various property management services to property
owners with a view to improving their living experience while
generating additional income for the Group.

(3) Raising operating capability and
achieving operating results

The Group will continue to improve its operating results through
optimizing its product structure and accelerating the sales of its
residential products. The Group will also further boost the
contribution from commercial sector to the Group’s income by
raising the occupancy rate of commercial properties. Through
improving the management of upstream and downstream industries
such as hotel and property management services, the Group's
diversified operating revenue will increase, hence improving the
Group's overall operating results steadlily.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

PRINCIPAL OPERATING STRATEGIES
AND ARRANGEMENTS OF THE
COMPANY IN 2016 (Continued)

(4) Maintaining land bank and improving
competitiveness

In view of the accelerated differentiation trend in the property
industry, the Group will carefully select new land banks; priority will
be placed on purchasing residential sites in first-and-second-tier
cities and commercial sites in core areas of first-tier cities. In
response to the central government’s policies, the Group will also
actively participate in the “Urban Renewal and Redevelopment”
projects to increase our land banks, so as to optimize our product
structure continuously.

(5) Enhancing informatizationed construction
and improving management efficiency

The Group attaches great importance to modern management in
its persistent attempt to promote strategic transformation. In order
to enhance management efficiency, we will continue to ramp up
informatizationed construction, introduce Internet platforms and
apply megadata analysis.

AWARDS

In 2015, the Group received various awards as follows:

° “2015 China Human Resources Management Top Ten Best
Practices Prize” granted at “2015 5th Award Ceremony of
China’s Human Resources Management Institute” jointly
organized by the School of Business of Renmin University of
China and Chinese Human Resources Theory and Practice
Association

o “2015 Top 30 China’s Real Estate Best Employer Enterprises”
at “2015 China Real Estate Human Resources Summit
Forum” organized by China Real Estate Association

4,
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)
GRSV SE )

5. AWARDS (Continued)

“2015 Best Investment Value Award for Listed Companies in
Real Estate Sector” by 21st Century Economic Report

“2015 TOP 10 China’s Real Estate Companies in Terms of
Brand Value (Overall Value)” by “2015 Conference on
Research Results of China Real Estate Brand Value and 12th
Summit Forum of the Development of China Real Estate
Brand Value” co-organized by three research institutes,
namely Corporate Research Institute of Development
Research Center under the State Council, Real Estate
Research Institute of Tsinghua University and China Index
Academy

“TOP 50 China’s Real Estate Enterprises in Terms of Brand
Value” which was organized by China Real Estate Business

“2015 12th Top 29 China’s Blue-Chip Rankings of Blue-Chip
Real Estate Enterprises” by The Economic Observer

“2015 Most Popular Shopping Centre for Internet Users —
Hopson Kylin Xintiandi” by www.wangjing.cn

“2015 Golden Landmark Award of Beijing Commercial
Properties — Hopson Kylin Xintiandi” presented at the “China’s
Commercial Properties Industry Summit and 2015 Award
Ceremony of China’s Commercial Properties”

“2015 New Landmark Award of Beijing Commercial
Properties — Chaoyang Hopson Fortune Plaza” presented at
the “China’s Commercial Properties Industry Summit and
2015 Award Ceremony of China’s Commercial Properties”

“2015 Industrial Park with the Highest Development Potential
— Hechuang Industrial Centre” at “2015 5th Summit Forum
of China’s Industrial New Areas” jointly organized by
business.sohu.com, it.sohu.com and www.focus.cn

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Deputy Chairman’s Statement (continued)

IR E S )
6. APPRECIATION 6. B
| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management AANEBEHHEEEMSMUEINNER
and all staff members for their commitments and dedications to the B2 H) R R B o
Group.
CHU Kut Yung B+ E
Deputy Chairman KIER
Hong Kong, 30th March 2016 BE ZE—RF=ZA=1H
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Property Profile
/E 3]y

Beijing 1t X

1. Hopson Regal Riviera

BEWITR

2. Hopson Citta Eterna
AEESEE

3. Hopson International Garden
B EBRIEE

4. Hopson No. 8 Royal Park
B HEEEIR8R

5. Dongfangwenhua Art Center
R J5 SCEEEATH L

6.  Beijing Hopson Desheng Building
IREEBBAE

7. Hopson Kylin Zone
A E B

8.  Hopson Dreams World
AR

9. Yuhe Project
ESTREI=

10. Hopson World Garden
B A RIEE

11.  Hopson Regal Park
BHEBIFR

12, Hopson Regal Court
BERKTER

13. Beijing Miyun Project
EREEIRE

14.  Makeyan Project
SEAEE

Tianjin X)&

15, Jingjin New Town
FORFT

16. Hopson Belvedere Bay
AERRE

17.  Tianjin Hopson International
Tower
REGFEBEAE

18. Tianjin Hopson
International Mansion
REGEEBRRE

19. Dongli Lake Project
REWMIEE

Dalian K&

20. Hopson Regal Seashore
EETILFES

Taiyuan XJ&

21.  Hopson International City
B HEBIRR

Qinhuangdao ££8

22. Hopson Seasky Villa
aERET

Shanghai L&

23. Hopson Town
A A

24. Hopson Golf Mansion
BERRARE

25. Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan
BERILFER

26. Hopson Lantern Villa
& ERAEE

27. Hopson International Garden
& EBRIER

28. Hopson Dongjiao Villa
& ERABRIE

29. Hopson Yuting Garden
A EHER

30. Hopson International Plaza
& EBRES

31. Hopson Fortune Plaza
SEMERES

32. Hopson Guangfuhui
SEEEE

33. Hopson Times Garden
& ERNE—R

34. Hopson Asset Seascape
Residence
SEMERRALE

35. Shanghai Tea Factory Project
R ERIER

Hangzhou #i/M

36. Hopson World Trade Centre
MG LR B

Kunshan £ U

37. Hopson International Garden
& EBRER

Ningbo 2

38. Hopson International City

el

Cixi Z%
39. The Town of Hangzhou Bay
B EUNE BT

Taicang K&

40. Hopson Sea Block
AEHE

Guangzhou EM

41. Hopson Gallopade Park
SERREE

42. Hopson Pleasant View Garden
AhRRRE

43. Hopson Huanan New City
A EFEBIIN

44. Hopson Gallopade Park — South Court
AERREE

45. Hopson Regal Riviera
EERITER

46. Hopson Regal Palace
SBETBREN

47. Hopson Yijing Huayuan
GEBRREN

48. Hopson Zhujiang International Tower
BERIBRBEANE

49. Hopson Yunshan Xijing
BEELESR

50. Hopson Regal Villa
aEm=RILGE

51. Hopson Belvedere Bay
AEERE

52. Hopson Plaza
EEES

53. Hopson Xijing Banshan
aEESFIL

54. Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park
IRHRRIERE

55. Hopson Regal International
B ETHRBR

56. Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa
& A8 LU BB

57. Qianjin Road Project
AIERRIE R

58. Hopson TIT International Industrial Park
BETIT R EHXER

59. TIT Project (International Park)
TTER (R EE)

60. Hopson Yijing Mingyuan
BEBRRE

Huizhou /W

61. Hopson Yujing Bay
AERE

62. Hopson Regal Bay
AEFRE

63. Hopson International New City
B HEBIFR R

64. Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park
I EXRIER

65. Shidai City Project
RrAUIE B

66. Hopson Xiaogui Bay
AR

Zhongshan A 11

67. Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court
BEFILTFRIL

68. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
FILERSTIRE

69. Zhongshan Rainbow Project
LR AT IEE

30
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River Delta economic zone
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Dongsishitiao
RO+ &

Chaowainan Street

n i

58
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1]
&
el
o
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c
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e
N
=
<
2
=
Ritan Park E g
RE AR g
a

Beijing Youyi Shop

KRB E

Jianguomenwaida St.

BEMIRE

'
= .
'
oy

Guangqumenwaida St.

RPN R

Jingsong Road
TP B

Tonghui Riveri& 2 5

3
/ QQ?
4 Q‘\Q@%
. &% &
< AMNE Qéoj\_%
& %

7|
Chaoyang Park
PN
N. Chaoyang Road
AR5 LB
Chaoyang Road
B 5 B

Chaoyang District
5 E

Jianguo Road

%

Guangqu Road &3 &
K

Nan Mofang Road 3 & = 1%

1. Hopson Regal Riviera
BERIHR

2. Hopson Citta Eterna
SHEERFEE

3. Hopson International Garden

B EBRIEE

4. Hopson No. 8 Royal Park

BEB ERE8HR

5. Dongfangwenhua Art Center

R BB D

6. Beijing Hopson Desheng Building

EtRaERBAE

7. Hopson Kylin Zone
a4 B A

8. Hopson Dreams World

BEERN

9. Yuhe Project
F A IE B

10. Hopson World Garden
BEHERIEE

11. Hopson Regal Park
BHEBEIFR

12. Hopson Regal Court

BERRTR

13. Beijing Miyun Project
tRBERE

14. Makeyan Project
BEIEE

Hopson Regal Riviera e 84 51 %=
23A, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
RS R PR L 5K 235 B (HEH 100% # %)

Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 97,143
R TRBTI Construction to be completed
-ZZ-N\F in 2018 175,766
- —E-NEFERNE in 2019 and after 73,077
R—E—ARFE+_=A8 Land bank as at
=t—BztiEE 31st December 2015 345,986
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Hopson Citta Eterna s 84 EE=E
107, Chaoyang North Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
36 R FA R [ 3A 5 4L B8 107 5% (% B 100% 42 74 )

5K
Sqg.m.
2L Construction completed 18,853
R-ZE—RF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—HzLIHFE 31st December 2015 18,853
Hopson International Garden » &4 Bt E
31, Guanggumenwai Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
b R EARS E E R PIIN K31 5% (B 100% # 74)
7oK
Sqg.m.
B 5E L Construction completed 3,025
R_ZE—RFE+_A4 Land bank as at
=t+—RBztMEE 31st December 2015 3,025
Hopson No. 8 Royal Park ® &4 B E K85k
8, Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
b RS E T E K8 (HEA80% )
I 750K
Sqg.m.
25T Construction completed 118,636
LA TR 58 T Construction to be completed
-—ZT—RfF in 2016 53,371
-—_ZT—+tfF in 2017 53,442
-ZZ-)\#F in 2018 183,373
- T -NFRHE in 2019 and after 204,783
R=ZZFE—RF+_A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztiiEE 31st December 2015 613,605

Dongfangwenhua Art Center * 3R 75 X E i /0
West Side of the East Second Ring Road, Dongcheng District, Beijing (97% owned)
R ER R (A 97% &)

5K
Sqg.m.
2wl Construction completed 141,343
R-_ZE—RFE+_A Land bank as at
=+—Hz i E 31st December 2015 141,343

BHERSE

HEERLAR —ZE-—HAFFR

33



l H“ '

1 .
ii. e

Beijing Hopson Desheng Building » 1t XS4 2B KB
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)

3k = P 9 [ 5 PI AN KT 11 5% (HE B 100% i 2)

75K
Sg.m.
BET Construction completed 53,542
R—ZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BzxFEE 31st December 2015 53,542
Hopson Kylin Zone o &4 Bt
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West Street and Wangjing Street,
Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
b RERS [ 22 o B P K A AN 2B R A AR BB R (P 100% #E )
5K
Sqg.m.
Ean Construction completed 47,731
RZZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzITHHE 31st December 2015 47,731

Hopson Dreams World ¢ & 4ttt 24

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1, Majugiao, Majugiao Town,
Liangshui River South, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)

16 7R N & 75 SR KA FE 55 5048 8RS B0 45 1 5% 48 R 500K (#E A 100% # &%)

TR
Sg.m.
Ean Construction completed 93,559
R TERBTET Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 113,355
-ZZT—)\F in 2018 42,640
- ZE-NFRNUE in 2019 and after 15,222
R-_TE—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BZ LB 31st December 2015 264,776
Yuhe Project  EJA1EH
Plot 11, Southern District of Yuhe Wenbao Area, Dongcheng District,
Beijing (100% owned)
36 5 S 4 [ A SR 0 B 9 R 11 SR 3R (M 5 100% #E 2s)
IR
Sqg.m.
RATERBET Construction to be completed
-—F—+tF in 2017 10,000
R—ZZE—hF+=A7 Land bank as at
=E+—HBzLiREE 31st December 2015 10,000
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Hopson World Garden « &4ttt R IEE

500 metres south of the bridge, No. 1 Majugiao, Yizhuang, Tongzhou District,
Beijing (100% owned)

3k 78 M (& 71 T 55 504 1 5% 48 R 500K (#E B 100% #E &)

75K
Sqg.m.
2% T Construction completed 30,704
R-—Z—R&E+_=A Land bank as at
=t+—Hz T HFHE 31st December 2015 30,704

Hopson Regal Park « 848 1% S
Qiaozhuang Village, Yongshun Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing (100% owned)
3b 7 (& oK B SR HE AT (BE 5 100% R %)

K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 13,482
1A T B 58 T Construction to be completed
-—E—RF in 2016 168,963
_—E—NERE in 2019 and after 52,156
RZE—RFE+_HA Land bank as at
= + Bzt 31st December 2015 234,601

Hopson Regal Court ¢ &4 BRF S

Xin Tian Jia Yuan South Zone, No. 21, West Dawang Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing (100% owned)

I RFGEARNEK215ERNFEE R (EH100%E %)

K
Sg.m.
HERIA T B fE 52 T Construction to be completed
- —+tF in 2017 79,607
T \ERAE in 2018 and after 58,414
RZFT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=E+T—HAZLin#E 31st December 2015 138,021
Beijing Miyun Project » dt R E1E B
East of Shanzi Reservoir, Bulaotun Village Miyun County (100% owned)
HEHZAERHAILFRERA (FEH100% 2 5)
K
Sqg.m.
BRI TRERZT Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 12,327
RZE—RFE+A Land bank as at
=t+t—HAZ LG 31st December 2015 12,327
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Makeyan Project  S&If1EH
Plot A (Southern Region) and Plot D (Southern Region) of Scientific Research
Site of National Environmental Protection Industrial Park, Tongzhou District,

Beijing (100% owned)
Jb B M 2 B 5K IR AR E 5 B [ B A St At 3 e [ e Db ¥R i (@
(HEH100% #E =)
TR
Sqg.m.
A TERBTI Construction to be completed
-ZE—REF in 2016 309,898
-—T—tF in 2017 305,407
R—_ZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HBz:iFEE 31st December 2015 615,305
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Tianjin

Kt

15. Jingjin New Town
TORFTH

16. Hopson Belvedere Bay
BEERE

17. Tianjin Hopson International
Tower

FRA £ EEAE / 15

18. Tianjin Hopson International Tiargjin
Mansion K2
XEAEBRBEAS

19. Dongli Lake Project
REHIER

Jingjin New Town ¢ ZUE7H
No. 1, Zhujiang South Road, Zhouliangzhuang Town, Baodi District, Tianjin
(92.3% owned)

REBERKERRFHBEKIMEE 5% (HH2.3% k) Tk
Sg.m.

Eoas Construction completed 397,359

AR IA TN E T Construction to be completed

-—T—RF in 2016 75,488

-— T —+F in 2017 165,444

-ZE—)N\F in 2018 233,500

B NERE in 2019 and after 3,101,814

R=ZT—RAF+=A Land bank as at

=t+t—BztiFEH 31st December 2015 3,973,605
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Hopson Belvedere Bay « &4 &£

Interchange of Donghai Road and No. 1 Shipcanal, Tanggu Development Zone,
Tianjin (90% owned)

REFLFERME - BERERZO(EFORER)

VN
Sg.m.
(S Construction completed 52,063
R TRBTI Construction to be completed
- —XF in 2016 69,995
-—E-N\F in 2018 7,880
R-ZE—ARFE+=-A8 Land bank as at
=t+t—HzIHHE 31st December 2015 129,938

Tianjin Hopson International Tower ® X}Z& £ B K E

Interchange of Fuan Main Street and Xingan Road, Heping District,
Tianjin (at Beian Bridge) (98.9% owned)

RKEMFEELAFRBELERO (Gt LEHHE) (HEH8.9%Ex)

75K
Sqg.m.
75 5 LA TR B RS 52 T Construction to be completed
- T -RF in 2016 96,8190
-ZE—+tF in 2017 101,591
RZE—RFE+=A Land bank as at
= t—HztifFEE 31st December 2015 197,590

Tianjin Hopson International Mansion ® X;EZ& 4B A E

Interchange of Weijin South Road and Shuishang North Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin (100% owned)

R E B R AR R K BB R O (HEH 100% #E 25 )

TR
Sqg.m.
BRUATEMTET Construction to be completed
- —ZE—RF in 2016 144,880
RZZF—RAFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztiFEE 31st December 2015 144,880

Dongli Lake Project  SRE#EHE
Dongli Lake West, Dongli Avenue North, East Chitu of Chitu Town, Donglli District,

Tianjin (100% owned)
RERBERLTBEREINF  REARELL - BB (B 100%#E5m)
Sqg.m.
BRATERETT Construction to be completed
- E-NERNE in 2019 and after 1,130,000
R-ZZE—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztHEE 31st December 2015 1,130,000
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Dalian

R #

20. Hopson Regal Seashore

BHETIIFER

Hopson Regal Seashore « &4 T ILF%E S

808, Yanbei Road, Tieshan Town, Lushunkou District, Dalian (100% owned)

KGR JIE O [ 8 1L $H B8 4 B 808 5% (¥ B 100% 4 2 )

75K
Sqg.m.
Bl Construction completed 41,815
TR A TN 58 T Construction to be completed
-ZT—RF in 2016 14,999
- T —+F in 2017 116,993
-ZE-NFRUNUE in 2019 and after 222,889
R=ZZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—Bz T MFEE 31st December 2015 396,696
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Municipal Government
M BT

Provincial Government

" 4177 |if 4€_peod yuoN noyzbuig

Changfeng Street & &

Shanxi University
=]
Xuefu Street 2 fF W AR

F peoy Uinog aysuelr

BE

Hopson International City ¢ & 4= B B

21. Hopson International City

e

West of Bingzhou Road, East of Tiyu Road and North of Eryingpan Street,
Taiyuan, Shanxi (100% owned)

WA R FFMNBECATE - BB R UASR - — & A7 AL (EB 100% 4 25)

Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 16,387
BRATERETT Construction to be completed
—-—T—+tfF in 2017 201,005
-ZE-N\F in 2018 80,000
-—E-NFRUE in 2019 and after 158,984
R_ZE—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2015 456,376




Qinhuangdao

REE

22. Hopson Seasky Villa
EHERE

Hopson Seasky Villa ¢ &4 X &7

Intersection of Hebei and Liaoning Provinces, Northwestern coast of

Liaodong Bay (51% owned)
BEREAILE BEMER AL (HEA1%ER)

I 75K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 19,467
1SR IA N E T Construction to be completed
- RF in 2016 38,318
-—E-NFRIUE in 2019 and after 1,214,049
R-_ZE—RFE+_A4 Land bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2015 1,271,834

AHEAREEERAR —E-LFFR

aM




Shanghai
Lt

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

35.

Hopson Town

B EW AW

Hopson Golf Mansion
BERRRAAE

Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan
EERILFEERE

Hopson Lantern Villa
SERER

Hopson International Garden
& EERIER

Hopson Dongjiao Villa

BERMHIE

Hopson Yuting Garden
EEHER

Hopson International Plaza

BEBRES

Hopson Fortune Plaza
EENEES

Hopson Guangfuhui
BEEEE

. Hopson Times Garden

& A ATE— 5

. Hopson Asset Seascape Residence

BEMEBEBRERME

Shanghai Tea Factory Project
FERERER

42
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Hopson Town e & 4 3 #B34
518, Anning Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EERNTEZE5185 (A 100%E 25)

750K
Sqg.m.
B SE Construction completed 33,016
BRI TERTL Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 2,742
R=ZF—AF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2015 35,758
Hopson Golf Mansion e 845X A E
1095, Jiangpu Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
£ 15 78 [T E B& 1095 5% (#E 5 100% 1 %)
K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 892
R=ZF—AF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BzLHFEE 31st December 2015 892
Hopson Sheshan Dongziyuan ® 84 RILREKE
1189, Linhu Road, Shanghai Sheshan National Holiday Resort,
Shanghai (100% owned)
EB R B R IR EE R R AROH B 11895% (%5 100% # 25)
750K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 72,782
H%E’\J:A THREEL Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 18,005
R=ZZFT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=+—Hz i E 31st December 2015 90,787
Hopson Lantern Villa e &4 BIEE
199 Nong, Zhenle Road, Zhaoxiang New City, Qingpu District,
Shanghai (100% owned)
B85 H B S T SRS 3K 1995 (B 100% 4 %1 )
7K
Sqg.m.
B5%L Construction completed 4,151
R=ZFE—RFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Bz Lt 31st December 2015 4,151

BHERSE

HEERLAR —ZE-—HAFFR
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Hopson International Garden &4 BIBE1E

1290, Changxing East Road, Dongjing, Songjiang District,
Shanghai (94% owned)

I HRT IR RS £ B B8 1290 5% (¥ 5 94% 1 &)

75K
Sg.m.
BERXT Construction completed 5,858
R=_ZT—h&FE+=_A8 Land bank as at
=t—HBztiEE 31st December 2015 5,858
Hopson Dongjiao Villa ® & 4 R X5 5| 22
7, 699 Nong, Cuibai Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
AR R R0 EE699F 75 (B 100% )
75K
Sqg.m.
B s Construction completed 35,806
R=ZTE—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HB2ZzLiEE 31st December 2015 35,806

Hopson Yuting Garden ¢ 4
99, Xiangju Road, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
FESHEHESESEKM (HH100% E )

Sqg.m.
g%l Construction completed 9,840
R-—ZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HBzxFEE 31st December 2015 9,840
Hopson International Plaza » &4 B[ &5
292 Jiefang, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
g5 m Em 2924 1 (¥ A 100% #E 2 )
TR
Sqg.m.
R TRMBTEI Construction to be completed
-ZE—+t#F in 2017 345,944
RZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztimFEE 31st December 2015 345,944
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Hopson Fortune Plaza ¢ &4 8 E &5
488, Feihong Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai (100% owned)
BB AT A [ AR YT BK 483 5% (#E A 100% 7 25)

AR
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 51,200
R=ZZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLIHFE 31st December 2015 51,200

Hopson Guangfuhui * 84 EEE
Lot Nos. 2-5, Guang Fu Lin, Songjiang District, Shanghai (100% owned)
EBAMIERENE2ZE55 (A 100%# 55)

750K
Sqg.m.
R TERETT Construction to be completed
-ZE—tF in 2017 101,253
- B —N\E in 2018 25,102
RZZE—RFE+_A Land bank as at
=+—BzLtiFEE 31st December 2015 126,355
Hopson Times Garden ¢ &4 A8 —5%
Lot A14-1, Sanlin Ji Town, Sanlin Town, Pudong New District,
Shanghai (100% owned)
EEHR R = B = M SBA14-1 (BB 100% 1 #7)
7K
Sqg.m.
2L Construction completed 42,482
R=ZZT—RFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiRFE 31st December 2015 42,482

Hopson Asset Seascape Residence « 84 EB S A6
Lot E25, New District, Hangzhou Bay Avenue, Longsheng Road, Jinshan,
Shanghai (100% owned)

78 S 1L BE B B AL K 8 R K B E25 (#E 5 100% H 5) $ﬁ/+
Sg.m.

BT Construction completed 77,186

1A T B 58 T Construction to be completed

-—E-N\F in 2018 12,964

- NFRINE in 2019 and after 133,783

R-ZE—FRF+=A8 Land bank as at

=t+—HzLIHMFE 31st December 2015 223,933

BHERSE

HEERLAR —ZE-—HAFFR
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Shanghai Tea Factory Project L2 E 18 B
No. 1300 Jungong Road, Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
g5 E F T ¥ 13005 (HE A 100% ##25)

5 oK
Sg.m.
75 5 LA TR B RS 52 T Construction to be completed
- —E—NERBE in 2019 and after 37,366
R—E—hF+=A Lank bank as at
=t+t—HztHEE 31st December 2015 37,366
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Hangzhou

B

'\
36. Hopson World Trade Centre “ - - .“
A R | ‘
‘ e

Hopson World Trade Centre  #i &4 B & i
No. 327, Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou (95% owned)
N AR K B 1L B 327 5% (HE B 95% )

750K
Sqg.m.
BERXEL Construction completed 87,456
R=ZZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2015 87,456
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Kunshan

B 1l

Hopson International Garden » &4 B EE

37. Hopson International Garden

BERRER

Yingzhou Road and south of Xintang River, Zhoushi Town, Kunshan City

(100% owned)
B2 L) 7 /) i R 30 JB) B R 55 R 5 O] DA RS (M5 100% fE =)
A
Sqg.m.
ExT Construction completed 11,399
ERATEREBET Construction to be completed
-ZT—RX in 2016 50,670
- T —+tF in 2017 18,659
-ZT—)\F in 2018 144,284
- NFRNE in 2019 and after 298,483
R-_ZFE—RF+=-A Land bank as at
=+t— Bz MFEE 31st December 2015 523,495
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Ningbo

B

38. Hopson International City
& BRI

Hopson International City ® & 4= B B 35
No. 1, Zhongbao Road, Zhenhai New City, Ningbo (100% owned)
2 SEE FTR SE B B 1 9% (B 100% R 2)

75 0K
Sqg.m.
BExL Construction completed 147,406
R-ZE—RF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—BztiEE 31st December 2015 147,406

EHEAREEERAR —E-LFFR

49



50

Cixi
Jég Yn/

39. The Town of Hangzhou Bay
BEMME BRI

The Town of Hangzhou Bay e & 4 471 & Bl B2 #7450
Northwestern region of Hangzhou Bay New District, Cixi (100% owned)

FORMME 3 R Pa 4L 28 (BE B 100% & &)

SR
Sqg.m.
BxEL Construction completed 103,530
HERATEBET Construction to be completed
-—ZF— in 2016 46,126
- T in 2017 115,087
-ZZT—)\F in 2018 190,749
-ZE-NFRINE in 2019 and after 2,334,539
R-ZZ—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HBzLiREE 31st December 2015 2,790,031
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Taicang

KB

40. Hopson Sea Block
AEE

Hopson Sea Block ® &4 4§
No. 588, Longjiang Road, Taicang (100% owned)
KB BE /L E% 568855 ( #EH 100% 1 &)

P IA T B i 52 T
- T -hFRNE

Construction to be completed
in 2019 and after

R-—Z—AR&+_=A
=t+t—BZ LB

Land bank as at
31st December 2015

s,
9,
£%
%, >
'&//‘90 LN
SINECg
ot
S %
X
1) QL\‘\Q' o
% ({(\ /(//o
3 S \*os&fga ‘éo kS
N e09
—\A o » @@' ?l—
& % 0 Ring %,
% sout %
° i Roa % S Or
FUQ‘%’ & -1 v@%}
); 7A
I, %,
o
RS
Liujiagang Town
BIRBHE

3
r

2

i
i
]
_
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Guangzhou

iz M

Guangzhou

M

Guangzhou

BN

41.

42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

58.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59,

60.

Hopson Gallopade Park
BEERIEE

Hopson Pleasant View Garden
AHEBRSR

Hopson Huanan New City
& EEETW

Hopson Gallopade Park — South
Court
e R

Hopson Regal Riviera
BERITR

Hopson Regal Palace

BETBRER

Hopson Yijing Huayuan
BEBRER

Hopson Zhujiang International
Tower

BERIEBEAE

Hopson Yunshan Xijing
EEEBILER

Hopson Regal Villa
SEFRILGE

Hopson Belvedere Bay
SEERE

Hopson Plaza

BEES

Hopson Xijing Banshan

R

Zhujiang Technology Innovation
Park
WIRKEEE

Hopson Regal International
EETRER

Hopson Hushan Guaji Villa

B ERILBEER

Qianjin Road Project

ATHE BRI B

Hopson TIT International
Industrial Park

ABETTREREXE

TIT Project (International Park)
TTHEE (RHEER)

Hopson Yijing Mingyuan
BEBRRERE
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Hopson Gallopade Park « &4 B S E
No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)

MR & AR L K8

19055 (¥ %5 95% 1 %)

750K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 2,044
N Construction to be completed
- —FE-NEFEKLIE in 2019 and after 439,529
R=ZZF—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HztEE 31st December 2015 441,573
Hopson Pleasant View Garden ¢ &4 % 5 2 F
No. 1028 Guangzhou Avenue South, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou (94.98% owned)
BN /8 2R [ & N K B 5 1028 5% (5 94.98% 4 71 )
75K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 936
N Construction to be completed
-ZZE—tF in 2017 34,242
- ZE-NFRINE in 2019 and after 30,047
R=_ZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzIHHE 31st December 2015 65,225
Hopson Huanan New City ¢ & 4 £ #
Xingnan Avenue, Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
& 2 BB I B 7 K (M 75 100% 4 25)
K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 73,748
R A TR fE T T Construction to be completed
-ZZT—)\F in 2018 43,915
:%—AE&L‘A 1% in 2019 and after 129,590
R=ZZT—RAF+=A Land bank as at
= Jr B2t 31st December 2015 247,253

Hopson Gallopade Park - South Court e &4 BS540
No. 190, Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)

&M KA & A LK E

19057 (¥ 95% #E 2 )

AR
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 12,895
N Construction to be completed
- T —RF in 2016 52,792
-—ZT-)\#F in 2018 46,945
RZZE—RF+=H Land bank as at
=t+—HztIHFHE 31st December 2015 112,632

BHERSE

HEERLAR —ZE-—HAFFR
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Hopson Regal Riviera * S84 ¥IF S
No. 1, Haojing Street, Yizhou Road, Haizhu District,
Guangzhou (99.5% owned)

BN VB BRI M B8 8 = 51 5% (B 99.5% 1 25 ) 55K
Sqg.m.

S Construction completed 86,530

BRUTEBTT Construction to be completed

-—E—+F in 2017 74,217

-ZE—N\F in 2018 90,557

- -NFRIE in 2019 and after 432,828

R-—_ZE—R&%+=A Land bank as at

= t—HztifFEE 31st December 2015 684,132

Hopson Regal Palace ® 84 % S5
Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

e

= B ERE 7R = E I KB (% B 100% # 25)
2 FHH
= : -“: L] /N
S S EE saim
E ~ :'. 2wl Construction completed 4,707
= -
":-; R-ZZE—RE+_A4 Land bank as at
= 9 =+—RZ TS 31st December 2015 4,707
Hopson Yijing Huayuan * &4 MBS 5%
Dongxiao South Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
J& )W % B [ R BE 7 B (HE B 100% 1 25 )
5K
Sqg.m.
g%l Construction completed 20,881
R-—_ZE—HF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HBztifEE 31st December 2015 20,881

Hopson Zhujiang International Tower © &£ 5T BB X B

I
o

No. 114-116 Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
B E S EE114E 11655 (B 100% i %5)
: E 5K
il I E Sqg.m.
= a= _ 2=l Construction completed 95,746
: : RZTE—HF+=A Land bank as at
=t— Bz E 31st December 2015 95,746
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Hopson Yunshan Xijing e 84 ELES

Guangzhou Avenue North, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)

BMAEREMAREBIL (FEF70%Es)

750K
Sqg.m.
2L Construction completed 8,149
R=ZZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=+—Hz i E 31st December 2015 8,149
Hopson Regal Villa ¢ 4 F S 1LH
Aoti Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
JB& N 2R [ R 48 B% (HE 5 100% #E 3)
50K
Sqg.m.
B 5E = Construction completed 8,172
TR IA TR fE 2 T Construction to be completed
Sl A in 2016 20,214
-+ in 2017 40,358
-ZE-N\F in 2018 23,290
RZZE—RF+=A Land bank as at
=+—Bz LG 31st December 2015 92,034
Hopson Belvedere Bay » 84 Z &
Huangai Beicun Avenue, Dali, Nanhai District, Foshan,
Guangzhou (100% owned)
B& 0 36 1L B [ K &= I dE A K 8 (M 100% 1 )
750K
Sqg.m.
BT Construction completed 35,712
BRATERRTT Construction to be completed
-ZE—tF in 2017 30,000
-ZE—)N\F in 2018 253,013
-—ZT-NFRMNE in 2019 and after 92,603
R=ZL—AF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLIHFE 31st December 2015 411,328

Hopson Plaza « &4 &S
Interchange of Guangzhou Avenue South and Diejing Road (opposite to the
governmental office of Haizhu District), Haizhu District, Guangzhou

(100% owned)

BN B TR R EIN K& R

HE=s

SRE R

BB OB IR R BT HE) (%5 100% # 45)

K
Sq.m.
[ Construction completed 40,035
B AT B RS 72 T Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 118,402
-—ZE—+tF in 2017 9,066
- T N\EF in 2018 50,728
R=ZZF—R&F+=A Land bank as at
=+ —Hz i E 31st December 2015 218,231

BHERSE

HEERLAR —ZE-—HAFFR
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Hopson Xijing Banshan ¢ G4 ES¥ 1

Hongbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou
(95.5% owned)

JB& N i P [ 40 48 4R AT AR e K B (7 95.5% #E 77)

TR
Sqg.m.
R TRBTI Construction to be completed
T NERE in 2019 and after 431,190
RZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=+—HztiEE 31st December 2015 431,190

Zhujiang Technology Innovation Park ¢ BT R Al = E
Machao Industry Estate, Jiufo Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)
F& N 138 3R 55 0 T2 4 (B 55% =)

75K

Sqg.m.
R TERBTET Construction to be completed
- -NFRIE in 2019 and after 193,513
R-_TE—RF+=A Land bank as at
=+ —B2zLIiREE 31st December 2015 193,513
Hopson Regal International ¢ &4 % S Bl
No. 188, Changgang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BB IKE S 5 188 5% (F B 100% #E &)

Sqg.m.
S Construction completed 29,502
R-ZZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HBzxiFEE 31st December 2015 29,502
Hopson Hushan Guoiji Villa ® & 4 # 1L Bl B
Yuanzhang Avenue, Xintang Town, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
EW TR ERERNE (A 100%E )

Sqg.m.
S Construction completed 916
BRATERBTET Construction to be completed
-ZE—tF in 2017 143,346
-ZZE-N\F in 2018 258,213
- -NFRIE in 2019 and after 823,375
R=_ZT—hF+=A8 Land bank as at
=t+—HztimFEE 31st December 2015 1,225,850
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Qianjin Road Project  Ai# I8 B
South of Qianjin Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
&N /8 R [ A #E B8 DA RS (HE B 100% 4 25 )

AR
Sqg.m.
HERIA T T Construction to be completed
- —E—NERE in 2019 and after 244,300
R=—ZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=+t—HztHFEE 31st December 2015 244,300

Hopson TIT International Industrial Park ¢ &4 TITEEREX£E
Dawo Village, Tanbu Village, Huadu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)
& W AE &P [ x5 1 32 AR A (HE B 65% i 2= )

7K
Sqg.m.
R TERBTT Construction to be completed
-—ZT—+tF in 2017 19,322
-ZE-N\F in 2018 30,112
- —E—NERBE in 2019 and after 325,899
R-_ZE—HE+_-A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztiFE 31st December 2015 375, 3%
TIT Project (International Park) e TITIE B (Rl & H)
No. 489 Xingang Mid Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (65% owned)
JB& N T A 2R % 57 7 AP B 489 5% (M 5 65% HE 55 )
AR
Sqg.m.
HERIA T E T T Construction to be completed
-ZZT—N\F in 2018 132,078
- ZE-NFRUE in 2019 and after 656,347
RZZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzIHHE 31st December 2015 788,425

Hopson Yijing Mingyuan » & £ & 5 £ %t

Adjacent to the Family Healthcare Hospital of the Province, Xingnan Avenue,
Panyu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)

BNESREEANEEFENERS (HE100%Ea)

K
Sqg.m.
R A TR E T T Construction to be completed
- ZE—RF in 2016 48,042
- ZE—NFRINUE in 2019 and after 1,303,709
R=ZZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Hz i E 31st December 2015 1,351,751

SHAREEBRRAA
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Huizhou

JU\JII

61. Hopson Yujing Bay
A E Tﬁl = /%

62. Hopson Regal Bay
A E % = /%

63. Hopson International New City

B EBIBR N

64. Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park
WIHBEEXEEE

65. Shidai City Project
R IE B

66. Hopson Xiaogui Bay
AR

Hopson Yujing Bay ¢ & 4 i 5 &
No. 1, Longhe East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
SN T K O 5B AR BE 1 5% (HEB 100% i %1 )

SRR
Sg.m.
BERXT Construction completed 147,558
R ATEBET Construction to be completed
- T —RF in 2016 25,979
Tt in 2017 140,400
-—Z—N\F in 2018 247,683
LT NERNE in 2019 and after 1,417,347
R-_ZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—BztifEE 31st December 2015 1,978,967
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Hopson Regal Bay * 84 % 5
No 2, Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
B ATAE R X E —B& 257 (%A 100% 1 &)

75 0K
Sqg.m.
Elan Construction completed 79,740
R TERMTT Construction to be completed
- ZE—NFRIUE in 2019 and after 146,063
R-ZE—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLIHFE 31st December 2015 225,803

Hopson International New City & 4 B B #45
The Corner of Sanhuan East Road, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)
BMKOROER=REES (HH100%#x)

750K
Sqg.m.
BEL Construction completed 68,014
R A TR T Construction to be completed
- T —tF in 2017 128,895
-ZZE—)N\F in 2018 438,860
- ZE-NEFERMNUE in 2019 and after 45,000
R=ZF—RF+=H Land bank as at
=t+—Hz i E 31st December 2015 680,769

Zhujiang New Industry Innovation Park « I H R EEAIEE
Taipingxu, Taiping Village, Licheng Street, Zengcheng City (100% owned)
I TH 7 W8 K T AR T4 (BB 100% 7 55 )

7oK
Sqg.m.
NS S Construction to be completed
B hERE in 2019 and after 1,383,667
RZFT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzIHFHE 31st December 2015 1,383,667

SHAREEARAF —ZE-AFFRH
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Shidai City Project * K158 B
Xiangshuihe South, West side of Daya Bay (100% owned)
K 25 /2 7 [ 2 K] 7 B i Bk (B A 100% # 75)

750K
Sqg.m.
BRATEBET Construction to be completed
- T —+tF in 2017 56,730
-—E-N\F in 2018 85,730
- ZE-NFRINE in 2019 and after 1,328,970
R-_ZE—AF+=A Land bank as at
=t—HBztifEE 31st December 2015 1,471,430

Hopson Xiaogui Bay » &4 /MEi#
The West of Holiday Inn, Anhui Avenue, Aotou, Daya Bay Area (100% owned)
A EERRELZBAERBEE A (% B 100% %)

SRR
Sqg.m.
S Construction completed 05,235
HRATERBEL Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 57,979
et in 2017 207,966
_—T_N\& in 2018 25,007
_—E—hERIE in 2019 and after 1,607,184
A—E—hHF+=A Land bank as at
=t Bzt E 31st December 2015 1,993,371
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Zhongshan
)

67. Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court
BERILTRGE

68. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
FILRIER

69. Zhongshan Rainbow Project
PRI IE B

Hopson Zhongshan Regal Court « &4 |LFE =35

Linggang District, Huoju Development Zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)

R T KB R B R B e [ (MR 100% #E 25)

K
Sqg.m.
2L Construction completed 15,805
R LA TR fE e T Construction to be completed
-—F—tF in 2017 51,235
- T N\fF in 2018 13,583
R=—ZT—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HztFEE 31st December 2015 80,623

Zhongshan

Gl

AHEREEARAF —FT-—AFFR
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Zhongshan Dongkeng Project ® IR 118 H
Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (95% owned)

TR R R (B R 95%  a)

K
Sqg.m.
HERATERBET Construction to be completed
-—T—tF in 2017 51,000
-ZE-N\#F in 2018 51,000
- -NFRUE in 2019 and after 267,929
R=—ZF—RF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2015 369,929
Zhongshan Rainbow Project ¢ #4118 B
Caihong Planning Zone, West District, Zhongshan (95% owned)
LT P [ R AT AR B = (R 76 95% 1 4w )
7K
Sqg.m.
AT T T Construction to be completed
-ZE—RF in 2016 19,230
-ZE-N\F in 2018 53,000
-—ZE-NEFERMNE in 2019 and after 373,455
RZTE—RFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—Hz:iFEE 31st December 2015 445,685
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Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st December

2015 are as follows:

Investment Property Factsheet

BEYE R

AT

RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H SEREMXE

Approximate

Group’s interest Existing use  gross floor area
Location g EEiEER B Al A® BHEEEE
(sq.[rj.)
(7 3K)
Beijing Hopson Desheng Building R B K 100% Office/ 57,074
No. 11 Deshengmenwai Street = retail and carparking
Xicheng District g ) YN
Beijing =B P I R 11 5% TERE fifia
Mainland China IEREERBRNE = ETE
Hopson Kylin Xintiandli F B oK P 100% Commercial/ 48,694
Interchange of Wangjing Futong West b shop and carparking
Avenue and Wangjing Street Hiz = e
Chaoyang District EREEP AR ?ﬁﬁ&éiie
Beijing R ER = Tz
Mainland China A A BT K i
Makeyan Project PR K B 100% Commercial/ 625,006
Plot A (Southern Region) and b= office and carparking
Plot D (Southern Region) of BN R Y
Scientific Research Site of FEREXERRE WARR 1; i
National Environmental Protection it B b Ath 358 7 [& K2 BEXF S
Industrial Park Db 318 7 [
Tongzhou District SEEE
Beijing
Mainland China
Hopson Regal Fortune Plaza R ER K BE 100% Commercial/ 23,864
Building 223 it = office and carparking
No. 28 Guangqu Road B CAE Y4
Chaoyang District [ 2R B% 285 223 5% 12 WA é =is
Beijing RETBRUEES AEsEES
Mainland China
Hopson International Plaza A B K B 100% Commercial/office/ 313,161
292 Jiefang é/g retail and carparking
Yangpu District % f [ Ay
Shanghai 29215y %f%égg fifi/a
Mainland China AEEBRES = s
Hopson Fortune Plaza R K B 100% Commercial/office/ 53,614
483, Feihong Road g retail and carparking
Hongkou District 4T O & W e A e
Shanghai TE4T §5 48355 %fé jg”;(g jgi/a
Mainland China AEHEES = T
Hangzhou Hopson World Trade Centre BB oK R 95% Commercial/office/ 92,418
327, Tianmushan Road ?ﬁjllé retail and carparking
Xihu District 91 N Sy
Hangzhou sl %ﬁé j;b; 12 jijt/a
Zhejiang Province X B 1L B& 327 5% = =T
Mainland China TN G A B E Ay
Hopson Zhujiang International Tower B oA B 100% Commercial/office/ 95,378
No. 114-116 Yuehua Road E%%‘ retail and carparking
Yuexiu District E) N
Guangzhou W & %ﬁéﬁgé %ig
Guangdong Province 53 K114 211657 = T
Mainland China EEKIBERKRE
Hopson Plaza R oK B 100% Commercial/office/ 163,336
Guangzhou Avenue South EBERA retail and carparking
Haizhu District {Zi?d‘l‘l _ B SPAE S
Guangzhou Ik & TepEEs
Guangdong Province EIN K& = s AT
Mainland China EEES
Hopson Regal International oK RE 100% Commercial/ 18,250
No. 188 Changgang Mid Road ERAE retail and carparking
Haizhu District =0 e
Guangzhou B E za )SUEEF
Guangdong Province & = E% 188 5% = T
Mainland China EEFTRER
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EXE_CUTIVE DIRECTORS
HITESE

CHU Mang Yee, aged 55, has been a director of the Company (the “Director”) since 1997. He
is the Chairman of the Company and one of the founders of the Group. Mr. Chu has over
twenty years’ experience in trading, construction, property investment and development. He is
also an Honoured Citizen of Meizhou of Guangdong Province and the Vice Chairman of
Guangdong Research Institute for the Development of Corporate Strategy. Mr. Chu is the sole
director of Sounda Properties Limited. Sounda Properties Limited is a substantial shareholder
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is
also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Chu is the father of Ms.
Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company.

KB 5K B NMNEFHEARREE(ESE) BRAXRAEIEREAEED
HP—UARA - REEEES BE - VERELRERSTEAZEBE - TF&8 - WIT
REREBNTRETRMERCXEREBARRIGR AELERHEEXEAR
RAZE—EE REFFRPEGERIEXVE HZEXERAFARBARAZIIER
R BRITERARAREBEZEGIF KREERARAVTEEZTRES SR IR AER
REZRHE -

CHU Kut Yung, aged 28, graduated from the Renmin University of China, majoring in Finance
with solid knowledge in finance principles and comprehensive investment skills. She has been
appointed as the Executive Vice President of the Company since March 2012 and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company in November 2011. She is also a director
of a subsidiary of the Company. She was an intern of the Group in 2007 and 2008, and held
the position as Assistant to President from 2009 to 2011. She has worked in areas relating to
financial and human resource management of the Company, and thus accumulated extensive
and professional experience in such areas. She is also a member of the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Ms. Chu has been appointed as Deputy Chairman of the Company since 11th
July 2013. Ms. Chu is the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company.

KEHR 28w EERNTEARAZERBEX  AFXENSRERAZNKEE
MREXRBRE - R-_FT-_FZAREZIT/ARAEHRLEHY "R_F——F
T ABZEERARARTESE MEREARAZLHBARZESE -E_TTLFM
—EE)N\FREASENEELE R_TTAFE_T——FEBEAKPE - IHE
ARABMBE - ANTREFFTETIHE BRT - ENMBEEMANEREEFERT
ERB RN AARAFRREEZEEXNE AT =FtA+—HE KRXTEZHE
BARBEEE RELRARFNEFEIFERAEREEZL -
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AU Wai Kin, aged 59, has been an executive Director since 1997. Mr. Au joined the Group in
1995. He is also a director of our other member companies. Mr. Au graduated from Sun Yat-
Sen University in Guangzhou and has over twenty years’ experience in construction of
buildings, town planning, real estate investment and property development.

BERZ 595 B MANEFHERATEF BEER - AANTFMBAEE XA/
SEEMKERRZES -REXEREMFLUAZ -BALEEBTRE UHARE it
ERBERYEHRRTEER - &8 -

LIAO Ruo Qing, aged 51, has been an executive Director since 21st January 2010. He is also
a Vice President of the Group and director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liao
graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University in Guangzhou and obtained a Master degree from the
University of Western Sydney of Australia. Mr. Liao joined the Group in 2003. He worked in
government department and engaged in real estate investment and business management for
over ten years and has extensive experience in working with government departments, legal
affairs and investment development.

BEBE I B-_ZE—TF A+ BRBEEHNTEF -KRIAAAEEEILHR
ARRETHEBRARZESFS BEAEXREMNPUARBYRRMNABTEANSE LS
fL-BRAENR_ZFZT=ZFNEAEE REERTHMAER KEFHERERLE
BEETHETHE BRETEENHERNRM ZRFERREAETENERLR -
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XIE Bao Xin, aged 35, joined the Group in July 2002 and was the General Manager of Finance
and Investment Management Centre of the Group and the companies of the Group established
in the Guangzhou District. He graduated from the Sun Yat-Sen University Lingnan (University)
College and obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics. He has over 10 years of experience in
real estate development and finance management. Mr. Xie has been appointed as executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company since 11th July 2013. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

HEE B R_TZT_FLANMALREE CEECAEEMKEKETLHEER
AEBEEMNCRARMBEREPLAE - REXNPILKRBEER(KE) B - WA
BREBLBM - FREHENVBERTEZEERIOFAR - BT =Ft A+
—HE BELEZEAARRRTESTRUBAE LORAQARZETHEAR
ZEF-

BAO Wenge, aged 38, is a Vice President of the Group and General Manager of business
investment department. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
graduated from the Tianjin University of Commerce and obtained a Bachelor degree in
Economics. Mr. Bao joined the Group in 2000. He has worked in the real estate industry for
over 15 years and successfully carried out several large-scale real estates projects. He is
familiar with the operation of commercial properties, office buildings, residential projects, and
hotel and property management. He has over 15 years of experience in real estate operation
and management, marketing and operation management. Mr. Bao has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since 18th November 2014.

X 38 RAAEEA AR EREEFENALE - RTARAREE THE
RAIZEZ FEEXERREFEABRIFEARLEBERELEU -MEER _ZTTTEN
AREE BREMEXETIEBISF  ITRNELZEREEHERR - RABHE
ME BFE EEREEZEZE URBEERMEEE BRREHELLERER W5
EHREEEERRAIFER - HE-Z—NF+— A+ \BREZEARARAH
TEF-
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BAKHITES

LEE Tsung Hei David, Chris, BBS, JP, aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director. David C
Lee is the Chairman and Managing Director of DH Group Investment Ltd, DH Capital (HK) Ltd, DS
Capital Group Co Ltd, DS Transport Interchange Development Ltd and Guangzhou DHC Investment
Advisory Ltd. He is also the Chairman of the Investment Committee of Cheever Real Estate Master
Fund SPC, Chief Development Officer of Hong Kong Shanghai Medical Development Ltd. He
qualified as a Chartered Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and was registered as an Authorized Person in
1977. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors, an associate of the Incorporated Society of Valuers
and Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a former
member of the Central Policy Unit, which is known as the Government “Think Tank”, a past Chairman
of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former member of the Supervisory Board of the Hong Kong
Housing Society, a former director of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, a
former Council member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a former member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, and the Steering Committee on review of the Urban Renewal Strategy.
He is currently a Visiting Professor of the Guangzhou Urban Mass Transit Training Institute, a member
of the Salvation Army Advisory Board and Chairman of the Property Advisory Committee of the
Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member of the board of Directors (the “Board”) since 1998. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee; and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

TER CAEXANEE X FHL 66 BUNFNTEF FTELERREEEREBERA
A -REEX(BE)ERQAA SFRHEXERAA SBERXBEAFSHUERZEBERARLE
MBEREXABRABDEIERTRAE FAENANKESHERSREZEGER -
BLBEERABRAABRAE - KRR - NEt=ZFEREERFFUEMER IR —N
TEFAMARTAL - RABTEANEMBEEREE BFAIMEXNEM THEESS
CEREE REMERNEMBEEERAERFHFRAREERE -FTEECRBER
R ARKEABRNFERE) ZHEE BEFEHENIE BEFEHSEZTSAZ
B BAYBATEARARZAES BAEIARZIRE BATMRERERNEZES
FIZERTREEZRERNBEEZEENEE - RAFAEMNNH B BEI SR 5 E
R PUHEERHNZESZBRRUEEYEREHNZEGIFE -FTEEB " NNANFRABE
F2((BEF2)KE BAREARALERZES FMHZESRBERS MEALRSD
ZBEgXR RRBRZBGKE -
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WONG Shing Kay, Oliver (passed away on 9th April 2015), aged 63, was an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Wong obtained his professional accounting qualifications in both Hong Kong
and Canada. Mr. Wong was an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of
the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong was also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, an ordinary member of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and
an associate member of the Certified General Accountants of Canada. Mr. Wong had worked in
various renowned auditing firms in Hong Kong with over 20 years of experience in handling auditing,
financial accounting and taxation matters. Mr. Wong was appointed as a non-executive director of a
listed company in Hong Kong. He had also assumed the duty of financial controller for several listed
companies in both Hong Kong and Canada for over ten years. Mr. Wong practiced as a Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He was knowledgeable with expertise in financial accounting,
taxation, system development, internal control and company management. Mr. Wong had been a
member of our Board since 1998. He was a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee of the Company.

BERAER T AFEANRAEL) 635 BUFNATEE FEERFENINE AN
AMEFAMER RARBBSFEAMEEERTFARSGANLEEREE  EE S
RENXERGEN BEREASGHMASEERMEAEM S WEREFTESH
ARBEZEHMEBRMIFEER_TF AGRLENEMN VB ABRBRELR -TE
AZEBN-—RMBBLTRABAZHFATES MACHESHEERMERLTAAZY
BREBMETHRT EREBUNIMEAMINAR -FEEEHRNUBE B £5
ER ABEERAREEIAREZLRBZ BEALEE - NMNN\FRRIEEEXE -KTA
ARBzEREES FHEES REZESRMERS HMEALRZIZEENKE -

TAN Leng Cheng, Aaron, aged 60, has been an independent non-executive Director since 2nd July
2010. Mr. Tan currently serves as Senior Advisor to a global financial services firm. Prior to this, Mr.
Tan was the managing director and head of the Hong Kong investment banking business of Barclays
Capital. Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University of Alberta and has
obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from City University in the United States of
America. He is an Associate Member of the Canadian Certified General Accountants and a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Tan has over 25 years of experience in the banking
industry in both Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Tan had held senior positions in several major and
international financial institutions including Citicorp, JP Morgan Chase and HSBC. Mr. Tan has a wide
breadth of experience in corporate and investment banking as well as capital markets. Mr. Tan was
formerly the Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong Capital Markets Association. He is also a member of
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee of the Company.

BREFE 60 BT ZTF+ A _HEEAEBYFATES RELAR A —HIRKESR
R ATz SRR - L ATFR % 4 BBarclays Capital Z E R A KIE N EBIRERTER 2
& o BR % & #F A University of Alberta ] 2 2+ 2 + I BU 45 2 B City University T 75 & 12 18 - £
feFAMERZMRETMBETERNEARABTRHBEE L REERNERREEZ
RI1TE A BI25F KL 5 o fR 5t 4 % H Citicorp ~ JP Morgan Chase N JE £ 58 175 % R A A B B
CRMBEEISRBA RIERCERBRERTURBEAMGHEAEELH -REEBR
EERTEBEAMBGASZEER BNAARRZEREZEE FTHEESE REZEE
eNBERG HEATXSFIEEEKE -
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CHING Yu Lung, aged 46, has been an independent non-executive director of the Company
since 1st July 2015. Mr. Ching currently serves as the assistant to the chairman of an
investment company. Prior to this, Mr. Ching worked as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Glorious Property Holdings Limited ({825 b ZE1ZE I AR /A 7)), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ching is an independent non-executive director and was previously
an executive director and the finance director of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited & #1718
f2 /A2 7]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ching had been an independent non-
executive director of PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (R[5 EZEEARAR), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and an executive master degree in
business administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006, respectively. Mr. Ching is a
fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, and member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has more than 24 years of experience in auditing, corporate finance and
accounting. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee of the Company.

BMgE 46 BT RAF LA BEBETBUYIFATEST BELBRT—FRE
RAZEZERDE - WA BEERBMIALETARERMEZRBRARAZARM
BERAAWE BELBARRBEXM LT ARARBETERAANBUIIFNTES
NEEZARHNRTEERYBES T ERARIMLETARKGEXEEBRA
RAZBYFATES O - AN _FR_FENFREEETIXAZIERERE
BTBURBEARBITRAEIRERRI MU -BELERBTEGHTMA S RERS
HAARBHAMACERGE NAXEAMEAMGEEEE - BAEENKE %Y
BREFHTHREERAFER -RIR/ARFAZEREZES FHEES REZE8
SRAERD HMEALRHGEEGKE -
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Senior Management’s Profile

T AR B B g i A

WANG Wen Guang, aged 50, Vice President of the Group and General Manager of Residential Investment and Development
Department. Mr. Wang graduated from Wuhan University with a Bachelor degree. He is a first-class constructor and a senior
engineer. He has served as the Project Manager of Guangdong Province Water Conservancy and Hydropower Machinery
Construction Company, the Project Director of Guangzhou Dongxun Real Estate Development Company Limited, the Deputy
Executive General Manager of Guangzhou Meilin Jiye Group Construction Corporation (F&JNZEME ¥ EEEEANT]), the
General Manager of the Shanghai regional company of Guangzhou R&F Properties Group, and the Chairman and General
Manager of Sunshine City Ming Zhu Holding Industrial Group Company Limited (B3 3¢3iiE 2 5 E # =B HRAF]), since
1989. He joined the Group as Vice President in 2014. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in real estate management.

EXHR 50 ASFREBRECREAENBLE - TELEEENRNERRE B2 LB - WA —RZER
SR TIZEN - B — ﬂﬂhiif&f%éﬁﬂ**%ﬁmlﬂﬂﬁﬁmﬁ EMTRAFMEZERBER AT LIELR
E BEMNEMEXEEZELRAEBALALE BENENHESELEEHARAKE BAREREEEESE
Eﬁ@@ﬁ%%%%@%ﬁﬁ% TR -NENBRAEETRIAHR EFAEHEREENFHEETELR -

LANG Fan, aged 42, Assistant President and Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group. Ms. Lang graduated from Capital
University of Economics and Business with a Master degree. She has served as the Human Resources Officer of the Beijing
branch (Northern District) of Swarovski (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd. and the General Manager of Human Resources of
Capitaland Retail (Shanghai) Management & Consulting Co., Ltd., since 1998. She joined our Group as Assistant President in
2014. Ms. Lang has wide experience in human resources management.

BRWA - 425% - AEEMEAHFEEANERE BRIEXREHEKBEEFARE BELEL -B-NWNANFEE
EHESETF (L) EZARAANERDATAAETRBANERICE IEAAFEEEZAA (LB ARRAANE
RAKBEER - T —NFMBAEEEYELEY KLU ETHEELEENANEREELR -

LIU Jian, aged 48, Chairman of the Tianjing regional office of the Group. Mr. Liu graduated from Chongging Institute of
Architectural Engineering with a Bachelor degree. He is a certified state-level first-class architect and a professor-level senior
engineer. He has served as the Vice President of China Institute of Aerospace Construction and Design, the Deputy General
Manager of Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development Limited and the Deputy General Manager of Beijing Hopson Beifang Real
Estate Development Limited, since 1989. He joined the Group as Vice President in 2002. Mr. Liu has wide exposure in real
estate planning, design and engineering management and extensive practical experience in operations.

g2 8% AEEREWBREER -FELEEXNERRETI RS BEL R - RABR — R MEEA -

HERSHRIREM - B - N/ \NFEETPEMREZERAARAREGER RN TIFHEREER A A B BLE

RIEREEIETEHEREERAFRELE - — T _FNMRAEECTEAR -ELEREFLEENFHERSR
A IREELR ERBRECRERE -

Zheng Yaoqin, aged 54, Assistant President of the Group and General Manager of Guangdong Hechuang Construction
Company Limited. Mr. Zheng graduated from Guangdong University of Technology. He is a national first-class registered
architect and senior engineer. He served as the General Manager of Guangdong Hanjian Construction Company Limited (/& 58 &%
EIT R 4% AR A R]) and the General Manager of Guangdong Zhujiang Engineering Construction Limited (& 5 ¥k /T T 52 485
BEMRAR]). He joined our Group as Deputy General Manager of Northern China regional office of the Group and the General
Manager of Guangdong Hechuang Construction Company Limited in 2015. Mr. Zheng has extensive experience in real estate
development, engineering management and cost control.

BED 545 ALEYRERFERAATIREAOARANAME WAL BLXNERAIEAS HADR—
IR E  BRTRG - S ARREERT AR OARLARED BT TRAXOARD T QL
RN T REMEARERAAREELHEAREERERAMIRAFBERATNEER - BELHA
SENEMENBLS TREDLR  KAEEER -
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TURNOVER

(i)

(ii)

Recognised Sales

The Group recognised a turnover of HK$12,845 million in 2015,
down 25% comparing to HK$17,045 million of 2014. The overall
GFA delivered by the Group in 2015 was 644,659 square metres
(2014. 735,234 square metres), which mainly included Hopson
Times Garden (& R#E—5%) in Shanghai, Hopson International
City (A4 BB in Ningbo, Hopson Regal Riviera (&4 K/ IH =)
in Guangzhou, Hopson Dreams World (& 4t 54%) in Beijing and
Hopson Belvedere Bay (& 4 5/&) in Tianjin.

The overall average selling price in respect of delivered and
completed properties decreased by 19% to RMB13,460 (2014:
RMB16,521) per square metre. The decrease was mainly due to
the increase in proportion of products targeting at rigid demand
and improvement needs with a lower selling price, such as Hopson
International New City (& 4 BIFE#THY), Hopson International City
(& H BIBEI) and The Town of Hangzhou Bay (& A 171N & BB ).

Contracted Sales

During the year, the Group recorded a total of RMB9,987 million
contracted sales (2014: RMB5,312 million), up 88%. The average
contracted selling price decreased 11% to RMB11,301 per square
metre (2014: RMB12,636 per square metre).

Nineteen property projects were on sale in Guangdong and the
contracted sales were RMB5,386 million in 2015, representing 54%
of the total contracted sales of the Group. The major projects in
Guangdong were Hopson Regal Riviera (&4 ¥k I &), Hopson
Belvedere Bay (&4 & &%) and Hopson Hushan Guoji Villa (&4
L EBIER).

The combined contracted sales of Beijing and Tianjin were
RMB2,138 million, representing 21% of the total contracted sales
of the Group in 2015. Nine projects were on sale in Beijing and
Tianjin, of which Hopson Regal Park (&4 &I 7% &) in Beijing and
Hopson Belvedere Bay (& 4% 5 &) in Tianjin were the major sales
contributors.

There were nine property projects on sale in Shanghai, mainly
comprising Hopson International City (& 4 BIRR#), Hopson Asset
Seascape Residence (&£ =/H57248) and Hopson Times
Garden (& 4 A% —35%). Contracted sales of Shanghai amounted to
RMB2,463 million, representing 25% of the total contracted sales
of the Group.

Financial Review

S 5 1]

EXE

(i)

(i)

RREEER

AEBMN T -AFHBFI286FEE
TTHEESE R_-_Z—INF17,046 8 EH
TCNRE25% - REBR -_ZE—RHAFERM
ZHEEETE B4 F FoK(ZF —
M4 : 735234 F 5 K) TERXNWEER
BEEENHAERME - ERAERRKR
WoBEMNMAERTEE bR a £t
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EHEXNRERMENBREBELEAHEERT
B19% =2 FF 5 KAREE13460L (= F
—HEFE: AR#165217L) TEREE
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T(ZE—NF: B8FHARKAR®KE12,636
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T A EEANEERTE 254% ER
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EREREZENHERGARBARS
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MAEtERERTEHERENKR-

FEXENEAEEYEEE  F2RES
BB ALV ESSAERA LAY
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Financial Review (continued)

B 5 8] ()

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and
design costs, and capitalised interest. There was a decrease in
recognised sales this year as compared with the previous year and
accordingly, resulted in a decrease of cost of sales by 18% to HK$9,683
million (2014: HK$11,793 million) and an increase of 6% to 75% (2014:
69%) as a percentage of turnover.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin percentage dropped from 30.8% in 2014 to 24.6% in
2015, which was mainly attributable to the increase in the proportion of
projects with relatively lower profit margins targeting at rigid demand.

OTHER LOSSES, NET

Other net losses amounted to HK$37.5 million in 2015 (2014: other
gains, net of HK$137.3 million), which included (1) dividend income of
HK$193.3 million from investment in listed and unlisted securities; (2)
grants amounting to HK$3.9 million in total from government authorities
in Mainland China; (3) fair value loss of HK$0.6 million from listed
securities; (4) an excess of the fair value of net assets of a subsidiary
acquired over acquisition cost of HK$3.0 million; and (5) net exchange
loss of HK$237.1 million.

OPERATING COSTS

The operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing, general
and administration was HK$1,791 million (2014: HK$1,773 million), which
was basically the same as in previous year.

FINANCE COSTS

Gross interest expense before capitalisation in 2015 increased to
HK$3,900 million (2014: HK$3,675 million), up HK$225 million or 6%,
primarily due to the increase in the average balance of bank and financial
institution borrowings denominated in Renminbi. The effective interest
rate in respect of the Group’s borrowings was approximately 7.3% per
annum (2014: 7.5%).
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SHARE OF PROFIT OF JOINT VENTURES

Share of profit of joint ventures represented the Group’s share of profit of
HK$154 million from three joint ventures located in Beijing and
Guangzhou.

TAXATION

The taxation was HK$1,257.3 million in 2015, down 39.2% compared
with the previous year. The decrease in taxation was due to the decrease
in revenue and the profit margins.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$1,646 million for 2015 (2014:
HK$2,947 million). Basic earnings per share was HK$0.74 (2014:
HK$1.31). Excluding the effect of the net of tax gain from investment
property revaluation of HK$1,001 million, the net of tax gain from the
investment property revaluation of two joint ventures of HK$20 million,
the costs on early redemption of senior notes of HK$79 million and an
excess of the fair value of net assets of a subsidiary acquired over
acquisition cost of HK$3 million, underlying profit was HK$701 million,
down 65% as compared with the previous year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Property development continued to be the Group’s core business activity
(83%). In 2015, the Group continued to develop its business in the three
core economic regions, namely the Huanbohai Area, Pearl River Delta
and Yangtze River Delta. Eastern China (including Shanghai, Hangzhou,
Kunshan, Ningbo, Cixi and Taicang) contributed 42% to the total revenue
of the Group, followed by 32% from Southern China (including
Guangzhou, Huizhou and Zhongshan) and 26% from Northern China
(including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao).
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31st December 2015, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$140,177 million (2014: HK$143,687 million) and its total liabilities
came to HK$83,658 million (2014: HK$85,702 million), representing a
decrease of 2% respectively as compared to 31st December 2014.
Denominated in Renminbi, the increase in total assets was mainly
attributable to (1) the increase of investment properties; and (2) the
increase in properties under development for sales; and the increase in
deferred revenue led to the increase in total liabilities denominated in
Renminbi, but as Renminbi depreciated against the Hong Kong dollars
during the year, total assets and total liabilities denominated in Hong
Kong dollars decreased compared to that at the end of previous year.

The Group’s current ratio as at 31st December 2015 was 2.23 (2014: 2.32).
Equity at 31st December 2015 decreased 2.5% to HK$56,518 million
from 31st December 2014, primarily due to the combined effect of the
increase in profit attributable to equity holders and the weakening of
Renminbi against Hong Kong dollars during the year. The net-asset-value
(“NAV”) per share as at 31st December 2015 was HK$25.30.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL POSITION

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely monitors its
current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain its rolling cash
flow at a level which is considered adequate by the Group to finance the
Group’s operations according to its cash flow projections and to maintain
sufficient cash to meet its business development requirements.

As at 31st December 2015, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e. the
ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding non-controlling
interests) was 60% (2014: 60%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 73%
(2014: 74%).

As at 31st December 2015, the Group had cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$5,429 million (2014: HK$6,711 million), of
which approximately HK$3 million (2014: HK$3 million) was charged by
certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage facilities granted
by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties. 98.05% of the cash
and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi, 1.10% in Hong Kong
dollars and 0.85% in United States dollars.
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Total borrowings from banks and financial institutions amounted to
HK$44,403 million as at 31st December 2015, representing a decrease
of 1% or HK$375 million as compared to those as at 31st December
2014. Gearing ratio, measured by net bank and financial institution
borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes (i.e. total bank and financial
institution borrowings and Guaranteed Senior Notes less cash and bank
deposits) as a percentage of shareholders’ equity, was 73%, representing
a decrease of 1 percentage point from 74% as at 31st December 2014.

All of the bank and financial institution borrowings were either secured or
covered by guarantees and were substantially denominated in Renminbi
with fixed interest rates whereas the United States Dollar denominated
Senior Notes due 2018 were jointly and severally guaranteed by certain
subsidiaries with fixed interest rate, representing approximately 87% and 5%
respectively of the Group’s total borrowings.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and substantially
denominated in Renminbi.

The Group’s borrowings repayment profile as at 31st December 2015
was as follows:

As at 31st December 2015
R-Z-"F+=-A=t—H
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As at 31st December 2014
RZT—WME+=-A=+—H

Bank and Bank and
financial Guaranteed financial Guaranteed
institution senior Other institution senior Other
(HK$ million) borrowings notes borrowings Total borrowings notes borrowings Total
RITR R1T &
MBS REEE MBS REEE \
(B8%T) ‘e RE HMEE Bt BE B HMEER st
1 year — 4 11,189 - 4,076 15,265 (30%) 12,638 — 3,207 15,845 (30%)
1-2 years —FEEWF 8,206 - - 8,206 (16%) 11,790 2,313 — 14,103 (27%)
2-5 years MEZERF 18,387 2,303 - 20,690 (41%) 12,899 2,294 - 15,193 (29%)
After 5 years FF 1% 6,621 - - 6,621 (13%) 7,451 — — 7,451 (14%)
Total @t 44,403 2,303 4,076 50,782 44,778 4,607 3,207 52,592
Less: Cashand & : & &%
bank deposits |ITFER (5,429) 6,711)
Net borrowings {8 B /5 58 45,353 45,881

As at 31st December 2015, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$68,991 million (2014: HK$66,160 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$24,588 million (2014:
HK$21,382 million) were unutilised.
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CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31st December 2015, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$38,371 million (2014: HK$40,084 million)
and the Group’s equity interests in subsidiaries of HK$1,007 million (2014:
HK$439 million) were pledged with banks and financial institutions for
loan facilities used by subsidiaries.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

As at 31st December 2015, the Group provided guarantees to banks for
mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties which
amounted to HK$10,386 million (2014: HK$10,083 million).

COMMITMENTS

The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2015 were as follows:

EEERHA

R-ZEBE-—FAF+_A=+—B A&EBETE
H4EA38371H&B L (ZT—HF : 40,084
BEBTICEERAEB ZHNEB QAR AE
1,007 EEBL(ZZE—UF  430H &5 L)
EMMNBARGEAZERMEEF FIRT LY
TSRS -

B ER

RZE—RFE+_A=1+—0 KE@grE
EVECsERERBEBERMANBTREZ
ERAE10,8386F BB L(ZZ— MW : 10,083H
BB

AYE

AEBR _Z-—RAF+_A=+—-HZHAEMN
™~

As at As at
31st December 31st December
2015 2014
R-ZT—HF RZE—WF
+=A=+—H +=-A=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEER BEAT
Capital commitments BN
Contracted but not provided for BEIHBKREBE
— Acquisition of land and equity interests —EETHELTHERZ
in certain land holding entities T R R A R = 2,375 3,542
— Property construction costs — W AR 2,085 2,983
— Capital contribution to an associate ——ABERARCHE 256 272
4,716 6,797
Property development commitments V)3 B R A IE
Contracted but not provided for BRI A E KRB F
— Property construction costs — W) E S AR 16,386 19,126
16,386 19,126
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The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of leased
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The
future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease are as follows:
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As at As at
31st December 31st December
2015 2014
R-ZB—HF RZE—NF
+t=ZA=+—8H +=ZA=+—H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEBET BEAETT

Amounts payable T ER A FEAT 2 IR
— Within one year — —FA 13 24
— Within two to five years — MEERFNK 5 13
— After five years — AFi& 35 38
53 75

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash on hand, the Group is expected to be in an
adequate liquidity position to meet these on-going commitments by
stages.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions that
are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

50 W

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures are principally engaged in investment
holding, property development, property investment, property
management and hotel operations.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and their respective contributions to
operating profit for the year ended 31st December 2015 by geographical
locations is as follows:

ARAEEMAREAKEEBRE_T—AF+
“A=ET-HALEFENFREALELYHR
%Q

ARBRB—HAREZERQA ETEHEBR
Al BMERTARAGERRIEREREER
MEER MERE DEEBREBIEEZ
78 o

AEEHEE T AF+_A=+—HILtEFE
RitRB S EEBRESAYHKEERENZE
BAodran T

Contribution to

Turnover  operating profit

HREHMNZ

R =1

HK$'000 HK$’000

FHETT FET

Guangzhou BN 3,246,683 1,092,412
Beijing b= 2,266,139 494,510
Shanghai 8 5,440,029 1,667,415
Tianjin K& 992,734 (240,081)
Huizhou =N 899,599 (62,394)
Others EHA — (283,667)
12,845,184 2,668,195

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year

AEERHE_T-AF T _A=1T—RHLFE

ended 31st December 2015 is as follows: BEBO>BEONEEEINUOT ¢
Turnover
HK$’000
FET
Sales of properties MEHE 10,682,251
Construction services 2R 475,245
Property management income EEBRIA 824,214
Income from hotel operations R 2 YA 207,487
Rental income e WA 655,987
12,845,184
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as well as a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Deputy Chairman’s Statement” of this Annual Report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31st December 2015, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 2% of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
9% of the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the
Group accounted for approximately 1% of the Group’s turnover while the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 4% of the
Group’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in Note
38 to the financial statements, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2015
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 133 of this
annual report.

No interim dividend was declared and paid during the year. The Directors

recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK10 cents per share
for the year ended 31st December 2015.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note
23 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 25 and Note 39 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda regarding the calculation of the
distributable reserves, the Company’s distributable reserves amounted to

HK$928,143,000 as at 31st December 2015 (2014: HK$903,155,000
accumulated losses).

DONATIONS

During the vyear, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$7,168,000 (2014: HK$6,983,000) to various charitable organizations.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of
Bermuda.

PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to
the financial statements, respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 40 and 41 to the financial statements, respectively.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2015 are set out in Note
20 to the financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 28 to the financial
statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 250 to 252.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A. Framework Agreement

On 11th May 2012, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang Construction
Installation Project Limited FEREETELEZLE TIRER AT (now known
as Guangdong Hanjian Holding Company Limited* &R EZIERAR A
7)) (“Hanjiang”), being the respective holding companies of the Group
and the Hanjiang Group (where referred to in this paragraph, comprised
of Hanjiang, its subsidiaries and its associates), entered into a framework
agreement (the “2012 Framework Agreement”) setting out, among other
things, the principal terms in respect of services/leased premises to be
provided to the Group by the Hanjiang Group and of services/leased
premises to be provided by the Group to the Hanjiang Group. The 2012
Framework Agreement expired on 31st December 2014.

Since the Group intends to continue certain recurring transactions
contemplated under the 2012 Framework Agreement and to enter into
certain new recurring transactions with Hanjiang Group (where referred to
in this paragraph and below, comprised of Hanjiang, its subsidiaries, its
associated companies and its close associates) in the three financial
years ending 31st December 2017, the Company entered into the new
framework agreement (the “New Framework Agreement”) with Hanjiang
on 22nd April 2015. At the special general meeting of the Company held
on 12th June 2015, the New Framework Agreement, the transactions
contemplated therein and the annual caps of the maximum aggregate
annual transaction amount for the transactions were approved by the
independent shareholders (the “Shareholders”) of the Company.

As at the date of the New Framework Agreement, Hanjiang was directly
held as to 99% by Mr. Chu Yat Hong who is the son of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee (“Mr. Chu”, the controlling Shareholder and Chairman of the Board)
and a brother of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (“Ms. Chu”, an executive Director and
the Deputy Chairman of the Board and daughter of Mr. Chu). In addition,
Mr. Chu Yat Hong also indirectly owned approximately 17.61% of the
shares of the Company. Accordingly, Hanjiang was a connected person
of the Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Hence, the transactions between the Group and the
Hanjiang Group as contemplated under the New Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of such continuing connected transactions are set
out as follows:
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I.  Transactions under the New Framework Agreement

For the three years ending 31st December 2017, the Group may appoint
the Hanjiang Group to carry out construction works for certain property
development projects of the Group. The construction fees payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group and other terms for carrying out
construction works for the property development projects of the Group in
the PRC will be determined with reference to the terms offered by
independent third parties for providing similar services and the latest
stipulated standards and guidelines prescribed by Construction
Committee of where the project is located. During the year ended 31st
December 2015, total construction fees paid/payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$92,648,000 (2014:
HK$531,359,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2017, the Group may appoint
the Hanjiang Group to supervise the construction of the property
development projects of the Group. The amount of construction
supervising fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group and other
terms for supervising the construction of property development projects
of the Group will be determined with reference to the terms offered by
independent third parties for providing similar services and the latest
standards and guidelines prescribed in the PRC. During the year ended
31st December 2015, construction supervision fees paid/payable by the
Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$4,875,000
(2014: HK$2,948,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2017, the Group may appoint
the Hanjiang Group to carry out electricity installation, low voltage system
and intelligent building system installation work for the property
development projects of the Group and to provide the Group with
consultancy service on budgeting for tenders and cost control for its
construction work. Low voltage system and intelligent building system
installation works include installation of visual walkie-talkie system, CCTV
system, music broadcast system, security system, car park automatic
management system, telephone system, mobile signal coverage system,
television antenna system and procurement and installation of the related
facilities. Consultancy service on budgeting for tenders and construction
cost control include evaluation and formulation of the base price for
projects that the Group proposes to put up for public tender, preparation
for the Group’s tender invitations and assistance in the evaluation of the
bidders, formulation of the budgets and formulation of cost control plans
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for the Group’s property development projects. The amount of fees
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group and other terms for carrying
out electricity installation works for the property development projects of
the Group will be determined with reference to the terms offered by
independent third parties for providing similar services and the latest
standards and guidelines prescribed by the relevant governmental
authorities of where the property is located. The amount of fees payable
by the Group to the Hanjiang Group and other terms for carrying out low
voltage system and intelligent building system installation works for the
property development projects of the Group in the PRC will be
determined with reference to the terms offered by independent third
parties for providing similar services and the latest standards and
guidelines prescribed by the relevant governmental authorities of where
the project is located. For procurement of equipment for the low voltage
system and intelligent building system, a mark-up of 1%-3% on the price
of the equipment procured will be charged. The amount of fees payable
by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for the consultancy fee and other
terms for compiling budgets for tenders and construction cost control will
be determined with reference to the latest standards and guidelines
prescribed by the relevant government authorities of where the project is
located. During the year ended 31st December 2015, fees for electricity
installation, low voltage system and intelligent building system installation
and consultancy service on budgeting and cost control for construction
work paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$46,814,000 (2014: HK$146,753,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2017, the Hanjiang Group
may lease certain commercial premises located in Guangzhou and
Shanghai to the Group for office use. The rent payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group and the other terms will be determined with reference
to the prevailing market rents and the other terms available to the Group
for leasing the premises in the same building (or in the event that no such
lease is available in the same building, reference should be made to the
leases of premises of similar types and similar grading in the same region)
from independent third parties. During the year ended 31st December
2015, rental paid/payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted
to approximately HK$9,922,000 (2014: HK$3,633,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2017, the Group may appoint
the Hanjiang Group to set up the information technology infrastructure
and maintain the servers of the Group, to supply information and
computer system related products and facilities to the Group and to
provide the Group with consultancy service, staff training and technical
support for the information technology and computer systems of the
Group. The amount of fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group
for the set up of the informatization infrastructure and maintenance of
servers of the Group and provision of consultancy service, staff training
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and technical support for the information technology and computer
systems of the Group, the purchase price/rents payable by the Group for
the purchase/lease of products and facilities from the Hanjiang Group
and the other terms will be determined with reference to the terms
offered by independent third parties for providing similar services/
products. During the year ended 31st December 2015, informatization
and computerization related services fees paid/payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$12,879,000 (2014:
HK$43,788,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2017, the Hanjiang Group
may appoint the Group to carry out construction and building design
works for the property development projects of the Hanjiang Group. The
amount of design fees payable by the Hanjiang Group to the Group and
the other terms will be determined with reference to the terms offered by
independent third parties for undertaking similar design projects and the
latest standards and guidelines prescribed by the relevant local authority
on the fees and other terms for providing similar services (if any). During
the year ended 31st December 2015, the service fees received/receivable
by the Group from Hanjiang Group for provision of construction and
building design service amounted to approximately HK$924,000 (2014
HK$8,465,000).

For the three years ending 31st December 2017, the Hanjiang Group
may appoint the Group to manage vacant properties developed by the
Hanjiang Group and to handle the delivery of sold property units of the
Hanjiang Group in Guangdong Province, Beijing, Xi’an and Shanghai to
purchasers. The amount of management fees payable by the Hanjiang
Group to the Group and the other terms will be determined with reference
to related costs of the Group, the prevailing market rates charged by and
the other terms offered by independent third parties for providing similar
services for properties of similar grading in the same region and the latest
standards on property management and the property pricing guidelines
prescribed by the local government of where the particular property is
located. During the year ended 31st December 2015, the management
fees received/receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group for
provision of vacant property management service amounted to
approximately HK$5,694,000 (2014: HK$3,569,000).
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For the three years ending 31st December 2017, the Group may lease
certain premises located in Guangzhou to the Hanjiang Group for use as
shops and offices. The rent payable by the Hanjiang Group to the Group
and the other terms will be determined with reference to the market rents
received and the other terms offered by the Group to other lessees who
are independent third parties for leases of premises in the same building (or
in the event that no such lease is available in the same building, reference
should be made to the leases of premises of similar types and similar
grading in the same region). During the year ended 31st December 2015,
the rent received/receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group was
amounted to approximately HK$1,430,000 (2014: HK$2,475,000 for
shop lease. There was no office lease for the year ended 31st December
2014).

II.  Confirmation of independent non-executive Directors
and auditor

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
transactions and confirmed that:

the above transactions have been conducted between the
parties on normal commercial terms or better, which is, on
terms no less favorable to the Company than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;

(i) a.

b.  the above transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of the business of the Group;

c.  the above transactions have been carried out in accordance
with the terms of the New Framework Agreement on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole;

(i) during the year ended 31st December 2015, construction fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$92,648,000 (2014: HK$531,359,000), which have not
exceeded the annual cap on construction fees paid/payable to the
Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 22nd April 2015 (the
“Announcement”);
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(i)

(vi)

(vii)

during the year ended 31st December 2015, construction
supervision fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$4,875,000 (2014: HK$2,948,000), which have
not exceeded the annual cap on construction supervision fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2015, fees for electricity
installation, low voltage system and intelligent building system
installation and consultancy service on budgeting and cost control
for construction work paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$46,814,000 (2014:
HK$146,753,000), which have not exceeded the annual cap on
service fees for electricity installation, low voltage system and
intelligent building system installation, consultancy service on
budgeting and cost control for construction work paid/payable to
the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed
in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2015, rental paid/payable to
the Hanjiang Group for lease of offices amounted to approximately
HK$9,922,000 (2014: HK$3,633,000), which has not exceeded the
annual cap on rental paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group for lease
of offices in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2015, informatization and
computerization related services fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group amounted to approximately HK$12,879,000 (2014:
HK$43,788,000), which has not exceeded the annual cap on
informatization and computerization related services fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2015, the construction and
building design fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$924,000 (2014: HK$8,465,000)
which has not exceeded the annual cap on construction and
building design fees received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group in
respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;
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(viii)  during the year ended 31st December 2015, the management fees
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group for management of
vacant properties and delivery of sold property units to purchasers
amounted to approximately HK$5,694,000 (2014: HK$3,569,000),
which has not exceeded the annual cap on the management fees
received/receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

(ix)  during the year ended 31st December 2015, the rental received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group for lease of shops and office
amounted to approximately HK$1,430,000 (2014: HK$2,475,000),
which have not exceeded the annual cap of rental received/
receivable from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his
unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.56. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

B. Lease Agreements

On 18th January 2016, Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Development
Limited* Qb &AL FEHEMRZEFRAR]), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (“Hopson Beifang”), entered into () a lease
agreement with Zhujiang Life Insurance Company Limited* (%% A Z R %
r B R A7) (“Zhujiang Life”) for the lease of the premises situated at
7th floor of Hopson Fortune Plaza; and (i) a lease agreement with Beijing
Zhujiang Real Estate Development Company Limited* ({t REK I EHESR
fR /A &) (“Zhujiang Real Estate”) for the lease of the premises situated at
9th, 10th and 11th floors of Hopson Fortune Plaza, by Hopson Beifang to
Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate, respectively, for a period of three
years from 18th January 2016 to 17th January 2019 (collectively the “Lease
Agreements”).
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As at the date of the Lease Agreements, Zhujiang Life was a majority-
controlled company (as defined under the Listing Rules), held indirectly,
by the family members and relative of Mr. Chu and Ms. Chu together,
namely Mr. Chu Yat Hong and Mr. Chu Wai Hong (the sons of Mr. Chu
and the brothers of Ms. Chu), Mr. Zhu La Yi (a brother of Mr. Chu and an
uncle of Ms. Chu) and Mr. Xie Bing Zhao (the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu
and an uncle of Ms. Chu). Mr. Chu Yat Hong, being a substantial
shareholder of the Company was a connected person of the Company.
Zhujiang Life was also a 30%-controlled company held indirectly by Mr.
Chu Yat Hong. Zhujiang Real Estate was a majority-controlled company,
held indirectly by Mr. Chu Wai Hong (a son of Mr. Chu and a brother of
Ms. Chu). Accordingly, each of Zhujiang Life and Zhujiang Real Estate
was a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules and the
Lease Agreements and the leases constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
18th January 2016.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Acquisition of Company which owns a parcel of
Land in Guandong Province of the PRC

On 11th February 2015, Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Company Limited* (&
M EEETEHEBFR A F) (“Huizhou Yaxin”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Ms.
Chu Kam Lai and Mr. Chen Zhong, pursuant to which Huizhou Yaxin
agreed to purchase, and Ms. Chu Kam Lai and Mr. Chen Zhong agreed
to sell, 100% equity interest in Guangdong Zhongfu Real Estate
Investment Co., Ltd.* (ERFPREHEREERAF) (‘Guangdong
Zhongfu”) at the total consideration of approximately RMB53,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$67,945,000) (the “Zhongfu Acquisition”).
Huidong Zhongfu Real Estate Co., Ltd* (BRFEE X FR 2 7)), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Guangdong Zhongfu, owns the land use rights in
respect of and the legal title to a parcel of bare land located at
Changkeng, Yapojiao, Chuan’ao Village, Renshan Town, Huidong
County, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC with a total site
area of 69,971.96 sg.m..

As Ms. Chu Kam Lai is a sister of Mr. Chu and an aunt of Ms. Chu, Ms.
Chu Kam Lai was a connected person of the Company and the Zhongfu
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction for the Company under
the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to announcement of the
Company dated 11th February 2015.

The Zhongfu Acquisition was completed in mid February 2015.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31st December 2015 are set out in Note 38 to the
financial statements. The Company has complied with the applicable
requirements under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted non-exempt connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Other related party
transactions either did not constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions or constituted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions but were exempted from all disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)

Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Au Wai Kin

Mr. Liao Ruo Qing

Mr. Xie Bao Xin (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Bao Wenge

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver
(passed away on 9th April 2015)
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron
Mr. Ching Yu Lung
(appointed on 1st July 2015)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Au Wai Kin, Mr.
Liao Ruo Qing and Mr. Xie Bao Xin retire from office by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Ching Yu Lung will
retire from office and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION OF
INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David,
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron and Mr. Ching Yu Lung and considers them
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in Note 38 to the accompanying financial statements
and the sections headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and
“Connected Transaction” of this report above, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates,
joint ventures or holding company or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which any of the Company’s Directors or an entity connected with the
Directors had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERTHAZAKRY HEKR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN hRESEECEZERAR
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES

As at 31st December 2015, the interests or short positions of the WRZ-ZZTE—AF+-_A=+—H AQXFEEK
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying {THAHBEZT S LB EEN((EFA5 LB EK
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated fJ |) EXVEBE7R E8H P HE KN 7 &5
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures ST ER A QAT EF A BB EE (Fx B &
Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which were notified to the Company and the A5 R HIE &M EXVES) 2 &% - BEKHD L E
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO A Az EZ AR (BREBEES LT
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to  &H 7 2 SR TR R A EIEHEF 2 EZ X
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant &) - 3t % 7B %) AR 15 & 5 & B & (& 1l 2 352 (&
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to FIUTFE 2 EZMA - kBB T RITAZES
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for HETTESZ HEEESTR] ([EAESTE]]) HBX
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), @R AT Rz AR &I wmT -

to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company (i) =X2aBRBPHES
Number of shares of the Company
RABRROEE

Approximate
percentage of

Personal Family Corporate Other shares

Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total outstanding

HERITRS

EEMR BA#ERZ REkER ARIERE HittfEz &5t WHEIL

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) 2k & & 5t 4 (a) — — 1,229,003,809 — 1,229,003,809 55.01%

Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) R (& 3 5% A& (D) — — 34,500,000 — 34,500,000 1.54%

Notes: K& -

a. Mr. Chu Mang Yee held 1,160,363,809 shares of the Company through Sounda  a. REKREEBREZERAZARTEEEER
Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and 68,640,000 shares of AR —HEREZEERBAMARTERE —K
the Company through Hopson Education Charitable Funds Limited, an exempt BZRERBERARGAEHEEZESERAAD
charitable institution and a company limited by guarantee, of which Mr. Chu is B A A A 711,160,363,809 J& 1 68,640,000 i% f%
the sole member. (a

b. Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through a company  b. BEEXAEEBEZERBRENZARFEAL
wholly-owned and controlled by him. 2 734,500,000 f& B 17 ©
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(ii) Interests in 9.875% senior notes due 2018
issued by the Company

Name of Directors Type of interests

(i) AERABTZ=F—-—N\FE

HI987T5EB ERIBE 2 s

Principal amount of senior notes

Esns EEEE BEARELXE
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron Personal US$200,000
BREEB & EPN 200,000 7T

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2015, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
holding company or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and no
Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe for equity or
debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.
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Substantial Shareholders

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures” above, as at 31st December 2015, according to the register
of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the
following entity had interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Capacity and nature of

Report of the Directors (continued)
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FTERR

BEXTEERTREBRBG  AEBRHR
WSR2 S RAE ] —HHEQERI
R-Z—REF-A=+—H BAQAR
5 58 5 T 50 05 ) 5 006 17 B 2 B 2R ) A
# THEBRARFARG P HEEREESR
B RO EXVEBE2RESH BAMAD T B
B2 M AAA

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholder interests issued shares shares outstanding
HERTRSG

RERERE SO RERME ERTROEE BHED

Sounda Properties Limited Beneficial owner 1,160,363,809 51.94%

MEBXERAA BEnEREA

Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”) " Beneficial owner 395,246,625 17.69%

REREERAR([&RE]) W Em#AA

TheBest Investments Limited (“TheBest”) M Interest of controlled 395,246,625 17.69%
corporation

TheBest Investments Limited ([ TheBest J) /" RiEE B

Clear Build Investments Limited (“Clear Build”) ™t Interest of controlled 395,246,625 17.69%
corporation

Clear Build Investments Limited ([ Clear Build ] ) ##’ REEEE R

Mr. Chu Yat Hong " Interest of controlled 395,246,625 17.69%

corporation

He — i 4 A (WD) SRR E R

Note:

395,246,625 shares were held by Farrich which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
TheBest. The entire issued share capital of TheBest is held by Clear Build which is in
turn wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Yat Hong. Each of TheBest, Clear Build and Mr. Chu Yat
Hong was deemed to be interested in 395,246,625 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other
persons who, as at 31st December 2015, had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO.

TheBestz & & i A Iff B A 5] i & #5 5 395,246,625 % %
B oTheBest2 HE BT AR A —MEELZEHEN
Clear BuildFff # & ° TheBest * Clear Build & 2k — ffii & £ &
AR E S LIS G038 & 5 395,246,625 X 10 2
o

BENXHEEN REEMN BECMEM
AR ZEBE—RAE+-_A=+—BRARTZ
BT EEREESFRBE KA
EXVHF2RFID A AMARBBEEZ HER
SR B A AR EEF RIS K5 53361
FUFEBEZzECMAZERIAE -
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly in
Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation arising from the
exposure of Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar and US dollar. However,
the Directors do not anticipate any significant foreign exchange loss as a
result of changes in exchange rate between Hong Kong dollar, US dollar
and Renminbi in the foreseeable future.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2015, the Group, excluding its associates and joint
ventures, employed a total of 8,220 (as at 31st December 2014: 9,176)
staff, the majority of which were employed in Mainland China. Employees’
costs (including Directors’ emoluments) amounted to HK$915 million for
the year ended 31st December 2015 (2014: HK$1,031 million).

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s annual
and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration package is
performance-based and takes into account business performance,
market practice and competitive market conditions in order to attract,
motivate and retain talent. The remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management comprises salaries, bonuses,
discretionary bonus and other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly represent
their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee
meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the independent
non-executive Directors comprises annual director’'s fee and fee for
representation on board committees.

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year is set out in
Note 29 to the financial statements.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION AND SALE OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December 2015, the Company repurchased
a total of 9,798,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the

Report of the Directors (continued)
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BE-
R 2

BORHEAXRQB2E™S

$ATG%M%X%%@$”?%K¢%%E

Company on the Stock Exchange, details of which are as follows: fE0.10/8 7L M 9,798,000 f& 17 + ¥ BT -
Aggregate
Number of consideration
shares  Highest price Lowest price (excluding
Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share expenses)
- 4 grRE [ grRE [ BRE
BmEAH R#BEE BSERK BEER (FEERX)
(HK$) (HKS) (HKS)
(B T) (B7T) (Bm)
April 2015 —HFMA 2,018,000 8.00 7.63 15,661,080
July 2015 —RF+tA 7,780,000 7.57 5.67 51,659,220

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of the repurchased shares which had been cancelled. The premium
paid for the repurchase of the shares and related expenses totaling
approximately HK$66,549,000 were charged to the reserves.

The repurchases of the above shares were effected by the Directors
pursuant to the general mandate approved by the shareholders at the
annual general meetings of the Company held on 13th June 2014 and
12th June 2015, with a view to benefiting Shareholders as a whole by
enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share of the
Group.

On 5th May 2015, the Company redeemed all the outstanding 11.75%
senior notes due 2016 with an aggregate principal amount of
US$300,000,000. The redemption price for the notes is 102.9375% of
the principal amount redeemed plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date. All redeemed notes were cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2015.

$@ama%ﬁ%mamﬁaa%m%@&“
HE - REERGMMSR FWHF‘%E%EZ &
466,549,000/ 7T E B &Mk

ERBOENRESASEEREEFERER
Br - HMTEREBEEZXE BRER-_F—NO
FARAAT=Z=BEZZT-HEFRNAT-RETH
ARBBRRBFAS LHE-—RRE EFE
It B8 @ g

R-BE-—HFERARR AARED 2 KRE
BIZNBER-_Z—AFIHEAELHA
300,000,000 Tt 7 BAEE -ZEE L ENEA
BEELAEE 2102.9375% MEEEL B HH 2
ERERAFE -FTEEREEREDFH-

BUAEMEEEIN REEZZE—RAF+=A
=+ —BIEFEE - AR B E MM B D
EREE BEOHEAQRATMRNETES -
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Subsequent to 31st December 2015, the Company repurchased a total
of 3,916,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company on

R-ZZE—FAE+-_A=+—H7% &N
RFTHE B AR A R A R & 3,916,000 i & A% @

the Stock Exchange, details of which are as follows: BO10B TR « FFBW T .
Aggregate
Number of consideration
shares  Highest price Lowest price (excluding
Month of repurchase repurchased paid per share paid per share expenses)
[ 4= BRE[ BRER[ BRE
BmE A H RHE B BSER BREEE (FEEHEX)
(HKS) (HK$) (HK$)
(B 7T) (B7T) (L)
January 2016 —E—RF—A 3,916,000 7.25 6.67 27,104,680

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of the repurchased shares which had been cancelled. The premium
paid for the repurchase of the shares and related expenses totalling
approximately HK$26,797,000 were charged to the reserves.

The repurchases of the above shares were effected by the Directors
pursuant to the general mandate approved by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 12th June 2015, with a
view to benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset
value per share and earnings per share of the Group.

On 17th March 2016, the Company redeemed all the 2018 Notes with an
aggregate principal amount of US$300,000,000. The redemption price
for the notes is 104.9375% of the principal amount redeemed plus
accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. All redeemed notes
were cancelled.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 98 to 117 of the annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-laws provides that the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which
they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty; provided
that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.
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A directors’ liability insurance is in place to protect the Directors against
potential costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the
Directors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

For the environmental policy of the Group, please refer to the section
“Sustainability Report” on pages 118 to 128 of the report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the relationships with employees, suppliers and customers of the
Group, please refer to the section “Sustainability Report” on pages 118
to 128 of the report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of non-compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations by
the Group that have significant impact on the business and operations of
the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

In March 2016, the Company redeemed all the outstanding 2018 Notes
at 104.9375% of the principal amount of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,325,288,000) according to the mechanism specified
in the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date. The redemption amount included a premium of
US$14,812,500 (equivalent to approximately HK$114,811,000). The
redemption premium together with the unamortised borrowing costs
totaling HK$136,970,000 will be charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31st December 2016.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30th March 2016

*

For identification purposes only
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Corporate Governance Report
AE 58 B I8 WO

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance Shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31st December 2015, except for the code provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2
as described below.

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. None of the
independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific term.
This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1. However, as all
the independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual general meetings
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, in the
opinion of the Directors, this meets the objective of the CG Code.

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board did not
attend the annual general meeting for the year 2015 due to other
business commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31st December 2015.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

In view of the continuous macro-control measures and the ever-changing
market condition of the PRC, the Group had made reasonable planning
in its business development model in line with its overall strategic
development premise, in order to keep up with the market trend and
deliver fruitful reward to the Shareholders in a persistent manner.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY (Continued)

The Group has implemented scientific management and arrangement in
respect of the residential properties which are driven by regular demand,
residential properties which are for improving living environment and high-
end deluxe residential properties, and created a business development
model for maintaining profitability in high-end residential properties,
guaranteeing cash flow in mid-to-high-end residential properties and
residential properties which are driven by regular demand, and generating
stable and continuous cash flow through investing in investment
properties such as commercial properties (industrial real estate). On the
basis of the coordinated development of the properties for sale and for
investment, the Group will also further integrate resources, develop
investment business prudently and acquire more competitive strengths
through diversified and professional development strategies.

It is expected that the growth in the sales of diversified residential
products and in the cash flow of investment properties will become the
main profit drivers of the Company in the future.

For the strategic development direction of the Group, please refer to “Future
Prospects of the Group” under the section “Chairman’s Statement” on
pages 14 to 15 of the report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises six executive and three independent non-
executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
Directors’ Profile section on pages 64 to 69 which demonstrate a balance
of core competence having regard to the business of the Group.
Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote of
Shareholders at the annual general meeting. The Board believes that the
independent non-executive Directors, with diversified backgrounds and
industry skills, shall offer experience, independent judgement advice on
issues relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest and the
overall management of the Company such that the interests of all
Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. The Board oversees the Group’s strategic development and
determines the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The
Board also monitors and controls operating and financial performance in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have
access to timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make
further enquires when necessary. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice on issues relating to the Group’s business at the
Group’s expenses. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal actions against its Directors.

Ms. Chu Kut Yung, an executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Company, is the daughter of Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Apart from the aforesaid, there are no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

All independent non-executive Directors have offered sufficient time and
efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion.

Of the three independent non-executive Directors at least one has
appropriate financial management expertise in compliance with the
Listing Rules. Each independent non-executive Director gives the
Company an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Board
considers these Directors to be independent under the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Five Board committees, namely the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee, the Option Shares
Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee have been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs. The Board has delegated the execution and daily
operations of the Group’s business to the management. However, clear
directions are given to the management as to the matters that must be
approved by the Board before decisions are made on behalf of the
Group.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board met 8 times during year 2015 under review at which the
Directors considered and approved significant matters including, among
other things, interim and final results of the Group, statutory financial
reports, change in Board members, acquisition of company and early
redemption of senior notes.

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows:

e Xk &l )

EEeE3 REAE

R-F-—IFOEFEARBIISREEE S
FEERSLERRMAEERERE ETE
EAKRE P HREFEXEE AEVBRS
EFEeXBEF QFAKREBEAERFREELR
BEIR -

BEEFHFEFTEEZNRALT

Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HESRIE
CEYS
Executive Directors HITES

Chu Mang Yee K&K 0/8
Chu Kut Yung KGR 0/8
Au Wai Kin GRS 6/8
Liao Ruo Qing BE&A 4/8
Xie Bao Xin e 7/8
Bao Wenge ) S A% 4/8

Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAKHTES
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 8/8
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver©® " = A R 2/3
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BEA 8/8
Ching Yu Lung(Nofe 2 3& QD %E(/Jfﬁfz) 3/3

15 additional Board meetings were held during year 2015 for the
purposes of approving some operational matters such as approval of the
provision of guarantees by the Company in respect of bank loans granted
to the Company’s subsidiaries and appointment of authorized
representative.
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BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETINGS

(Continued)

Board meetings attended by each of the Directors were as follows:

EEees BREAXEW

BREZHFEZSIZINRENET

Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HEgSRAE
CEYS
Executive Directors BITES

Chu Mang Yee KK 13/15
Chu Kut Yung KER 13/15
Au Wai Kin (e 14/15
Liao Ruo Qing BEE 14/15
Xie Bao Xin HEE 15/15
Bao Wenge 1 3% 15/15

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
Lee Tsung Hei, David =HEE 2/13
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver’°® " A LA 0/3
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BE)E 2/13
Ching Yu Lung®©®? 72 o gg M2 2/5

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the Directors with information on a timely basis regarding the
activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and meets
with the independent non-executive Directors to seek their views on the
business and operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which are available for inspection
by all Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

BOARD MEETINGS/GENERAL MEETINGS

(Continued)

During the year ended 31st December 2015, the Company held two
general meetings. The general meetings attended by the Directors were

& EER B @)

EEees BREAXEwW

BHE_Z-—AF+-_A=+—HILEFE K2R
ARTTMARRAE -EFHERREAEN

as follows: FRT
Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HESERE
BERH
Executive Directors BTES

Chu Mang Yee KA 0/2
Chu Kut Yung KGR 0/2
Au Wai Kin N ERE 2/2
Liao Ruo Qing BEE 2/2
Xie Bao Xin B 2/2
Bao Wenge B 3% 0/2

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKEHTES
Lee Tsung Hei, David =EE 072
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver™°®” e sk dmL ETD 0/0
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron Bk BE)E 2/2
Ching Yu Lung(Note 2) 5& ZZD %E (Ktit2) 0/0

Notes:

2.

1st July 2015.

Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver passed away on 9th April 2015.

Mr. Ching Yu Lung was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on

B T
1. HREEER-_SE—FRAFEMALBEHT -

2. BMBEEER T -—RAFtH - HEZERBL
FHTES -
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BRI @)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The three independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a
specific term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision A.4.1 with
respect to the appointment of non-executive directors for a specific term
subject to re-election. However, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by Shareholders at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company. In the opinion of the Board, this meets the objective of the CG
Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang
Yee. The Chairman is responsible for managing and providing leadership
to the Board in terms of formulating overall strategies, business directions
and policies of the Company. The Chairman is also responsible for
overseeing effective functions of the Board, application of good corporate
governance practices and procedures, and encourages the Directors to
make full and active contribution to the affairs of the Board. With the
support of the executive Directors and the Company Secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive complete and reliable information
in a timely manner.

The Company does not currently have any officer with the title Chief
Executive Officer. The daily operation and management of the Company
is monitored by the executive Directors and the senior management.

With the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, he ensures that the
funding requirements of the business are met and closely monitors the
operating and financial results against plans and budgets, taking remedial
action when necessary and advising the Board of any significant
developments and issues.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chu Mang Yee and Ms. Chu Kut Yung; and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Messrs. Lee Tsung Hei, David, Tan Leng
Cheng, Aaron and Ching Yu Lung. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for nomination and selection of Directors. Proposed new
Directors are selected based on skills and experience that will enable
them to make positive contributions to the performance of the Board.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Mang Yee and has
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
responsibilities and posted on the Company’s website. The principal
functions of the Nomination Committee include:

° to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service) of the Board and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

° to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nomination for directorships;

° to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

° to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular chairman and chief executive; and

° to review the board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board
Diversity Policy”), as appropriate, and review the measurable
objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Board
Diversity Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued) RBREZES@m
During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. Individual F R EHEE8@ 8T 7 — A e % - FARK S
attendance of the members is set out below: HREHENBELEINAT
Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HESBXRE
SERE
Chu Mang Yee KREMK 0/1
Chu Kut Yung RER 0/
Lee Tsung Hei, David ZEE 1/1
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver (passed away BARERZ-ZZE—RF
on 9th April 2015) /AN B #Et) 1/1
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BE)A 1/
Ching Yu Lung (appointed on 1st July 2015) BuE(R—_Z—HF+tA —HEZXMT 0/0
During the year, the Nomination Committee had performed the following F R 2R Z B8 D17 NH TE -
works:
e reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; e EHEZTE LB ABKLANK:

e evaluated the performance and contribution of the retiring Directors; ¢ A ETEE 2 RIEBNER &
and

e made recommendation to the Board for the appointment of new ¢ REZS@RHEEZTHEE2EH -
Director.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FNEES

The Remuneration Committee comprises all three independent non- HEMMZE € R 2 =LBIIIERITEEAK -
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for HMEZESc A EHHEFTeHELRRBAES &
assisting the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and retaining K& EEZENEBREERE  UWEASE 2 ¥
Directors and senior management of the highest caliber and experience FEEXNERE - FHEZE SN AEHE—EQ
needed to develop the Group’s business successfully. The Remuneraton FBEBZ2F > AUFIGT AR EELSRE
Committee is also responsible for the development of a far and EEBZHFMMEE  UWEREBIIRE 2 FMNES -
transparent procedure in determining the remuneration policies for the FHMEZEE @ T F AT EE XL HEFTFHE
Directors and senior management of the Company and for determining &;ETERBEHESN/EMTH  TERAK
their remuneration packages. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by AR @ EH - HFEINZE S 2 F EREN T ¢
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and has specific written terms of reference

which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities and are posted on

the Company’s website. The principal functions of the Remuneration

Committee include:
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

° formulation of remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

° establishing guidelines for the recruitment of the chief executive and
senior management;

° recommendation to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors (including non-executive Directors and
the chief executive) and senior management;

o review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

° determination of the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits-in-kind,
pension rights and compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

° make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

° review and approval of the compensation arrangements in
connection with dismissal or removal for misconduct to Directors
and senior management;

° determination of the criteria for assessing employee performance;
and

° consideration of the annual performance bonus for executive
Directors, senior management and general staff and making
recommendation to the Board.

The Company has adopted the model to delegate the determination of
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management to the Remuneration Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) FHEEE @

= o4 Ny 2

One meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during the year FHMEE @ RNERNBIT— N em AR T LIt E
to review and approve the remuneration of Directors. Individual Z %2 Bl - Rk S 1 Ee 30155875 0

attendance of the members is set out below: T~
Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HESBRE
CEYS
Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 1/1
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver (passed away mEAREMRZIZE—LF
on 9th April 2015) AN HEE) 11
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BREEE 11
Ching Yu Lung (appointed on 1st July 2015) RugE(R-_Z—AFtA—BEZE) 0/0
No Director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. MEEE2HBIREAT ZFHMH -

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising executve ARG ERERE(BEHTES) HEZE-_T—
Directors) of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2015 by HAF+=A=+—HIEFE 2 XA 75

band is set out below: N
Remuneration band (HK$) Number of individuals
AR (BT AE
$0 to $1,000,000 0% 7T 21,000,000 7T 3
$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001 7% 7T = 2,000,000 7% 7T 3
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 3,000,0007% 7T 2
$3,000,001 to $4,000,000 3,000,001 7% 7T & 4,000,000/% 7T 2

Further details of the executive Directors’ remuneration for the year BHEHNTEZEBE_Z-—LF+_HA=+—H
ended 31st December 2015 are disclosed in Note 28 to the financial IEFE 2 HMBIFFIEHRBEN M B HREM 28 -

statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION ZEE 2B S

During the year, the fees payable to the Company’s auditor for auditand F W LEZ LR EZE@REEN TR QA

audit related services amounted to HK$7,565,000 (2014: HK$ $6,055,000) 1% &Ah 2 & A A& 7,565,000/ 7L (=& — 0 £

and no fee (2014: nil) was paid for non-audit services. 6,055,000 7T ) - I #E B IE T R X E A
BRA(CZCE—HF:FT)-
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
Directors. It is chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David. The Board is of the
opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised to
obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice if it
considers necessary. The Audit Committee has written terms of reference
which are posted on the Company’s website. The principal functions of
the Audit Committee include:

° to make recommendations on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of such
appointments;

° to develop and implement policies on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

° to monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual and
interim reports to ensure that the information presents a true and
balanced assessment of the Group’s financial position;

° to ensure the management has fulffiled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system;

° to review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is allocated
with adequate resources and is effective; and

° to review the external auditor's management letter and any
questions raised by the auditor to the management and the
management’s response.

In year 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an assessment
of the Group’s internal control systems, business management and
preventions against fraud and other irregularities. With respect to the
results of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2014, the
Audit Committee reviewed with the senior management and the external
auditor of the Company, their respective audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters. This review by the Audit
Committee included an appraisal of the integrity of the financial
statements and the annual report of the Company. The Audit Committee
also reviewed the Group’s interim results for the six months ended 30th
June 2015 as well as the external auditor’s remuneration. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection, appointment or resignation of external auditor.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations to
the Board after each meeting. During the year 2015, there were two
Audit Committee meetings. Individual attendance of the members is set
out below:

EREZEEE @

EREZEERNBTACHERYERNESSERE
T ERRHEER - —ZT—HEEETM
REBERZEEEZ HEAIKELREZNER
;YW

Number of

Meetings attended/

Number of

meetings held

HESBERE

=N

Lee Tsung Hei, David TEE 2/2
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver (passed away BAERZZE—AF

on 9th April 2015) /AN E Bt 11

Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PR BEA 2/2

Ching Yu Lung (appointed on 1st July 2015) EnEWR_Z—HAF+tA—BEZT) 1/1

BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee, two other Board Committees have been
established to assist the Board in the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee

The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee was
established on 4th October 2005 and presently comprises the three
independent non-executive Directors, and chaired by Mr. Lee Tsung Hei,
David. The primary function of the Connected Transactions/Related Party
Transactions Committee is to review all connected transactions and
related party transactions to ensure that they are conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group and to recommend to the Board corrective measures in such
transactions if needed.

110 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

EEZEE

RiIRRZEE - # g
NERIZIMEEEEER
TR

(1) %E?&%/Eﬁﬁki?&%éé

BERS/ MEALRSZECER -_ZFT0
FHAMBKY BRIKBEBE=ZRBIIF

5/ AEANLRGEEG T EREREHM
EREXGRBEALRS UBARZERS
TIRAREZAER - REBBEFRIER
FGRFRET IR EFTERRARERINES
SREFBMLER-



Corporate Governance Report (continued)

NN -
A 5 B 18 WOl ()
BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) EEZEE W
(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party (1) I%ﬁ EXG BEALIRZZEZE
Transactions Committee (Continued) =400
During the year 2015, two meetings were held by the Connected WR_-_E—FHREFE  f&E %/Fﬁk/\j:x%
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee. Individual CEEeRIT T _RNeH L EBEgrRENRE
attendance of the members is set out below: B FEZez AKX ELE2EMNE RET]
wm
Number of
Meetings attended/
Number of
meetings held
HEEBERE
CEYS
Lee Tsung Hei, David == 2/2
Wong Shing Kay, Oliver (passed away BHAEX(RZ-ZZE—RF
on 9th April 2015) /g A B Et) 2/2
Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron FRBE B 2/2
Ching Yu Lung (appointed on 1st July 2015) RinE(WR-_Z— A+ —BEEE) 0/0

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November 2005
and comprises two executive Directors. Its primary function is to deal
with the allotment and issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise
of options granted or to be granted under the Company’s share option
scheme adopted on 4th November 2002.

No meeting was held by the Option Shares Committee during the year
2015.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara of Minter Ellison, an external service provider,
has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretary since
September 1997. The primary contact person of the Company is Mr. Au
Wai Kin, an executive Director.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Mok Wai Kun, Barbara
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the year ended 31st December 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance and legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in November 2013. The
Board Diversity Policy sets out its approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance and endeavours to
ensure that the Board has the appropriate balance and level of skills,
experience and perspectives required to support the execution of its
business strategies. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

The Board has set measurable objectives (in terms of gender, skills and
experience) to implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such
objects from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain
the progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Nomination
Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy.

The Company considers that the current composition of the Board is

considered well-balanced and of a diverse mix appropriate for the
business of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance, position and prospects. It is also responsible
for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group’s financial position on a going-concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. The management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge
these responsibilities.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2015, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, and have made judgement and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits as laid down in the Listing Rules.

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and Shareholders’
interests. The Directors confirm that the Group, through its Internal
Control Department, performs regular checks on office procedures,
practices and systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintains proper accounts and ensures compliance with regulations. The
regular reviews also cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group. The Internal Control Department reports directly to the Group
Supervisory Committee which in turn reports independently to the Board.
The Internal Control Department is independent of all management
functions of the Group and has direct and independent access to the
Board. Summaries of major audit findings and control weaknesses, if
any, are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

For the year ended 31st December 2015, no frauds and irregularities,
internal control deficiencies or infringement of laws, rules and regulations
have come to the attention of the Audit Committee to cause it to believe
that the system of internal controls is inadequate. The Board is satisfied
with the adequacy of the system of internal control of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the board remains informed and relevant.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
1 38 B 36 T (a0

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING (continued)

All Directors have been provided with training on their duties and
responsibilities as a director of a listed company and the compliance
issues under the Listing Rules. The Company continuously updates
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure their compliance and
enhance their awareness of their continuing obligations as Directors and
good corporate governance practices.

During the year, each of the Directors had been provided with training
materials regarding amendments to the Listing Rules. Each of the
Directors had noted and studied the training materials provided by the
Company. The Directors had provided the Company with their respective
training records pursuant to the CG Code. During the year, all Directors
had participated in appropriate continuous professional development by
way of attending training or reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business or to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and
communications with its investors. Communication have been maintained
with the media, analysts and fund managers through meetings.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
Shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with timely
annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are effectively
informed of the Group’s status and developments. General presentations
are made immediately after the announcement of financial results. The
website of the Group is also updated regularly to keep investors and the
general public informed of the latest development of the Group.

The Company’s annual general meetings allow the Directors to meet and
communicate with Shareholders, providing a forum for the Shareholders’
views to be communicated to the Board. Both Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend. External auditors are also available
at the annual general meetings to address Shareholders’ queries.
Separate resolutions are proposed for each issue considered at the
annual general meetings. The 2015 annual general meeting circular was
distributed to all Shareholders not less than 20 clear business days prior
to the annual general meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution and other relevant information. The procedures for conducting
a poll were explained by the chairman presiding at the annual general
meeting at the beginning of the meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Shareholder(s)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, request the Board to convene a special general
meeting (“SGM”) for transaction of any business specified in the
requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting and must be
signed by all the requisitionist(s) (may consist of one or several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists) and
deposited at the registered office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1
Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The SGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
requisition. In the event that the Board fails to proceed to convene the
SGM within twenty-one days of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section
74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Shareholders’ right to propose resolutions at
general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (i) not less
than 100 Shareholders, may submit to the Company a written request
stating the resolution intended to be moved at an annual general meeting
of the Company or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
1 38 B 36 T (a0

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (continued)

Shareholders’ right to propose resolutions at
general meeting (Continued)

The written request/statement must be signed by all the requisitionists
and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one
or more of the requisitionists, and it must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company (Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda) or at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong (Suites
3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong
Kong) for the attention of the Company Secretary, not less than six (6)
weeks before the annual general meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one (1) week before the general
meeting in case of any other requisition. Provided that if an annual
general meeting is called for a date six (6) weeks or less after the
requisition has been deposited, the requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited
for the purposes thereof.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and any such
statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders entitled to have notice of
the meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the resolution or statement
on each such Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice
of the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given to any
other Shareholder by giving notice of the general effect of the resolution
in any manner permitted for giving him notice of meeting of the Company,
provided that the copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the
resolution shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner and,
so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of the meeting and,
where it is not practicable for it to be served or given at that time, it shall
be served or given as soon as practicable thereafter.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to put enquires to
the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. In respect of other
enquiries, Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through
the below contact details and we will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. The contact details are as follows:

Address: Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor
Jardine House
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong
Tel No.: (852) 2537 3086
Fax No.: (852) 2537 2834
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group’s business requires outstanding talent who can assist the
Group to transform and develop. As such, attracting, training and
retaining talent have become the key tasks of the Group’s Human
Resources Department. In 2015, we made efforts to develop and retain
outstanding staff of the Group while recruiting external talent. The
voluntary turnover rate of the Group for the whole year of 2015 was
12.6%. Under the Group’s public and transparent promotion mechanism,
staff are given the priority on all vacancies through internal recruitment;
and all promotions have to be announced on the Group’s system to all
staff before implementation. Meanwhile, the Group has fully launched the
talent hierarchy training program to nurture suitable talent for the long-
term development of the Group.

HE Potential Program*

A “HE Potential Program” was implemented by the Group on the basis of
the Group's internal job grading system and after comprehensive
consideration of the development pattern of staff.

The “HE Potential Program” is a leadership training and development
program based on our corporate development strategy. It targets at our
junior management, middle management and senior management. The
aim of this program is to improve the Group’s strategic deployment and
consolidation of resources.

In 2015, the Group implemented a full-scale “HE High-Potential Staff
Development Program” under the above program. Training sessions on
fundamental management knowledge including “Becoming a Manager,”
“Managing Teams” and “Analyzing and Solving Problems” were
conducted for junior management staff to heighten their awareness about
their new roles and reposition themselves accordingly, thereby enhancing
their management capabilities while learning how to analyze and solve
problems in order to achieve targets as team leaders.

* The “HE” in "HE Potential Program” represents “Core Power of Hopson”
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For middle management staff, training was focused on implementation of
strategies, operational management, engineering management, risk
control management, and marketing and strategic management to boost
the ability of our middle management staff in thinking from different
perspectives and dealing with problems of interdepartmental processes.

Under the program, training for senior management staff was mainly
focused on areas such as widening their horizons, setting benchmarks,
and strategy formulation and implementation.

In 2015, the number of HE potential staff enrolments in training programs
was nearly 300, which was close to 30 training hours per person.

HE Manpower Program*

The Group continued to conduct campus recruitment in 2015, and
employed 38 outstanding graduates from key universities nationwide to
participate in “HE Manpower Program”. Hopson believes that high quality
management trainees are the cornerstones of our future rapid
development, and leading them on the right path to capitalize on the
prevailing opportunities is the Group's key task. In the coming three
years, the Group will carry forward a series of training for management
trainees on an ongoing basis, including promotion of corporate values,
professional knowledge training, on-the-job training, management
knowledge training and project management. The Group is dedicated to
build a young and vibrant team of future leaders for Hopson.

Corporate Finance Elite Program

The Group has carried out extensive university-enterprises cooperation
with Zhujiang Management College of Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics, and jointly established “Hopson-Pearl River Finance Elite
Program” with Zhujiang Holdings Group to nurture professional talent.

The university-enterprises extensive cooperation has on one hand
echoed the education reform of higher schools while on the other hand,
developed new staff with practical financial application knowledge for the
Group. For the students, the elite program offers them the opportunities
to develop solid professional financial knowledge and put professionalism
into practice. In other words, the program realizes a win-win situation for
the students, the university and the Group. In 2015, the elite program has
nurtured a total of 52 students. They have added 8 commercial courses
during their spare time in the third year with a total of 224 course hours.
Meanwhile, the elite program also adds contents such as real estate life
cycle process management and corporate finance management in
accordance with the practical works of the Group. The program aims to
strengthen the communication and understanding between students and
the Group, and lay a solid foundation for the students to join the Group in
the future.

*

The “HE” in “HE Manpower Program” represents “Core Power of Hopson”
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Hopson Youth Foundation

The Hopson Youth Foundation was established on 29th April 2014 under
the proposition and the lead of the Chairman of the Board. The Hopson
Youth Foundation aims to promote Hopson’s corporate culture, support
the development of young employees, bring more happiness to staff,
assist in talent hierarchy building, strengthen staff cohesion and
competitiveness, thereby promoting collaborative growth between our
staff and Hopson in all domains.

Members of this youth organization, from the chief secretary to members
of council and committees, are all led by young people under 30-year-old
based on the operation principle of “majority decision”. This staff
autonomous managed organization is managed by the council which is
voted on by all employees of the Group, turning it into a development
ladder and growth platform for staff.

Staff Care

In order to provide a safe working environment for our employees and
protect them from occupational hazard, the Group adopts a series of
safety measures. For example, monitoring devices are installed in offices
to ensure the personal and property safety of our employees. In addition,
the Group also formulates contingency plans to deal with emergent
situations. For instance, emergency accesses are designed in our office
buildings to ensure safe evacuation of employees and vehicles in case of
emergency. Furthermore, the Group will at once contact the relevant
government departments to maintain order when accidents happen.

To protect employees from occupational hazard, the Group enters into
labour contracts with employees in strict compliance with the
requirements of Labour Contract Law of the PRC. The Group states in
the labour contracts that necessary safety measures and safety
protective equipment are provided to our employees. The Group strictly
prohibits construction irregularities to protect employees from industrial
accidents and minimize occupational hazard.
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Sustainability Report (continued)
] A R R )

To fight against child and forced labour, identification documents of new
employees are checked during their enrollment process to ensure that
they have reached the legal working age as stipulated in the Labour Law
of the PRC. During enrollment, the Group requires new employees to
provide bank accounts and bank cards of their own with filings by the
Group to ensure that salaries are received by the employees. If child
labour or forced labour are found, the Group will assist to transfer the
person responsible for the violation to the relevant labour departments for
enforcement of laws.

The Group organizes annual checkup, travel, various sports and cultural
leisure activities, awards ceremony, annual dinner and other activities for
staff each year to show our care for staff, and enhance team
communication and cohesion.

In the office areas, air-purifiers are always installed, green plants are
changed regularly and other measures such as decoration for special
festivals are implemented in order to provide a good office environment
for staff. The Group also prepares festival gifts for staff and their families
on traditional festivals and on father’'s day and mother’s day, so as to
show our care for employees and their families.

In 2015, the Group awarded a “Continuous Service Award” to each of
the 726 staff who has served the Group for more than 5 years to praise
their loyalty and continuous contribution to the Group. Among them,
there were 270 staff who have served for more than 10 years, and 11
staff who have served for more than 20 years.

To gain the understanding and support from the family members of staff,
the Group has organized a “family day” in 2015, in forms such as games,
fun sports and picnic, to enhance communication between staff
members and their families, and let staff’'s family members understand
the Group's corporate development and achievements, thereby
increasing the staff’s family members’ understanding and support on the
staff's work.
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Awards in human resources received by the
Group in 2015

Hopson adopts the corporate culture ideology of “mutualism with integrity
and innovation” to continuously attract numerous like-minded outstanding
talent. The Group believes that only by establishing sustainable human
resources management system can we promote interaction between the
staff and the corporate and work together towards “mutual success”.

1. 2015 China Human Resources Management Top Ten
Best Practices Prize

On 21st November 2015, the School of Business of Renmin
University of China and Chinese Human Resources Theory and
Practice Association co-organized the “2015 5th Award Ceremony
of China’s Human Resources Management Institute”. Hopson was
awarded “2015 China Human Resource Management Top Ten
Best Practices Prize” in recognition of its talent management
practices and achievements. Nine other outstanding enterprises
which shared the honour with Hopson included Ping An Group,
Tencent Group, DiDi Chuxing, China Minsheng Bank, and
Jiaduobao Group.

2. 2015 China Real Estate Best Employer Enterprise

On 26th December 2015, the “2015 China Real Estate Human
Resources Summit Forum” organized by China Real Estate
Association named Hopson as one of the “2015 Top 30 China’s
Real Estate Best Employer Enterprises”.

The “2015 China’s Real Estate Best Employer Enterprise” award
received is yet another affirmation to Hopson. The Group’s staff are
mostly from prestigious colleges and universities as well as
renowned enterprises. Here, our employees enjoy competitive
salaries, wide development platforms, good promotion channels
and comprehensive training systems. In addition, to constantly
increase our staff's happiness and sense of belonging, Hopson is
dedicated in delivering benefits to our staff, including organizing
projects such as family day, Chinese Valentine’s Day party, and
joining Marathon competition from time to time, with a view to
providing staff with the space to achieve balanced development of
soul and body, enabling them to fully dedicate into career
development during working hours.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance staff’'s sense of social responsibility and cultivate community
spirit, Hopson organizes unique social welfare activities in order to give
back to our society and fulfill social responsibility.

Donations after the “Tianjin Blast”

In the massive explosion that rocked Tianjin Binhai New District on 12th
August 2015, local transportation infrastructure and residential area were
damaged in different degrees. As of 13th of August, the explosion has
caused 44 deaths, including 12 firefighters; more than 520 people were
hospitalized, 66 of them were heavily injured. In order to assist the Tianjin
victims to recover from the disaster as soon as possible, and the injured
to get well soon, several staff members of Hopson rushed to the blood
donation center to donate blood immediately after learning the incident.
On the next day, in order to provide a bit of help in the rescue, 1,000 face
masks and 250 disposable raincoats donated by Hopson Youth
Foundation arrived the frontline of Tianjin, and were passed to the
volunteers of the Tianjin Volunteer Alliance for use.

Visiting Sunvillage Campaign

As children of inmates in China, the kids in Sunvillage are unlikely to
receive relevant welfare benefits from the government and social welfare
institutions. In 2015, Hopson made arrangements for its staff to visit
Sunvillage and formed teams to help the kids in preparing meals and
farm work. In addition, our staff also play with the kids, tell stories to the
kids and tutor the kids on their homework, with a view to giving them
warmth and care. To prepare for the long and cold winter, Hopson
volunteers helped pick grapes in the vineyard of Sunvillage, and
purchased these grapes to assist Sunvillage in raising funds to buy coal
for the winter, so as to ensure that the basic needs of the kids could be
met. The Group hopes that the life of the kids would no longer be
clouded by their parents’ misdeeds, and that the kids would be treated
equally and entitled to the same rights of having a family of their own and
embarking on their own career.
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Following Tzu Chi Foundation to distribute winter
aid

Yi County in Hebei is a deprived mountain area where local residents
suffer from extreme lack of supplies for the cold winter, making it difficult
to maintain a normal life. In 2015, Hopson Youth Foundation, together
with Tzu Chi Foundation, went to the deprived mountain area in Yi
County, Hebei, to distribute winter supplies to villagers so that they could
have a fruitful winter and a prosperous new year. The Group hopes that
this annual distribution of winter supplies can help fulfil our social
responsibility and give back to the society.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group mainly selects its suppliers through tenders. Suppliers who
participate in a tender are mostly renowned brands in the market and
who have been suppliers of services or raw materials of other large-scale
real estate developers.

Each time the Group invites three to six suppliers for tender. Upon
receiving the quotations for services/raw materials, the Group’s
management will compare these quotations with the historical price,
benchmark prices or market prices of the services/raw materials, so as to
ensure the quoted prices are reasonable. As long as the technical
requirements are met, tender is in principal awarded to the supplier
offering the lowest reasonable price.

The Group enters into agreements with suppliers which are awarded with
tenders, and conducts assessments on these suppliers quarterly. The
Group mainly assesses the product quality, supply capability, on-sales
services and after-sales services of the suppliers, so as to ensure the
performances of the suppliers are able to meet the Group’s standards
continuously.

To prevent bribery, extortion, fraud and money-laundering, an Integrity
Agreement is attached to each of our service agreements with suppliers
which regulates the employees of both parties to work in an honest
attitude, so as to maintain a working culture of integrity and self-
discipline, and prevent all sorts of improper acts. The Group also sets
clear behavior standards and regulations on penalties against possible
non-compliances such as bribery and fraud in the Regulations on Strict
Enforcement of Orders and Prohibitions and Monitoring and Disciplinary
Management System of Employees’ Behaviors of our internal guidelines.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group places great importance on customer relationship
management. In order to improve customers’ satisfaction and increase
their desire to purchase Hopson'’s products and services again, our sales
team is committed to provide customers with pre-sales, on-sales and
after-sales services for a great variety of products and services.

For this reason, the Group is establishing a customer services center with
a hope to receive customers’ feedbacks in a more efficient and
systematic manner in the future. The Group expects that by helping to
deliver better customer experience on the Group’s products and
collecting various representative and constructive opinions from
customers, the customer services center can contribute to improve the
standard, procedure and monitoring method on the Group’s products.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Energy Saving Environmental Friendly Office

The Group has been exploring green management measures for energy
saving in offices, and strives to reduce resource consumption and waste
as far as possible.

For example, Hopson always encourages staff to adopt good practices
in using electricity, such as setting computers to “standby” mode if they
would not be used for a period of time, unplugging power plugs after
switching off computers and using zoned lighting when working overtime.

In order to advocate paperless office, the Group adheres to the principle
of “Be determined not to print those not allowed to, try not to print those
unnecessary ones, reduce printing inevitable ones”. Documents for
internal circulation must be printed on both sides except for formal
documents. In addition, since the mid of 2014, the Group’s annual
reports and interim reports were printed with papers recognized by the
Forest Stewardship Council to ensure that the papers used are from
forestry operators who adopt a responsible attitude towards the
ecosystem and the community. All such measures of the Group are
aimed at reducing usage of papers and damages to the ecosystem
caused by the use of papers.

Energy Saving and Environmental Friendly
Buildings

The Group invests enormous resources to gradually introduce sustainable
development and green home living concept. To provide healthy,
practical and highly efficient space, and green buildings that coexist
harmoniously with the nature, the Group incorporates energy saving and
green concept into the long-term development.
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The Group considers the environmental friendly and green building
concept from the planning and designing phase to the construction and
employment phase of newly developed projects in a comprehensive
manner. By efficiently leveraging on local conditions and combining
various variables and factors on the surrounding environment, the Group
can maximize land resources utilization. Apart from protecting the original
vegetation and making reasonable arrangement on location and
orientation, the Group also applies low energy consumption building
envelope (including doors, windows, walls, and roofs) and a series of
energy saving products and technology (such as increasing the utilization
of new energy resources and recycled energy resources like residual
heat) in construction.

The Group clearly stipulates in the internal guidelines of “Management
Standard of Safe Construction Site and Modern Construction Practices”
that effective measures shall be adopted during construction in
accordance with national and local regulations to strengthen the control
and management of noise, dust, waste gases and waste water, and
handle the emission of waste water and waste oil properly. The Group
strictly adheres to the internal guidelines during construction with an aim
to reducing the emission of waste gases and greenhouse gases, water
and land pollution due to sewage discharge and generation of harmful or
harmless wastes as much as possible.

The Group usually uses large external windows in its buildings, which not
only provide abundant sunlight and a great view, but also bring in natural
light and ventilation. In order to reduce heat absorption and therefore the
burden on cooling systems, the Group not only uses new door and
window materials with good sealing properties, but also bay windows,
external shading measures and vacuum heat insulating low-E glasses on
external windows. To make reasonable use of the underground spaces,
the Group uses designs such as light well, skylights, sunken plaza and
semi-basement, which not only save more land space but also reduce
energy consumption by introducing natural light and ventilation.

While striving to minimize the impact of its construction projects in terms
of light pollution, noise pollution and waste disposal, the Group has
incorporated a great variety of green building elements into its
developments, such as the installation of rooftop solar panel systems for
the utilization of renewable energy and as effective heat shields which
reduce heat absorption and hence the burden on cooling systems, in an
effort to create a comfortable living environment. In another step taken to
reach its energy savings goal by improving energy efficiency, the Group
has acquired an intelligent system for a better control of the cooling units
and lighting systems, along with other proactive measures including the
use of energy-efficient cooling units, central ventilation systems and
related thermal recycling devices and energy-efficient lightbulbs. With the
modified building design that provides heat shields and the upgraded
equipment and system, the overall energy consumption of our
developments has been lowered to a large extent.
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The Group also uses water resources more efficiently. For example, we
design a rainwater collection system to introduce rainwater into rainwater
storage pool for outdoor area landscaping and greenery watering. We
also apply waste-water system in areas with relatively low demand on
water quality, such as irrigation, landscaping, vehicle wash down and
toilet flushing. In addition, high efficient water-saving irrigation method
was also adopted in landscape irrigation. In order to reduce noise
pollution from transportation and mitigate heat island effect, the Group
attaches much importance on rebuilding ecological landscape in its
construction design. We also reinforce outdoor permeable surface design
to increase underground water reserves and reduce surface run-off.

The Group uses water-saving cleaning equipment and electric control
system in public washrooms to save water resources. The Group also
applies air environment simulation analysis to precisely simulate problems
such as air flow, air quality, heat transfer, pollution and degree of comfort
while strengthening windproof and air ventilation design to improve
comfortness of the living environment and building quality. The Group is
attempting to use fresh air processing units to handle the problem of
indoor fine suspended particulates with a view to providing good air
quality for residents.

The Group utilizes local materials for construction as much as possible to
reduce energy consumption during transportation. Besides construction
materials with outstanding performance and reusable materials, the
Group also adopts construction designs with lower resources
consumption and lesser environmental impact. We incorporate green
concept in the design of building facades and avoid decoration with no
function under the design principle of functionality. We create more
flexible internal space in commercial complexes and commercial offices
through complex space design and the use of flexible partition.

The Group also introduces environmental friendly and energy saving
elements in other construction details. Apart from using LED luminaires in
the public areas of buildings and T5 high-efficient energy-saving light
tubes in car parks, we also install sound-light control time-delay switches
along staircases in order to save energy and increase energy efficiency of
properties. Our water supply system is installed with variable frequency
water supply device to minimize the consumption of electricity to the
largest extent. Other measures include the use of environment-friendly
refrigerant in clubhouses’ air-conditioning system to reduce environmental
pollution and the application of central solar water heating system to save
electricity.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 131 to 249, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31st December 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

R T & )

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31st December 2015, and of their financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30th March 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Ak o B SR Pl AR

As at 31st December 2015
RZE—RF+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—MmF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M & FE T FHT
Assets BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Land costs + b AR AR 6 1,976,377 1,869,029
Prepayments for acquisition of land g B + 30 FB < 30E 15 126,980 134,852
Prepayments for construction work ERIEZBNNHRIE 15 587,141 1,480,246
Properties and equipment EYE L 7 3,958,050 4,060,382
Investment properties "EYE 8 28,935,997 25,474,413
Goodwill S 10 39,912 42,386
Investments in associates REE AR ZEE 11 148,579 158,290
Investments in joint ventures NELERRZEE 12 7,778,864 8,102,176
Available-for-sale financial assets A E B E 13 3,129,699 3,342,755
Deferred tax assets RIET IR E BE 21 402,162 341,466
47,083,761 45,005,995
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land U B - 3tb 38 1t | 15 9,658,469 10,241,218
Properties under development for sale AItHEZERETME 9 49,836,168 50,742,439
Completed properties for sale AItHEZ B &K M E 25,196,674 28,277,161
Financial assets at fair value through profit or BEAFESRERIERZ
loss B EE 14 13,101 13,607
Accounts receivable JE 5 B 5K 16 425,296 385,076
Prepayments, deposits and other current assets ~ FE {1 318 - 1R & H % &)
BE 18 2,497,694 2,300,768
Due from a joint venture FEW—MRE & & AR IE 38 32,031 —
Due from associates FE W B 2 N Rl R IE 38 210 223
Due from related companies JFE W RE 8 X B 508 38 3,899 9,984
Pledged/charged bank deposits BRI/ B RITER 17 676,049 1,223,534
Cash and cash equivalents HERHEESZEEY 17 4,753,340 5,486,993
93,092,931 98,681,003
Total assets WEE 140,176,692 143,686,998
Equity E=
Capital and reserves attributable to AATREFTEAEMLREK
the Company’s equity holders LE#E
Share capital [N 23 223,412 224,392
Reserves G 25 54,112,981 55,375,974
54,336,393 55,600,366
Non-controlling interests ez 4| RE S 24 2,181,998 2,385,072
Total equity ESEE 56,518,391 57,985,438
EHEEEEBERAR T —HEFH
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
%A B R UL (1)

As at 31st December 2015
R—_ZE—RF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E—-FF —E—mF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M &t FE T FET
Liabilities af&
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Land cost payable JE A5 £ AR AR 18 57,638 61,212
Borrowings TE 20 35,516,944 36,747,468
Due to non-controlling interests FEAT IR I RE2S 2 TR IB 38 538,205 571,574
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBAE 21 5,863,904 5,800,566
41,976,691 43,180,820
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable JE 15 BR 2K 19 7,354,186 8,746,455
Land cost payable JIE A~ £ b AR AR 18 83,092 88,832
Borrowings TE 20 11,188,721 12,638,362
Deferred revenue R E U A 11,937,499 10,290,304
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 3R I8 K H A FE < 5RIE 3,177,798 3,184,658
Due to an associate JE {5 — I Bt &8 2 B) 2 IR 38 6,588 6,996
Due to related companies JES BB AR 2 3RIE 38 596,329 88,232
Due to joint ventures ENEE AR ZHIE 38 3,473,505 3,112,088
Current tax liabilities REAFLIRE A E 22 3,863,892 4,364,813
41,681,610 42,520,740
Total liabilities BEHAE 83,658,301 85,701,560
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEE8E 140,176,692 143,686,998
Chu Mang Yee Chu Kut Yung
KRB KEB
Director Director
EF g

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated BNt Z MizE Jh It SHix & M SRR ALK I D
financial statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement
A W R 3R
For the year ended 31st December 2015

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—2-EfF C—TWF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
M & FE T FHT
Revenues Y = 5 12,845,184 17,044,862
Cost of sales FHE B (9,683,196) (11,798,197)
Gross profit £ F 3,161,988 5,251,665
Fair value gain on investment properties TEMERNTFEWER 8 1,334,369 1,222,228
Other (losses)/gains, net Hh(E8B) M= F8E 26 (37,481) 137,322
Selling and marketing expenses HERMIGHEEER (494,310) (383,522)
General and administrative expenses — W RITHEAR (1,296,371) (1,389,354)
Finance income B 75 M A 30 96,709 65,267
Finance costs B 75 B AR 30 (79,311) —
Share of (loss)/profit of associates DREEE A F (BB), R F 11 (484) 564
Share of profit of joint ventures DG & Qa5 T 12 154,196 91,023
Profit before taxation B A1 4 A 2,839,305 4,995,193
Taxation 7518 31 (1,257,267) (2,067,257)
Profit for the year FERR 1,582,038 2,927,936
Attributable to: &R -
Equity holders of the Company AATREFEA 1,645,942 2,947,301
Non-controlling interests JE 50 1) 1 A 25 (63,904) (19,365)
1,582,038 2,927,936
Earnings per share for profit attributableto ZFRAEQATREFE A
equity holders of the Company during EAENGTE 2
the year (in HK$ per share) EREN(ERBEBT)
— basic and diluted —EARREE 32 0.74 1.31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

22 I\ 2.
A A AR 3R
For the year ended 31st December 2015
HE_Z-—AF+_HA=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-EF —T-mEF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
K it FE T FHT
Profit for the year FERR 1,582,038 2,927,936
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hit2m(ER) WA
ltems that may be reclassified HignEmoms
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm2IEA -
Fair value (loss)/gain on available-for-sale AIEHENKEEEZ
financial assets AFESEE) S 13 (18,443) 686,941
Assets revaluation reserve realised upon HERFELNEMER
disposal of properties held for sale BR o EEEHREE 25(iif) (221,267) (683,301)
Revaluation gain upon transfer of land costs B+ M PR AN TN Y 2 KRR A
and properties and equipment to investment EREVERZ
properties EH M= 763,341 =
Deferred tax IR E T IR (86,531) 106,201
Currency translation differences EHE HERE (3,418,656) (300,009)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FEHMWEZEER
net of tax HRBE R (2,981,556) (90,168)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for FE2ME(EE), WA
the year Pl (1,399,518) 2,837,768
Attributable to: FEAh -
Equity holders of the Company RRAFRERE A (1,196,444) 2,865,173
Non-controlling interests eI M = (203,074) (27,405)
(1,399,518) 2,837,768

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated B[t Z Lot Eix & SRR AR S0 ©
financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
maBlaemaR

For the year ended 31st December 2015

HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-RE —ET—F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
K it FET FAET
Cash flows from operating activities RETEzEERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations JEEL/(FFA)ZHES 34 5,601,859 (639,325)
Interest received 2R 63,715 65,267
Hong Kong profits tax paid BRBEENEH (12,026) —
Mainland China corporate income tax paid BB ARREREMEH (706,326) (1,218,571)
Mainland China land appreciation tax paid B A AR B K B - b S (E A (605,533) (1,339,461)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating e EEEL(FTA)Z
activities e R 4,341,689 (3,127,090)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZEERE
Dividend income g B4 A 193,341 179,950
Additions of land costs B8 A L Hb Bk AR (2,529) (4,281)
Additions of properties and equipment BAYENKE (112,648) (343,089)
Additions of investment properties FTIBI B (1,719,948) (1,314,996)
Capital injection in a joint venture AET—HEERA = (2,434,8993)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of Weg—HKB AT
cash acquired HREESRE S (67,682) —
Decrease/(increase) in pledged/charged bank B W RTT
deposits TR D,/ (3 ) 490,368 (38,017)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEBFTRA IR S S5 (1,219,098) (3,955,326)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

HABlemERm

For the year ended 31st December 2015
HE-_ZT-—AFE+_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-—REF —ET—F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
K it THERT FH& T
Cash flows from financing activities AMETHCEERE
Interest paid RN PN (3,822,643) (3,645,630)
New short-term bank loans R HIRITER 3,877,909 6,328,543
New long-term bank loans P RERITE R 15,489,224 23,048,754
Repayments of bank loans BEETER (17,151,572) (19,259,985)
Redemption and repayment of senior notes BOREEELIEE (2,405,929) —
Advances from a joint venture RE—FHEEQRZBK 559,432 753,138
Repayment to related companies EEDRTHEEDF (27,230) (16,960)
Repurchase of own shares A E NG (67,529) (10,786)
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEFE B RS HE
interests — 120
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BMEEE (A EEXZ
activities ReFE (3,548,338) 7,198,344
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HeRELEEBYZ
equivalents CRL &), /18t 88 (425,747) 115,928
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January R—A—BZzHRER
REZEEY 5,486,993 5,389,295
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents R4 RIMELEEY 2
0 ¥ f5 18 (307,906) (18,230)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December R+ A=+—H 2
ReNBEESEEY 4,753,340 5,486,993
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated &M 2 M sEh It 42 & B ISR R AR EL D ©

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
2 M 2 5 Y

For the year ended 31st December 2015
HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HLEE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

AATRESEAEM
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
IF 2= )
% A< & R ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FE T FET
Balance at 1st January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—F—H
2 K 224,392 55,375,974 2,385,072 57,985,438
Profit for the year FE R A — 1,645,942 (63,904) 1,582,038
Other comprehensive Hi2mE(EER), KA
(loss)/income:
Fair value loss on available-for- 7] it H & Bf 74 & &
sale financial assets ZRAFEEE - (18,443) = (18,443)
Assets revaluation reserve HERFELEMER
realised upon disposal of I EEEMHS
properties held for sale - (221,267) = (221,267)
Revaluation gain upon transfer B 30 B AR AN
of land costs and properties MENEZER
and equipment to investment KREMERZ
properties &= WS — 763,341 — 763,341
Deferred tax IR IE - (86,531) — (86,531)
Currency translation differences & ¥ [& i, = %8 — (3,279,486) (139,170)  (3,418,656)
Other comprehensive loss for FEHMEEEE -
the year, net of tax MR E — (2,842,386) (139,170) (2,981,556)
Total comprehensive loss for FEEHEEIERRE
the year — (1,196,444) (203,074) (1,399,518)
Transactions with owners: HiFHEERS
Repurchase of own shares EAEIRN i) (980) (66,549) - (67,529)
Balance at 31st December 2015 W_ZZE—RAF+ A=
+— Rz &R 223,412 54,112,981 2,181,998 56,518,391
AHEBIREBBRAR T —HAFFR



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
A B E A% 5 B AR ()

For the year ended 31st December 2015
HE-_ZT-—AFE+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

ARRIAER B ARMA

Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
FE 2 ) 1
fi& A 15 = 5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT FAT FAT
Balance at 1st January 2014 R-E—NF—H—H
2 e 224,537 52,521,442 2,411,207 55,157,186
Profit for the year FE R A — 2,947,301 (19,365) 2,927,936
Other comprehensive Hip2mEKA (FB) :
income/(loss):
Fair value gain on available-for- 7] it & B i & &
sale financial assets ZANFEKZ = 686,941 = 686,941
Assets revaluation reserve HERIEHEMER
realised upon disposal of IR BEEENREE
properties held for sale — (5683,301) — (5683,301)
Deferred tax IR RE T I8 — 106,201 — 106,201
Currency translation differences S ¥ E 4 =58 — (291,969) (8,040) (300,009)
Other comprehensive loss for FEHEMEEER
the year, net of tax kIR — (82,128) (8,040) (90,168)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 4 E 2 HE W A (Ei8)
for the year 4% - 2,865,173 (27,405) 2,837,768
Transactions with owners: HIFHEERS
Repurchase of own shares LA N =g g (145) (10,641) - (10,786)
Capital contribution by non- SRRl R E
controlling interests — — 1,270 1,270
(145) (10,641) 1,270 (9,516)
Balance at 31st December 2014 M_-ZT—NHF+ = A
=+—B2z& 224,392 55,375,974 2,385,072 57,985,438

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated — BEMI 2 M3t it 45 & M SRR AR LB o
financial statements.

138 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the
development of residential properties in Mainland China. The Group
is also involved in property investment, hotel operations and
property management.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 30th March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the two years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties, available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which
are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In 2015, the Group adopted the following amendments of HKFRS,

which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st

January 2015.

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans —
Employee Contributions

Annual improvements 2010-2012  Improvements to HKFRSs
cycle

Annual improvements 2011-2013  Improvements to HKFRSs
cycle

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of these
amendments and considered that there was no significant impact
on the Group’s results and financial position.

Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards
that are not yet Effective

New Standards and Amendments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

FESHBREEME@

2.1 fREE % @)

R-F—0F AKEERMATR_FT—
hE-A-—HBacBRABENEHRLE
Mz BEHBERE LR ZEF -

BR G ERFE19% ERBEMAB—

SEHEN), BB f#t3
—E-TFE HEEVBHERS
—T-_FAH Bl 2 B

ZEFEUE

—E——FF BEBMBRS
T -=FAH Bl 2z B
ZFEEE

ARBERHERORSET2IHE B8
B 4 0 2K SR B 2 3 4R B R 4
EAYE-

R R 2 B R R R >
1537
#7375 B R 45 5T

Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHHs 2%
RN ETTHEEN
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative 1st January 2016
BB EIE15R (BFIA) 5= a2l —T-RE—-A—H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments)  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation 1st January 2016
and Amortisation
BB REUFIRREBSFHER HERBHEZAIEIFENEE —E-RF—-H—B
SE385% (5T 4°)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendments)  Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1st January 2016
ERGTEAUFEIRREBSFER BE  AEMEY —E-RF-H—H
EVALACCHES)
HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1st January 2016
BB EAE275 (BFTA) B BHRE 2 EwE —E-—RF-H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards
that are not yet Effective (Continued)

New Standards and Amendments (Continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

FESHBEEUE @

2.1 4R E % @)
i AREM 2 ZERRIBAEER 2 &

&l ()
#a] ZE A RAEET ()

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning
on or after
RUTBE#BHZ%E
MENEtHBER

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
BB HREERFEIR SRTA

1st January 2018
—E-\F-A—H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined
and Its Associate or Joint Venture

EEMBRELNFICREREEGT REEIEBERAAHAERAIZHE BRETE
AR F 285 (BFTA) BEHEIEA
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Investment entities: applying the consolidation 1st January 2016
exception
BEEMBHRELERFE105 REER: BAKa ARZAIMER —T-RF—H—H

EXRVBERELENFI12HRRE S
25T 2RI 25 28 5%

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 1st January 2016
Operations
BEEMBHRELFE IR UEFTER) WEHAKEEZ GTREE —E-XF—HA—H8
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1st January 2016
ERUBREERNFE145 EERIERP —T-RE—-HA—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1st January 2018
ERUBREERNFE155% REEFEHZ W —T-N\F—HA—H
Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle Improvements to HKFRSs 1st January 2016
T _EFFE_T-NFREHCFE HEBUKREER —T-RE—-HA—H

BUE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards
that are not yet Effective (Continued)

New Standards and Amendments (Continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of these new standards and amendments to existing standards,
certain of which are relevant to the Group’s operations and will give
rise to changes in accounting policies, disclosures or measurement
of certain items in the financial statements. However, the Group is
not yet in a position to ascertain their impact on its results and
financial position.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31st December.

(@ Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are an entity (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the group’s accounting policies.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as equity transactions-that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in the
associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(d) Joint arrangements

The Group applies HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under
HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements. Joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method. The assets that the Group
controls and liabilities that the Group incurs in relation to the joint
operations are recognised in the consolidated balance sheets on
an accrual basis and classified according to the nature of the item.
The expenses that the Group incurs and its share of revenue that it
earns from the joint operations are included in the consolidated
income statement.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in
the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive Directors who make
strategic and operational decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(@ Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured in Renminbi, which is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company and its
subsidiaries operate (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

() Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a

foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a
disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint ventures that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.5 Properties and equipment

Properties and equipment other than construction-in-progress are
stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the period in which they are
incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Properties and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel properties (superstructure) 28 to 30 years

Buildings Shorter of useful life of
50 years or lease term

Furniture and office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 3to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction-in-progress is investments in buildings on which
construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, management intends to hold for providing goods or
services in the ordinary course of business. These properties are
carried at cost which includes construction expenditures, borrowing
costs directly attributable to construction of such properties and
other direct costs, less any impairment losses. On completion, the
properties are transferred to the appropriate categories of
properties and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. No depreciation is provided for construction-in-progress
until they are completed and put into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated income statement.

2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property. Investment property also includes
property that is being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases are classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs and borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Valuation processes and techniques are described in Note 8.

Fair value measurement on property under construction is only
applied if the fair value is considered to be reliably measurable.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.
The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows
that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease
liabilities in respect of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the
financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values of investment property are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income and taken directly to
equity as a valuation of properties and equipment under HKAS 16.
However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Where a property for sale undergoes a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of an operating lease to another party, the
property is transferred to investment property.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

Where an investment property undergoes a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sale,
the property is transferred to inventories. A property’s deemed cost
for subsequent accounting as inventories is its fair value at the date
of change in use.

2.7 Properties under development for sale
and completed properties for sale

Properties under development for sale and completed properties
for sale are included in current assets at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The costs of properties under development for sale and completed
properties for sale consist of land costs, construction expenditures,
borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business as determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

2.8 Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash generating
units (“CGUSs”), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: (a)
at fair value through profit or loss, (b) loans and receivable, and (c)
available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current asset if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date, which are classified
as non-current assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the balance sheet date.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the assets. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in
the consolidated income statement within “other income/gains,
net”, in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of “other income/gains,
net” when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are
included in the consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale debt securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of “other income/gains, net”. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of “other income/gains, net”
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid
prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for
unlisted securities), the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little
as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets in impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the
securities are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment testing of accounts receivable is described in Note 2.11.

2.11 Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivable. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at
call with banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity share
capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are
cancelled.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial
asset or financial liability, including fees and commissions paid to
agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

2.15 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges in
respect of finance lease and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs. The exchange gains and losses
that are an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be incurred if the
entity had borrowed funds in its functional currency and the
borrowing costs actually incurred on foreign currency borrowings.
Such amounts are estimated based on forward currency rates at
the inception of the borrowings.

When the construction of the qualifying assets takes more than one
accounting period, the amount of foreign exchange differences
eligible for capitalisation is determined for each annual period and
are limited to the difference between the hypothetical interest
amount for the aforesaid functional currency borrowings and the
actual interest incurred for foreign currency borrowings. Foreign
exchange differences that did not meet the criteria for capitalisation
in previous years are included in other (losses)/gains, net and are
not capitalised in subsequent years.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred income tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.17 Employee benefits

Group companies operate defined contribution plans only. The
Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory or contractual basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sales of properties and services rendered in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is recognised as
follows:

(@) Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of the properties are transferred to the buyers,
which is when the construction of the relevant properties have been
completed, notification of delivery of properties have been issued to
the buyers and collectability of related receivables pursuant to the
sale agreements is reasonably assured.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to

transfer of the significant risks and rewards of the properties are

included as deferred revenue under current liabilities.

(b) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period

of the relevant leases.

(c) Property management fees, property design
fees and marketing consultancy fees

Property management fees, property design fees and marketing

consultancy fees are recognised when the services are rendered.

(d) Hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon provision of
services.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(e) Construction services

Revenue arising from construction services for decoration work is
recognised when the revenue of the sale of the related properties is
recognised.

() Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

(9 Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
with it and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate. Grants
relating to the purchase of properties and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets. Amounts received for which
the earning process has not been completed are accounted for as
deferred revenue.

(h) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases.

(@ The Group is the lessee other than operating
lease of land use rights

Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee) (Continued)

(b) The Group is the lessee under operating lease of
land use rights

The Group made upfront payments to obtain operating leases of
land use rights for property development.

For land use rights to be developed for investment properties which
are measured at fair values, the upfront payments are included in
the cost of investment properties and accounted for as finance
lease (Note 2.6).

For land use rights to be developed for hotel properties and self-
use buildings, the upfront payments are separately recorded as
assets and amortised over the periods of the land use rights on a
straight-line basis. During the period of time that is required to
develop the properties for their intended use, the land amortisation
is capitalised as the cost of construction-in-progress. During other
periods, the land amortisation is charged to the consolidated
income statement.

For land use rights to be developed for properties for sale, the
upfront payments are included as properties under development for
sale or completed properties for sale.

2.21 Insurance contracts

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect of
mortgage facilities provided to certain property purchasers and
guarantees provided to its joint ventures and subsidiaries as
insurance contracts.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities under
its insurance contracts using current estimates of future cash flows.
Changes in carrying amount of these insurance liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s Directors/shareholders.
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Ao B S 5 A R ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow and fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management policy
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effect on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group regularly monitors its exposure and
currently considers not necessary to hedge any of these financial
risks.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise on account of
monetary assets and liabilities being denominated in a currency
that is not the functional currency; differences resulting from the
translation of financial statements into the Group’s presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the Group’s subsidiaries operate in Mainland China, with
most of the transactions denominated in Renminbi. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi against US dollar and Hong Kong dollar. It has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of the foreign exchange control
promulgated by the Mainland China government.

At 31st December 2015, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by one percentage-point against US dollar with all other variables
held constant (assuming no capitalisation of exchange difference),
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$31.6 million (2014:
HK$55.3 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of US dollar denominated
senior notes, bank deposits and borrowings.

At 31st December 2015, if Renminbi had weakened/strengthened
by one percentage-point against HK dollar with all other variables
held constant (assuming no capitalisation of exchange difference),
post-tax profit for the year would have been HK$3.9 million (2014:
HK$4.2 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of HK dollar denominated bank deposits
and borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to deposits with
banks and financial institutions and credit exposures to customers.
The Group has credit policies in place and exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and financial
institutions by monitoring credit ratings. At 31st December 2015,
deposits with banks amounted to HK$5,428 million (2014:
HK$6,709 million) were placed with a number of international/
national/provincial/municipal financial institutions with sound credit
ratings.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group normally
receives deposits or progress payments from sales of residential
properties prior to completion of the sales transactions, and bills
customers in advance for property management service.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
property units and has provided guarantees to secure the
purchasers’ obligations for repayments. If a purchaser defaults on
the payment of its mortgage during the term of the guarantee, the
bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount under the loan and any accrued interest
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the
property sales proceeds received from the customers and sell the
property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is minimal (see also Note 35).

The Group monitors the exposure to credit risk in respect of
amounts due from joint ventures through jointly controlling their
financial and operating policy decisions and reviewing their financial
positions on a regular basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (other than equity securities included
in available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance, and guarantees provided to third parties.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable is set out in Note 16.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group regularly and closely
monitors its current and expected liquidity requirements to maintain
its rolling cash flow at a level which is considered adequate by the
Group to finance the Group’s operations and to maintain sufficient
cash to meet its business development requirements.

Management has periodically prepared cash flow projections and
the Group has a number of alternative plans to offset the potential
impact on the Group’s business development and current
operation, should there be circumstances that the anticipated cash
flow may be affected by any unexpected changes in global/
Mainland China economic conditions. The Company’s Directors
consider that the Group will be able to maintain sufficient financial
resources to meet its needs.

As at 31st December 2015, the Company’s current liabilities
exceeds current assets by HK$116,255,000 (2014: HK$60,270,000).
After considering the adequacy of funds on a Group basis, the
Directors consider that the Company will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities by relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity dates. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 Bfi5E [ EE @)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBEZRK @
Less than Between1 Between 2 Over
1year and 2years and 5 years 5 years

1E R 1228 2FEGE HBiB5E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH& T TH&TT TH&TT F& T

At 31st December 2015 N-—E—HE
+T=—A=+—8H
Borrowings (including interests) EE(BEEMNE) 14,497,665 10,741,736 23,586,111 7,379,821
Accounts payable and accruals and JE {HBR 5%~ FEET R IB &
other payables (Note) H b JE N FRE (B aE) 10,221,845 - = —
Land cost payable JE 1< + AR AN 83,092 57,638 = =
Due to an associate BN —REBENE 2
WIE 6,588 — — —
Due to related companies FERTREE N 7] 2 TR I8 596,329 - - -
Due to joint ventures FENEZ N a2 IE 3,473,505 - - -
Due to non-controlling interests FEAS IR R 2S 2
IF — — - 538,205
28,879,024 10,799,374 23,586,111 7,918,026
At 31st December 2014 R-ZEBE—OF
+T=ZA=+—H
Borrowings (including interests) EEBEENE) 16,214,978 16,571,276 18,395,118 8,292,342
Accounts payable and accruals and JETBE RN - JEE 1B &
other payables (Note) HipErzkmE(faE) 11,590,301 — — =
Land cost payable JE <t £ 3 BX X 88,832 61,212 = =
Due to an associate BN —REBENE 2
WIE 6,996 — — —
Due to related companies FERTREE N 7] 2 TR I8 88,232 — — —
Due to joint ventures EfTE AT ZKIE 3,112,088 — — —
Due to non-controlling interests FE A5 SEE I M #E 2
RIA — — — 571,574
31,101,427 16,632,488 18,395,118 8,863,916
Note: Excluding other taxes payable and salaries payable. M : TeEEMmEMHENEMTE -
The table above excludes guarantees given to banks for mortgage FRTEEREBETAEEMECLETE
facilities granted to certain buyers of the Group’s properties (see R EBERMABITEL Z2EEREZR
Notes 3.1(b) and 35) as management considers the likely MtsE3.10)%35)  REABEERAEBH
crystallisation of the guarantees to be as minimal. BITERzATEEEERERE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from interest bearing bank
deposits/balances, borrowings and advances from/to joint
ventures. Bank deposits/balances and borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash flow and fair
value interest-rate risk.

At 31st December 2015, if interest rates had increased/decreased
by one percentage-point and all other variables were held constant,
the net finance income (after taking into account the interest
expenses capitalised in the properties under development,
investment properties and construction-in-progress) would
increase/decrease the Group’s post-tax profit by approximately
HK$34 million (2014: HK$41 million).

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for equity owners and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity owners, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital based on gearing ratio. Gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings, as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 Bfi5E [ EE @)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 32 EcRAMREE @
The gearing ratios at 31st December 2015 and 2014 were as RZE—RFER_ZE—NF+ A=+
follows: —BZEABELRENT :
2015 2014
—E-HF —EF-HE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FH& T
Total borrowings FERTEl = 46,705,665 49,385,830
Less: pledged/charged bank deposits and cash & : B R 2 B 1T 1FE X K
and cash equivalents RERBEELZEEY (5,429,389) (6,710,527)
Net debt BEFE 41,276,276 42,675,303
Total equity AR 56,518,391 57,985,438
Gearing ratio BEXRGELE 73% 74%
The decrease in the gearing ratio was mainly attributable to the BERBBLETREIEZEHARERDE
decrease in borrowings to finance the property construction. BEMETR DT -
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AFEME
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, TRUFEBEBEDMIEZAFEFEZ S H
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as TR -ARAZANZERDAT :
follows:
e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . MEREEXEERERMSE Z®
assets or liabilities (Level 1). BCRAR) (F1R) -
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that s HNEENABUEBRIEEH A
are observable for the asset or liabilities, either directly (that B ER) S EZEE A SE (A A
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). BT EE) (BERFIRANRE

RSN (F24%) -

e Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on e HEELEEMEWIFEREBEATEHER
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3). 5 85 < 8 A 205 (BT r] B R &

%) (B3R -

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are TREBWR-_Z—RF+_A=+—H
measured at fair value at 31st December 2015. See Note 8 for EAVTEAECAESEVFEEE - BHIZ
disclosure relating to the investment properties which are measured NEEFTENREYERHFE R K FES -
at fair value.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

B 7% B b B I ()
33 A EME @

Level 1 Level 3 Total
F14 3 et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TER TERT
Financial assets at fair value through BEAVEERER
profit or loss PR 2 A5 B E 12,743 358 13,101
Available-for-sale financial assets A ENKEE - 3,129,699 3,129,699
12,743 3,130,057 3,142,800
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are TREIR=_ZZ—NWE+=_A=1+—H

measured at fair value at 31st December 2014

BAFEAEZASEMBEE

Level 1 Level 3 Total
ERFY FEIR A5t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FE T FHE T FH&T

Financial assets at fair value through BAVESZBER
profit or loss IR IS B E 13,227 380 13,607
Available-for-sale financial assets AEEERBEE — 3,342,755 3,342,755
13,227 3,343,135 3,356,362

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A
market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level 1 comprise
primarily equity investments in Mainland China and Hong Kong
classified as trading securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. There was no
instrument included in Level 2 at 31st December 2014 and 2015.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. Instruments
included in Level 3 represent unlisted equity securities, which are
primarily classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

Fair values of available-for-sale financial assets were derived using
the income approach. Under the income approach, the net present
value of the forecast dividend is estimated by applying an
appropriate discount rate which reflects the risk profile of the
investments. The Directors considered that the income approach
reflects the long-term investment purpose of the available-for-sale
financial assets, and the stage of development of the investees’
businesses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ao B S 5 A R ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B EKRERE @

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AR EMME @
The following unobservable inputs were used to determine the fair LWTA SRS EDRAETAIHfEE
value of the available-for-sale financial assets. MBEENATE-

Relationship of unobservable

Unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
TAE R FAHERHEHE
TAEEHE BiEEE NEENER
Dividend growth rate for the year 2016 to 2020 5%—-25% (2014: 8%—27%) The higher the growth rate,
(2014: 2015 to 2019) the higher the fair value.
—E-REE_Z_ZTHFIRSERX 5%—25% (ZZ — % : 8%—-27%) BREfe RATEES -

(Z2-—WF: —_F-AFE_FT—NL%F)

Terminal growth rate 3% p.a. (2014: 3% p.a.) The higher the growth rate,
the higher the fair value.
K EjE R & BH3% (ZZ—0F : §43%) BERYMS AFELS -
Discount rate 11% p.a. (2014: 11% p.a.) The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value.
AhIR & BFENR(ZE—NHF : §F11%) MBEXMSs ATFEME-
Lack of marketability discount 16% (2014: 16%) The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.
35 i 1 Bh 3 X 16% (Z T — U5 : 16%) MEERgS RFEBIE-
The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of accounts FEWARR  JEIRN - EHEEA LT 2 &
receivable, accounts payable, balances with related parties, B ENWNBARVERERIBEREN
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiaries and land cost KAz AEREHFEERAEER IR
payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair HEEANTERASE BEBEMS  MBEE
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by BzRFENRASESBEITRG ZEUS
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market ETEREZBITMEGNENRE TSR
interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial ZEANE BRKENBESMEMRIED
instruments or based on the current bid price in the market. mE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
relating to future events which are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concemning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(@ Estimated impairment of properties and
equipment and goodwill

Properties and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. Goodwill is reviewed for
impairment at each balance sheet date or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of properties and
equipment and goodwill have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations, taking into account latest market information and
past experience. These calculation require the use of judgements
and estimates.

(b) Estimated provision of properties under
development for sale and completed properties
for sale

The Group assesses the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties for sale according to their
net realisable value based on the realisability of these properties,
taking into account estimated costs to completion based on past
experience and estimated net sales value based on prevailing and
expected market conditions. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be realised. The assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(c) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources including: (i) current prices in
an active market for properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted
to reflect those differences, by reference to independent valuations;
and (i) recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions
since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices, by
reference to independent valuations.

In the case of investment properties under development, their fair
value reflects the expectations of market participants of the value of
the properties when they are completed, less deductions for the
costs required to complete the projects and appropriate
adjustments for profit and risk. Key assumptions used in the
valuation of the investment properties which are measured at fair
value are set out in Note 8. The fair values are determined by
reference to independent valuation.

(d) Estimate of fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select the income
approach and evaluates, among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost;
and the financial health and business outlook for the investee. The
key assumptions adopted on the valuation methodologies as set
out in Note 3.3 are based on management’s best estimates.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

EEZESTHERHEH w

41 EEEFHERBR @

) REWMEZ N FEMET

AFEZEEREABEUBEEREME
MRERMISH ZBRITER - HWRZHERE
BH ALEEEIRBEZATEMGES
cMEH HETE - AREKERZHE
BRR 83 (\RRXEBZMHF
RIMEE AR & F (AT A T REE X
HMEH) cMEZRTEREL2EE
ViEE) YEHABRURR EATEZ
B R(E2EBIEER RIREX
Fems R EUAMEZARER  LIEH
ABEARBMERS HHPUARKLBEREZ
TMEHHZFERITE -

RERTREVEMNS  HAFERBRD
BoEENYEBENERE ZBH B
SERCIE B F HIB 2 AR DA K s s 7 K
BREEHE BRARTEAEREY
EHEREANIERR  ERXMES
R ELSEF I EERER -

O THEEUBEAEZAPE
fiat

AEEERBRMBEEZAHRLENBKE
EZAVENDRAGBEZIEE - A& E
BEAEHERBWAOILFE(BREMR
R)REZ A FERREK AR B ME
B RERERBNMBRENIARE
BRIR - AN M EII3ZEEAEZRAH
TERRNOBEEEENOREMFEL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

(e) Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred taxation assets and taxation
in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in Mainland China.
However, the implementation and settlement of these taxes varies
among various tax jurisdictions in provinces/cities of Mainland
China, and the Group has not finalised most of its land appreciation
taxes clearance and payments with the local tax authorities in
Mainland China. Accordingly, significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the land appreciation and its related
taxes. The Group recognises its obligation to land appreciation
taxes based on management’s best estimates according to the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
taxation and tax provisions in the periods in which such taxes have
been finalised with local tax authorities.

() Depreciation

The Group depreciates hotel properties, buildings, furniture and
office equipment and motor vehicles on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful life of 28 to 30 years, shorter of useful life of 50
years or lease term, 5 years and 3 to 5 years, respectively, and
after taking into account their estimated residual value,
commencing from the date the asset is placed into productive use.
The estimated useful lives and dates that the Group places the
properties and equipment into productive use reflects Directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s assets.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements
(@ Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from the sale of properties in
the ordinary course of business, as disclosed in Note 2.19. The
assessment of when an entity has transferred the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to buyers requires the examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases, the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership coincides with the date when the
equitable interest in the property vests with the buyer upon
handover of the respective property to the buyer.

As disclosed in Note 35, the Group provides guarantees in respect
of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. These guarantees will expire when the relevant property
ownership certificates are lodged with the various banks. In order
to obtain mortgages, the purchasers would have settled certain
percentage of the total contract amount in accordance with the
related PRC regulations upon delivery of the properties. The
Directors are of the opinion that such settlements provide sufficient
evidence of the purchasers’ commitment to honour their
contractual obligations of the bank loans. In addition, based on
past experiences, there were no significant defaults of mortgage
facilities by the purchasers resulting in execution of the bank
guarantees. Accordingly, the Directors believe that significant risks
and rewards associated with ownership of the properties have
been transferred to the purchasers.

(b) Financial implication of regulations of idle land

Under the PRC laws and regulations, if a property developer fails to
develop land according to the terms of a land grant contract,
including the designated use of the land and the time of
commencement and completion of the property development, the
Mainland China government may regard the land as idle and issue
a warning or impose a penalty on the developer or reclaim the land.
The Group has certain tracts of land for which development has not
commenced according to the specified terms of the respective land
grant contracts. Judgement is required in assessing whether these
tracts of land will be subject to the penalty of idle land or may be
reclaimed by the Government and thereby resulting in any adverse
financial impact to the Group. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates the extent of development of the whole tracts of land,
status of negotiation with the government authorities as to the
extension of time of commencement or revision of development
plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgements (Continued)
(©)

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but
also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the
property is accounted for investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property. The Group
considers each property separately in making its judgement.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Executive Directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”) are
regarded as the chief operating decision makers of the Group. The
Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the business from both business
and geographic perspectives. Reportable business segments
identified are property development, property investment, hotel
operations and property management. Geographically, the
reportable business segments are further segregated into three
main geographical areas, namely Southern China (SC) (including
Guangzhou, Huizhou, Zhongshan and Hong Kong), Northern China
(NC) (including Beijing, Tianjin, Dalian, Taiyuan and Qinhuangdao)
and Eastern China (EC) (including Shanghai, Hangzhou , Kunshan,
Ningbo, Cixi and Taicang).

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on the segment results. Corporate income/
expenses, finance income and dividend income from available-for-
sale financial assets are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the Executive Directors.
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AEBZzERLEERRE -WITEZEHN
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#B

HTEFERAXRHLEARERE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of land costs, properties and
equipment, investment properties, investments in associates,
investments in joint ventures, properties under development for
sale, completed properties for sale, accounts receivable,
prepayments for construction work, prepayments for acquisition of
land, other prepayments, deposits and other current assets,
pledged/charged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
They exclude available-for-sale financial assets, which are managed
on a central basis, and deferred tax assets.

Sales between segments are carried out on terms similar to those
that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The revenue from external
parties reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.

Revenues comprise turnover which included gross proceeds from
sales of properties, revenue from construction services, rental and
hotel operations, and property management income.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

7 EER @)

DPHEETEBRLIHARE WEER
B REWME RBEARZKRE KA
BRAEIZEKE AHEEZERTYE
AHEEZEERME  BUERR 2R
TRZEBEMFE  WELHEMFTE &
MENRE ReELREMRBHEE K&
B ALRTERIARRAEERSEE
Yo ETBRETERZAHRBENBKE
ENARELERBEE -
DEEEE NI ER TR FERFMELEE
RRET - MMTEFZ2R I KRB FER
AN ER Bz T AHE-

WX EEMBERAARE  2RRH
W He BELEUARDEETRRA
AR e

2015 2014

—E-AfF —EF—OF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT TFET

Sales of properties MEHE 10,682,251 15,461,572
Construction services Z R R

— Decoration —H& (& 475,245 54,023

Property management income EEE WA 824,214 816,008

Income from hotel operations SEE A B UL A 207,487 251,608
Rental income HEWA

— Investment properties —IEME 491,453 302,696

— Others —Hfh 164,534 158,955

12,845,184 17,044,862
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2IEFE @)
The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas HE T A&+ -_A=+—"HIFE
for the year ended 31st December 2015 are as follows: BEBRMRE D 2 DEBEEWAT ¢
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NERE ESIE EEEE NEEE £H

SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC

28 £33 3 ] 25 34 #@ £5 314
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér Tz TEx FEx TEz TRz TEx  TEx  TEx TEn T

Year ended 31st BZ-E-1%

December 2015 +ZA=t-H

LEE

Total revenues @l 4359861 5,180,445 3,230,754 194,408 166,900 139,387 72,682 13,105 167,919 829,919 14,373,380
Iirafinter-segment revences 33 7,/B % (914,094) - G (924 - - (34 ~  Usg (705 (1,52819)
Revenues W& 3445767 5,189,445 2,686,818 185,166 166,900 139,387 72,339 13,105 122,043 824,214 12,845,184
Segrent resuts PEET BTG G183 (143417) 206614 G758 66T264 482 (85T (206586  (6547) 2920578
Depreciation g 1209 (382 (4029 (0 (15 (16 (10763 (1860 (127828 (2760 (182738
Amortisation £y = - - - - - (891 (5970  (12117) - 104
Provision forimpaiment of ~ FEUEE 35 B &

accounts receivable - - - - - - - - - (22,853)  (22,859)
Fair value gain on investment R4 ¥% 2 AT E

properties W - - - 161,097 570,232 603,040 - - - - 1,334,369
Shere of loss of associates A=A FEE (408) - (76) - - - - - - - (484)
Share of prolft of oint HMEAEDARH

ventures 89,186 - 6,891 19,072 - 39,047 - - - - 154,196
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ao B S 5 A R ()

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

176

The segment results by business lines and by geographical areas
for the year ended 31st December 2014 are as follows:

7 EER @)

BE-2-mFE+-A=+-ALFE
BEBRILEHH 2 A BEEDT

Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEER ESE BEEE NEER £H
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC
Ege 25 E3i4 Ef 5 =51 R B =51
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$O000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
Tér TEx TExr  TExn  TEx  TEx  FTExr TErn TExn Ttz TEn
Year ended 31st BE-3-m%
December 2014 TZA=t-H
LEE
Total revenues Edesy 7410113 1,709,432 7,965,101 117,098 148,208 44,490 67,165 6,778 236,235 852,652 18,557,272
Intralinter-segment revenues 7 87/l & (1,329,855 (916)  (74,32) (5,304) (1,796) - (1,288) - 57282 (36,644)  (1512410)
Revenues W 6,080,268 1,703,516 7,890,776 111,794 146,412 44490 65,877 6,778 178,953 816,008 17,044,862
Segment results DEES 1,945,684 281788 1385440 706606 205668 613,243 (22,250) (31,550 (208,682 (37,440) 4,837,507
Depreciation & 6615 (313 (4d477) 130) (660) B (8305 () (11225 0765 (150,029)
Amortisation B - - = = = - (77200 (673)  [6846) - 51299
Provision for impairment of  FEUEE 205 B A 6
accounts receivable - - - - - - - - - (17,038) (17,038)
Fair value gain on investment R4 ¥% 2 AT E
properties Yz = — — 629,208 84,074 508,946 — — — - 1222228
Share of profit of associates 7/ & 2 A & 181 - 383 - - - - - - - 564
Share of profit/{oss) of joint.~ A5 A 42 ]
ventures afl/(B8) 54,617 = (3,480) = - 3088 = = = - 9102
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 2B @
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas RZE—RAF+_A=+—"HEEBLK
as at 31st December 2015 are as follows: WEREAS2HEEEWNT
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
LEE NERE EEEE NEER £8
SC EC NC SC EC NC SC EC NC

g8 #x & ¥@ 0 ER E%  #®  #]R %
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

TEn TEr TEx TEr TExr TEx TEx TEx  TEx TER  TER

Asatand forthe yearended R=Z-HE
31st December 2015 +ZB=+-8k
HEZALEE 35,861,570 18,655,521 44,450,945 6,141,416 13915406 11,951,404 1,082,136 1437972 2,753,874 444587 136,644,831

Segment assets include: AHEEAE:
Investments in associates REERRZRE 2,300 - 146279 - - - - - - - 148579
Investmentsinjoint ventures ~ WASREZEKE 47712543 - 1,126,036 48419 - 1,831,866 - - - - 7,778,864
Additions to non-current assets R E JEiREN A E
(other than financial (TafELEIA
instruments and deferred REEHEEE)
tax assets) 3,085 2,018 9606 2905565 1,231,038 483312 1,389 33,789 718747 2,012 2,775,561
The segment assets by business lines and by geographical areas RZEBE-—HEF+_A=+—HREBK
as at 31st December 2014 are as follows: WEE S 2HHBEEMNT -
Property
Property development Property investment Hotel operations management Group
NEEE NERE BEEE NEEE £8

s EC NC s EC NC s EC NC

2@ ¥R BE #® £R Et  EH 0 ER )
HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKS000  HKBOOO  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
TERL TERT TEn TEn TER TERT  TEr TEn TER  TER  TER

Asatandforthe yearended R=B-M#F
315t December 2014 tZA=1-8K
BEZALEE 38,037,711 22,519,678 43,763,889 6,238,873 12,995,287 10,873,094 1125208 1,524,784 2,534,864 389,389 140,002,777

Segment assets include: PREERE:
Investments in associates RBEARZRE 2,862 - 155428 - = - - = - - 158,290
Investments injoint ventures~ WAEREZEE 5008246 - 1198712 = - 1895218 = = = - 8102176
Adations to non-current assets  FEFERE EE
(other than financial (TBESHIA
instruments and deferred RERFEEE)
tax assets) 2,441,982 7,106 13,118 146511 1032343 477,685 33830 263,867 57,112 3437 4,476,991
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued) 5 23ER @
Reconciliation of reportable segment profit from operations to profit o 2 3| 5 2P 7 & 2555 Kl BB B AT Sz A
before taxation is as follows: BRI
2015 2014
—2-EF —TWF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Reportable segment profit from operations A 2WD BLEE R F 2,920,578 4,837,507
Unallocated corporate expenses (including AR ARIAX
exchange loss), net (BfEE L EE)  F8E (291,635) (87,109)
Dividend income from available-for-sale financial 3 &5 7] 4t ! & 81 75 & &=
assets Z BB WA 192,964 179,528
Finance income B 75 U A 96,709 65,267
Finance costs B %5 B 7R (79,311) —
Profit before taxation B 86 Al & A 2,839,305 4,995,193
Recongiliation of reportable segment assets to total assets is as 2D PrEELAREEHNROT
follows:
2015 2014
—2-EF C—TWF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total segment assets DEHEELE 136,644,831 140,002,777
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ERBEE 3,129,699 3,342,755
Deferred tax assets FEFRIBE E 402,162 341,466
Total assets mEE 140,176,692 143,686,998
The Group primarily operates in Mainland China. All revenues for REEBFZERPBIRELLEXH - BE
the years ended 31st December 2015 and 2014 are from Mainland —E-RAFR_ZE—WMF+_A=+—
China. As at 31st December 2015 and 2014, all non-current assets BIEFE FrAEREHREPBEKE B
are located in Mainland China. T E—RAFRZFTE—WF+_A=+—

B A ERBEEDL NP B AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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LAND COSTS 6 T
Land costs represent prepaid operating lease payments for hotel THRAEBEEMELNBRAEFE ZEN
properties and self-use buildings. EHE IR ©
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1st January m—HA—H 1,869,029 1,928,700
Additions Eipe 2,529 4,281
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) U B — MM B A a (Kat37) 253,862 =
Transfer from completed properties for sale EEAAHEE CEERYE - 39,140
Transfer from investment properties HERBKEME 59,997 =
Transfer to properties under development for sale R Z Rt HE 2 R D W% — (20,152)
Revaluation gain upon transfer to investment EREREMER 2HHRE
properties (Note) (K1) 763,341 -
Transfer to investment properties (Note) BRI EYE (M) (793,151) (25,276)
Amortisation # 8 (57,044) (51,299)
Exchange difference E X =% (122,186) (6,365)
At 31st December R+=—_A=+—8H 1,976,377 1,869,029
Land costs primarily represent land use rights of between 10 and TR AEZHEMRFBE AN F10F
50 years located in Mainland China. E50F K b 5 A -
Note: Haz -
The land costs were transferred to investment properties at its fair value and THRAZEAFEERZREYE Bt ¥
accordingly revaluation reserve of HK$763,341,000 at the date of the transfer HEE B B2 B #763,341,0008 T E st A& E
was credited to asset revaluation reserve. EXR

SHAREEARAR —E-HFFHR 179



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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7 PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT 7 MERSHE
Furniture
Construction- Hotel and office Motor
in-progress properties Buildings equipment vehicles Total
&
ERIR EIEYE BF BRAERE "E k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FTHET FHAT FHET
Year ended 31st December EHZE—-ZE—HfF
2015 +=A=+-—8
LFEE
Opening net book amount B EREFE 840,604 2,287,000 746,886 163,876 22,016 4,060,382
Additions it 90,208 4,090 5,673 11,516 1,161 112,648
Transfer from investment HEAKEME
properties - - 31,687 - - 31,687
Transfer to investment properties & # £ 18 & ) % (47,394) (88,100) - - - (135,494)
Transfer to properties under HREAHEE Y
development for sale BRERAPYE - (65,039) - - - (65,039)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—mHB AR
(Note 37) (Hfat37) 47,808 353,926 - 2,311 13 404,058
Depreciation 3 = (117,563) (23,191) (36,910) (5,074) (182,738)
Transfer upon completion 5 T 8B (20,163) - - 20,163 - -
Disposals k= - (1,381) (7,379) (279) (9,039)
Exchange difference EXEHE (53,930) (149,078) (44,906) (9,335) (1,166) (258,415)
Closing net book amount HREEE R E 857,133 2,225,236 714,768 144,242 16,671 3,958,050
At 31st December 2015 R-ZB-1EF
+=-A=+-H
Cost B AR 857,133 2,977,111 834,518 480,703 71,498 5,220,963
Less: Accumulated depreciation & @ 2:tiTE - (751,875) (119,750) (336,461) (54,827) (1,262,913)
Net book amount REFE 857,133 2,225,236 714,768 144,242 16,671 3,958,050
Year ended 31st December BZ-_T—NWEF
2014 +=A=+-—8
LFE
Opening net book amount AR EFE 1,092,643 2,110,158 729,343 150,675 22,549 4,105,363
Additions i 282,938 53,198 446 40,028 6,433 383,043
Transfer from completed EREHEE Y
properties for sale [SP:35%7/ES — — 51,385 - = 51,385
Transfer to investment properties ¥ % = % & ) % = - (13,245) - - (13,245)
Transfer to properties under HEREENHEEZ
development for sale BRBYE (290,476) — — — — (290,476)
Depreciation E — (102,249) (18,463) (31,935) (6,376) (159,023)
Transfer upon completion ST T EER (241,262) 233,268 — 7,994 — -
Disposals HE = = (103) (2,355) (513) (2,971)
Exchange difference M5 =5 (3,239) (7,370) (2,477) (631) (77) (13,694)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 840,604 2,287,000 746,886 163,876 22,016 4,060,382
At 31st December 2014 R-E-—NF
+t=A=t+-8H
Cost B AR 840,604 2,882,978 850,154 484,669 77,148 5,135,553
Less: Accumulated depreciation i : 2T & — (595,978) (103,268) (320,793) (55,132) (1,075,171)
Net book amount RmEFE 840,604 2,287,000 746,886 163,876 22,016 4,060,382
Construction-in-progress mainly represents buildings and hotel FRETITREZTEEBITIERBEREZEFR
properties, which are intended to be held for the long-term. BEYEE o
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 REWZE
2015 2014
—E—RE —F—MF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Completed investment properties BIEKIRE W 10,717,611 10,075,171
Investment properties under development BRPEEME 18,218,386 15,399,242
28,935,997 25,474,413
Properties
Completed under
properties  development
(Level 3) (Level 3) Total
=334 E BRPYE
(%£34) (%£34%) wst
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET TAET FET
At 1st January 2015 R-_ZE—HF—HF—H 10,075,171 15,399,242 25,474,413
Additions (including capitalisation of ~ ¥71% (B 15 & KL 7| B)
interest) 34,962 2,860,607 2,895,569
Transfer from land costs and A 1 AN DA R W
properties and equipment B'E] 928,645 — 928,645
Transfer to land costs and properties  #25 # &= + i Bk 74X
and equipment LA K W) 2 K 3% A (91,684) = (91,684)
Fair value gain on investment REWERNTER =
properties 365,018 969,351 1,334,369
Exchange difference fEHZE8 (594,501) (1,010,814) (1,605,315)
At 31st December 2015 R-ZE—HF
+—-—A=+—H 10,717,611 18,218,386 28,935,997
At 1st January 2014 RZE—m&E—H—H 6,402,707 16,112,333 22,515,040
Additions (including capitalisation of ~ ¥71% (15 & AL 7| B)
interest) 23,196 1,487,319 1,510,515
Transfer from land costs and ERE kAN DA R W
properties and equipment & 38,521 — 38,521
Transfer from completed properties #E# 5l ft HE 2
for sale R34 7ES 267,714 = 267,714
Fair value gain on investment WEMERFEY =
properties 918,754 303,474 1,222,228
Transfer upon completion of % T 1% o3 B
construction 2,451,069 (2,451,069) —
Exchange difference fE R =% (26,790) (52,815) (79,605)
At 31st December 2014 RZTE—F
+—-—HA=+—8H 10,075,171 15,399,242 25,474,413
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31st December
2015 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified
valuers, who hold a recognised relevant professional qualification
and have recent experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued.

The Group’s finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuers for financial reporting purposes and
discuss with the valuers regarding the valuation processes and
results. The finance department also verifies all major inputs to the
independent valuation report and assesses property valuation
movements when compared to prior year valuation report.

Valuation techniques

Fair values of completed investment properties are generally
derived using the income capitalisation method. This valuation
method is based on the capitalisation of the net income and
reversionary income potential by adopting appropriate capitalisation
rates, which are derived from analysis of sale transactions and
valuers’ interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. The prevailing market rents adopted in the valuation
have reference to recent lettings within the subject properties and
other comparable properties.

Fair values of investment properties under development are
generally derived using the residual method. This valuation method
is essentially a means of valuing the land by reference to its
development potential by deducting development costs together
with developer’s profit and risk from the estimated capital value of
the proposed development assuming the properties were
completed as at the date of valuation. The estimated capital value
of the proposed development is derived using the income
capitalisation method as mentioned above.

During the year, there were no changes to the valuation techniques.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8 WREWMEwum
Significant unobservable inputs used to EETAVTEFMBNEERATE
determine fair value EyiE
Fair value
DF¥E Relationship of
31st December  31st December Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable unobservable inputs
Description 2015 2014 technique inputs inputs to fair value
“E-IF “E-mF TUEERBHE
R +ZA=+-B +tZA=+-H #EFE TUBEYE TUBEYBHE ATEHER
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Office units 6,479,028 5,777,885 Income Prevailing market ~ RMB100-210/sg.m./month  The higher the
(completed) capitalisation  rents (2014: RMB100-200/ prevailing market
sg.m./month) rents, the higher
the fair value.
WAEEN WABRE  BRiaomsHEd BRBTAHK RymisHe
(B&M) AREA00LE210T B NTEES -
(Z2—m%:8A
¥k
ARB1007TE2007T)
Capitalisation rate~ 5.5%-6.5% p.a. The higher the
(2014: 5.5%-6% p.a.) capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value.
BRI % §E55%E6.5% BAEHS -
(ZZ—mEF: AFEME -
F55%Z6%)
Shopping malls 4,238,583 4,297,286 Income Prevailing market RMB70-590/ The higher the
(completed) capitalisation rents sg.m./month prevailing market
(2014: RMB70-590/ rents, the higher
sg.m./month) the fair value.
BYE5 WABRE BRiomsHEd BABTERRARE0 BamHEsds -
(B&M) TES0T(ZF AVEHSR -
FBAGTARAR
¥ 707 E5907T)
Capitalisationrate ~ 5.5%-6.5% p.a. The higher the
(2014: 5.5%-6.5% p.a.) capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value.
BARLL % §E55%£6.5% BALESR -
(ZZ—mEF:8F ATEBE -
55%%6.5%)

SHAREEARAR —T-HFFH 183



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 8 WREWEwum
Significant unobservable inputs used to ETAFEFMBNEERATEH
determine fair value (Continued) HEE @
Fair value
AEE Relationship of
31st December  31st December Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable unobservable inputs
Description 2015 2014 technique inputs inputs to fair value
—E-If —E-ImF TUBEYEHR
R t=ZA=t+-B +=ZA=+-RH #ELE TUBEYE TUBEYBEE ATERHER
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Office units (under 7,438,707 5,828,590 Residual Prevailing market ~ RMB90-150/ The higher the
development) rents sg.m./month prevailing market
(2014: RMB90-150/ rents, the higher
sg.m./month) the fair value.
HE/NE=A S Fg RBiamsie BABTARAREK Bamaleds -
(EREH) TE150T(ZF—/H AYEHR -
F:BAGTARAR
#907T £1507T)
Capitalisationrate ~ 5.5%-6.5% p.a. The higher the
(2014: 5.5%-6.5% p.a.) capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value.
BARLI % BE55%E65%(ZF AR EER:
—MF: BFEE%E REEMIE -
6.5%)
Estimated coststo  RMB4,100-10,700/sq.m.  The higher the
completion (2014: RMB4,100- estimated costs to
9,800/sg.m.) completion, the
lower the fair value.
HE T IR BERFRARR4100 B EIKNAER -
£10,700L(ZZF—@ RYEHE -
£ BYAARARE
4,10075£9,8007T)
Estimated 0%-35% The higher the
developer's profit  (2014: 5%-35%) estimated
and risk margins developer’s profit
(depending on and risk margins
the progress of the lower the fair
development) value.
EEBEMGBEHN  0%EB%(ZZ—WF: FEEMMEEHE
BRERMEF  5%F35%) kERES 2
BREEME) TEMIE-
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 8 WREWMEwum
Significant unobservable inputs used to EETAVTEFMBNEERATE
determine fair value (Continued) EEE m®m)
Fair value
NEE Relationship of
31st December  31st December  Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable unobservable inputs
Description 2015 2014 technique inputs inputs to fair value
—E-IF “E-ImF TUEERER
R t=ZA=t+-BH +=ZA=+-R0 #EL% TUBEERE TUBEYBEE ATERHER
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Shopping malls 10,779,680 9,570,652 Residual Prevailing market ~ RMB80-340/sg.m./month  The higher the
(under rents (2014: RMB80-340 / prevailing market
development) sg.m./month) rents, the higher
the fair value.
BYmE5 Flgh Riamisiae BABTARARKS Bamaieds-
(BEH) TEMOT(ZE - AVEHR -
FBAGTARAR
80T £3407T)
Capitalisation rate ~ 5.5%-7% p.a. The higher the
(2014: 5.5%-7% p.a.) capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair
value.
BARLL % BES5%ZET%(ZF—N BAREEERYR -

FBFES55%ET%) DNEEME o

Estimated coststo  RMB4,100-10,700/sq.m.  The higher the

completion (2014: RMB4,100- estimated costs to
9,800/sg.m.) completion, the
lower the fair value.

EHERN %N BERKARM4100  REETIKAES -
£10,7007 (ZE— ATEBE-
F BFARARE

4,1007 % 9,8007T)
Estimated 0%-35% The higher the
developer's profit  (2014: 5%-35%) estimated
and risk margins developer’s profit
(depending on and risk margins ,
the progress of the lower the fair
development) value.
BEBEMGHF  0%EB%(ZZ—WF: FEAMGHE
BRERGRTE  5%%Z35%) kERER 2
FREEME) TEMIE-
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10

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

9 AIHHEZHRERPYE

FOR SALE
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Expected to be completed and available for sale  FEH#I# 7+ — 1@ B W% T
within twelve months RAaftHE 11,872,010 9,077,767
Expected to be completed and available for sale T8 B i R #8348 + — 1@ A 1%
after more than twelve months BIRAIHEHEE 37,964,158 41,664,672
49,836,168 50,742,439
GOODWILL 10 &
2015 2014
—2-EF —TWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
At 1st January w—HA—H 42,386 42,528
Exchange difference fEH =5 (2,474) (142)
At 31st December R+-_A=+—H 39,912 42,386
Cost X AN 51,935 55,147
Less: Accumulated impairment B BEHRE (12,023) (12,761)
Net book amount BR M FE 39,912 42,386
Goodwill mainly relates to the property management segment. MEFEZHEYEETE A -

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 11 REEERRIZRE
2015 2014
—E-AHEF T —MmEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THE T THETT
Share of net assets DIEFEE 148,579 158,290
2015 2014
—ZE—-0F —ET—F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FABT

Share of (loss)/profit for the year and total DIEFEE(ER), &5 R

comprehensive (loss)/income for the year FE2HE(EB) WARE (484) 564
Details of the associates, which are unlisted, as at 31st December RZE—RF+_A=+—BHZHELQ

2015 are set out in Note 41. Details of capital commitment relating
to the Group’s interests in associates are set out in Note 36(a).

7(E1ﬂtm>¢\ HAM 4 - A
SERBERREZNERNEKEZFHB
B 51 72 Bt 7 36(a) °

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 12 REE QN TEIZRE
2015 2014
—E2—FHF —ZE—E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Share of net assets DIRFEE 7,015,854 7,291,860
Advance to joint ventures AT EEN A 763,010 810,316
7,778,864 8,102,176

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Beijing
Dongfangwenhua International Properties Company Limited
(“BJDFWH?”) and Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Company Limited
(“GDDFCL”), which in the opinion of the Directors, are material joint
ventures of the Group. The Group holds 60.98% of the issued
share capital of BIDFWH, which owns a piece of land for property
development in Dongcheng District, Beijing, Mainland China (known
as the “DFWH Project”). The Group holds 65% of the issued share
capital of GDDFCL, which owns a piece of land for property
development in Haizhu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
Mainland China.

TY%W%%*E%$%IEEEMA
BRNAtR RS XEBBREEXRTRA
([tmEAXE]) REME— %%Mﬁﬁ
ARl (TEMSE — 26/ ]) & B 75 & B8t
T AEEFHILREHNEEBTRA
#960.98% * ify 1k R 77 3CEE R B K B
TR EEE — B MENEERE 2
AMBAIRANEEE] AEEFEE
MEE— BB FHTIRA65% @ i E M
55— LB B oK BE B R A E NS TR
GBS BRI IEMEER A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

12 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 12 REERQTIZRE
(Continued) (#8)
Summarised balance sheets R RBE
BJDFWH GDDFCL
tmZEHXE &M 58— 8
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —ET—WNE Z—ZE-—RHFE —T—NOFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET TExT FETT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ETREEE 5,225,469 5,532,968 313 532
Current assets mEEE 3,408,352 3,504,932 7,184,940 7,481,944
Total assets BEMME 8,633,821 9,037,900 7,185,253 7,482,476
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (3,977,712) (4,223,249) = =
Current liabilities B A G (579,270) (579,117 (35,739) (31,156)
Total liabilities BEER (4,556,982) (4,802,366) (35,739) (31,156)
Net assets FEE 4,076,839 4,235,534 7,149,514 7,451,320

The DWFH Project owned by BJDFWH consists of two office
buildings and a musical hall. The Group is entitled to 100% interest
of the office building (South), 45% interest of the office building (North)
and none of the interest of the musical hall in the property

development project.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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12 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 12 REEQAZRE
(Continued) (#8)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented to 23N HBERNBMEBEEHAENS Z QA
the carrying amounts of their interests in the joint ventures are as MEDEEECHERENT
follows:
BJDFWH GDDFCL
B M
EREAXE E— R
Office Building Office Building Musical
(South) (North) Hall Total Total
BFE ) BFE (L) EHE #Et 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FATT FHT FHT FHAT
Year ended 31st December2015 HE=-Z-—-H&F+=A
=t—-HLEE
Net assets at 1st January 2015 R-_E—HF—A—H
ZFEE 934,567 3,317,096 (16,129) 4,235,534 7,451,320
Post-acquisition results Wik 25 2,774) 108,249 (14,238) 91,237 137,210
Exchange difference EHzE (54,479) (196,813) 1,360 (249,932) (439,016)
Net assets at 31st December 2015 R-_Z—FHF+ = A
=t+—BZFEE 877,314 3,228,532 (29,007) 4,076,839 7,149,514
100% 45% —% 65%
Shared by the Group NEB D 877,314 1,452,839 - 2,330,153 4,647,184
Other costs/differences Hipp A =8 = (20,867) = (20,867) (4,739)
Interests in joint ventures REERR = 877,314 1,431,972 - 2,309,286 4,642,445
Year ended 31st December 2014 HE-Z-—-NE+=A
=t+-HLFE
Net assets at 1st January 2014 R-T—WE—A—H
LERBE 941,191 3,190,041 (3,132 4,128,100 4,983,919
Capital injection BAEE - - - = 2,434,893
Post-acquisition results Wi BE 18 %45 (3,480) 137,962 (13,029) 121,453 85,865
Exchange difference fEHERE (3,144) (10,907) 32 (14,019) (63,357)
Net assets at 31st December 2014 R-_ZE—ME+ - A
=+ —BZFEEE 934,567 3,317,096 (16,129) 4,235,534 7,451,320
100% 45% —% 65%
Shared by the Group AEBHE 934,567 1,492,693 = 2,427,260 4,843,358
Other costs/differences Hup A,/ =58 — (22,157) — (22,157) (5,030)
Interests in joint ventures = RNCIA - £ 934,567 1,470,536 = 2,405,103 4,838,328
AHEAEEBEERAT —T-HFEFHR 189
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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12 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 12 REERFZR?
(Continued) (#&)
Summarised statements of comprehensive PHEHRZRBE
income
BJDFWH GDDFCL
EEREE & M 5 — SR
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-HE —ZE—NMFE Z—ZEB-HFE —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
Revenues W& 323,110 331,361 = -
Fair value gain on investment & &%) % A FE U 25
properties 4,207 10,836 - =
Profit before taxation & B3 A a 126,395 166,279 182,611 115,947
Taxation I8 (35,158) (44,826) (45,401) (30,082)
Profit for the year and total FERANAFEEZE
comprehensive income for W A 42 =8
the year 91,237 121,453 137,210 85,865
Share by the Group of profit SEEERLHFER R
for the year and total FEE2HEW AL
comprehensive income for
the year 45,938 36,406 89,186 55,812
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the FRBERRHMESNNRE L QN8 2 %BR®
financial statements of the joint ventures, adjusted for differences in RNEE WERAEBRRZAZERATHN
accounting policies between the Group and the joint ventures. SHRRNZEELAE-
The Group has one remaining immaterial joint venture and the AREBZEHEE B TEANAZL AR M
Group’s share of result of the joint venture for the year ended 31st AREEBREZ T NFER_FT—1F
December 2014 and 2015 is as follows: +TZ A=+ BLEFEDEZEERT
RIZEEWNT -
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Share of profit/(loss) for the year and total DIEFEERF (BB RFE
comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 2ERA(EBIB) %58 19,072 (1,195)

Details of the joint ventures as at 31st December 2015 are set out
in Note 42.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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13 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 13 AItHENKEE
ASSETS
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—OF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
At 1st January n—H—H 3,342,755 2,665,885
Fair value (loss)/gain recognised in equity RE=RER 2 AFE
(Note 25) (E518), Wz (Ftat25) (18,443) 686,941
Exchange difference N =% (194,613) (10,071)
At 31st December R+—_A=+—H 3,129,699 3,342,755
Unlisted securities: FELHES:
— Equity securities, Mainland China — IR AR FE A d B oA fE 3,129,699 3,342,755

The investments represent 4.29% and 4.32% equity interests in

two financial institutions in Mainland China.

N 4.32% 7 & ANRE S o

ZEREREMEPEARESBEIEL29%

The investments are denominated in Renminbi. WETIAARBEE -
14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 14 ZBRAVPEEBBERIIRZM
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS “KEE
2015 2014
—E-—RF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT T
Listed securities: FHES:
— Equity securities, Hong Kong, at quoted — AR BESH BB R
market value nikE] 12,743 13,227
Unlisted securities: FELTES:
— Equity securities, Mainland China — A FES - B RE 358 380
13,101 13,607

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in other (losses)/gains, net, in the consolidated
income statement (Note 26).

BRAFEEBERZVNRZUBEEZAR
FEESHDIAGAERSZIR ZEM(E
B),/ Wz FER(HE26) °
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15 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF 15 W T B[ FKE - R T
LAND, PREPAYMENTS FOR BzRAMNRERFESKE -
CONSTRUCTION WORK AND ReERHEMTRHEE
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

CURRENT ASSETS
2015 2014
—2-EF —TWF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Non-current IE 7 B
Prepayments for acquisition of land (j) Uk B8 + b TB < ZRIE () 126,980 134,852
Prepayments for construction work (i) R TR 2 T8 3RIA () 587,141 1,480,246
Current mE
Prepayments for acquisition of land (j) U B + 3tb 8 1 2R E () 9,658,469 10,241,218
Other receivables (i) H b JfE U R IA (i) 208,784 282,317
Deposits for acquisition of equity interest (iv) WEE IR A= 2 & (V) 18,738 19,899
Guarantee deposits EREZe 70,424 74,790
Prepayments for construction work BRIRZBEMNRE 221,993 245,757
Land tender deposits THREERS 59,682 63,382
Prepaid sales taxes B HER 726,624 618,657
Utility and other deposits NAFZERAMIZR 708,181 596,816
Others HAb 483,268 399,150
Prepayments, deposits and other current assets BT 3I1E - £ &
B E i B & B 2,497,694 2,300,768

i WELHMZEMKBEERRTEAX

(i) Prepayments for acquisition of land represent advances

made for the acquisitions of land use rights in Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Tianjin, Mainland China. Formal
land use right certificates have not yet been obtained as at
31st December 2015.

The balance includes an amount of approximately HK$4,476
million (2014: HK$4,754 milion) for the land situated in
Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland China in connection with
the Group’s acquisition of 80% equity interest in Believe Best
Investments Limited, which, through its wholly owned
subsidiary, possesses the right to develop the Jing Run
Project on the land (Note 38(f)).

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

BEdbm - BB BMR R ZKRE L+
WEREMELZBR - R_F—
FFE+-A=+—H  WABKBLE
AT AHERE -

EHRERFEMLRATRRNELREEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

15 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF
LAND, PREPAYMENTS FOR
CONSTRUCTION WORK AND
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

)

(i)

(i

(Continued)

The balance also includes an amount of approximately
HK$4,060 million (2014: HK$4,312 million) for the land
situated in Panyu District, Guangdong, Mainland China in
connection with the Group’s acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited, which
possesses the right to develop the land (see also Note 38(g)).

Prepayments for acquisition of land for owner-occupied
properties are classified as non-current, whereas
prepayments for acquisition of land for development for sale
are classified as current.

Prepayments for construction work relate to construction
work to be performed by Farrich Investments Limited, a
related company, on a piece of land situated in Tongzhou
District, Beijing, Mainland China (Note 38(g)).

Other receivables relate to the Group’s participation in “first
class” land development projects in Beijing and Huizhou,
Guangdong Province, Mainland China with fixed guaranteed
returns based on a pre-determined percentage of funds
invested by the Group.

Other receivables are denominated in Renminbi. Their
carrying amounts approximate fair values.

This represents deposits made to independent third parties
for the acquisition of 100% equity interests in a few Mainland
China entities whose principal activities are property holding
and development. The acquisitions are not yet completed as
at 31st December 2015.

15

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

ﬁjéiﬂﬁﬁﬁ RH - BRT

Zi\'ﬁ'w\lﬁi\&fﬁiﬁ' ;g -
EREMRBHEE @

(#8)

EHRFBIRREMA P B AREERER
% B & ¥ i # 494,060,000,0005% 7T
— PO £ : 4,312,000,000/ 7T) -
ZWRNEAERRBERERIE
WEABMR NG Z100%EEER - M
ZAREERRZ T 2 FAEE (D
2 E K EE386E)) °
AERYEWE LHBEMNFEBES E
BIERB - MAEREUEENK
BB FBEBALDEAERE -

R HBEEAREREREERA
BIE—RARAEAELZBIMNE
2 FETHERIREENE
2 TR A a0 (T 5E38(g)) ©

Hfth & Yo SRR B K SR B 2 B B K
EIREREREEMNEREFEEMD
BBRBEAEERRABESHLER
BALE) 2 Lt —RHAKEBEEAR
eA -

HEUKBEAARSEFE  KRE
BEAFERS -

HHERKRBLO BB REE R
(EXEXBR/VERBERER)Z
100%EMABLE=ZTIFHZ
Re- R _ZBE-—HAFt+-_HA=+—
B W EARTEK -
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 16 FE UL AR X

Accounts receivable mainly arise from sales of properties, and
rendering of decoration and property management services. No
credit terms were granted.

Accounts receivable is related to a number of independent
customers, and denominated in Renminbi. The carrying value of
accounts receivable approximates their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of
accounts receivable mentioned above.

As at 31st December 2015, accounts receivable of
HK$425,296,000 (2014: HK$385,076,000 ) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers. The
ageing analysis of these accounts receivable (excluding those
impaired) is as follows:

EREREIBEMEHENREHEE
EYMEERRBEL -BEXTEMNEER

fR K o

FEUEREZZBYEFPABLNUAR
BitE BUERREERZL QN FER

++

Eo

AEBEMERZERREERR R LA
W R K 2 R E{E -

RZE—FE+=_A=+—8" FELK
8 3K 49425,296,000/8 70 ( = F — PU 4F ¢
385,076,000/8 7T ) B # HA 18 R B (B ° 1t
ERERZEBIURTFEB LSRR
BERTEERES) ZERITOT :

2015 2014

—E2—FF —E—E

HK$°000 HK$’000

FE T FHET

0 to 3 months 0&31E A 189,182 139,793
3 to 6 months 3E61E A 17,335 16,848
6 to 9 months 6ZE91E A 13,441 20,024
9 to 12 months 9x 121@ A 15,483 22,326
Over 12 months HBiB12ME A 189,855 186,085
425,296 385,076

As at 31st December 2015, accounts receivable of
HK$126,210,000 (2014: HK$110,472,000) were past due for over
12 months and were fully provided for impairment. These related to
a number of independent customers.
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16 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 16 FE R BR R ()
Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts receivable TR ERE 2 EEmT

are as follows:

2015 2014

—2-EF —TWF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At 1st January mn—H—H 110,472 93,777
Provision recognised in the consolidated income ~ #x & W & 7 A i 72

statement 2 RBE 22,853 17,038

Exchange difference X =5 (7,115) (343)

At 31st December W+=—R=+—8H 126,210 110,472

17 PLEDGED/CHARGED BANK DEPOSITS 17 S HERBTERUAR
AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RBeRBEEEEY
2015 2014
—2-EF —FTWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFERE 5,429,339 6,710,477
Short-term bank deposits 5 ERITFER 50 50
5,429,389 6,710,527
Less: pledged/charged bank deposits AR e ool
RITER (676,049) (1,228,534)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 4,753,340 5,486,993
As at 31st December 2015, the Group’s pledged/charged bank RZZE—hF+-A=+—H FKEEZ
deposits mainly represented deposits charged by certain banks in BEHER  HRRTEREFERRDERT
relation to the granting of banking facilities and the processing of ETHRT UERLERITEERRTER
mortgage facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s EAMASBEYEXERE TRBEER -
properties.
As required by the PRC State-Owned Land and Resource Bureau, R TERBRE ETUEERE
certain property development companies of the Group are required AEBRARAREERITFAGFTAME
to place in designated bank accounts certain amount of pre-sale BEMSNMO KA (ERERZBBYME
proceeds of properties to finance the construction of the related NES BHEXREFRA—REESR
properties. Such restricted bank deposits represent normal & WIEABRERRESEEM 2R H 7
operating fund and are presented as part of cash and cash F-RZZE-—RAF+ZA=+—H #H=2
equivalents. As at 31st December 2015, cash and cash equivalents B EEMEREEREERITFAAN
include pre-sale proceeds of HK$983,318,000 (2014: 8 & BT 15 5018 983,318,000/ 7T (= F — Y
HK$821,990,000) placed in designated bank accounts. F :821,990,000/8 7T ) °
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196

17 PLEDGED/CHARGED BANK DEPOSITS

AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HERBEELEEY

(Continued)

Pledged/charged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

EEA RERTEFARRERRESE
EBYWII AT SIS’ (E

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—-mEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Renminbi AR 5,323,245 6,398,813
Hong Kong dollar BT 60,205 71,603
US dollar ETT 45,925 240,111
Others Hih 14 —
5,429,389 6,710,527

18 LAND COST PAYABLE 18 FEAT Lt B A<

2015 2014

—Z—-hfF —F—OF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Land cost payable & < £ Bk AR 140,730 150,044

Less: Amount due within one year included in W ETARBAGEAR

current liabilities —FARNEEZSHE (83,092) (88,832)

57,638 61,212

Land cost payable is denominated in Renminbi. Their carrying ER TR AAAREE  REEHEA

FEMBE -

amounts approximate fair values.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

19 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 19 BENERER
Ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due to ERABRRZEREDIT(BEEMTEER
related companies of trading in nature) is as follows: ABRRGUEEZEREZMT ¢
2015 2014
—2-EF —FTWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
0 to 3 months 0ZE31E A 1,229,903 2,659,465
3 to 6 months 3£ 61E A 862,143 888,366
6 to 9 months 6= 91E A 520,335 1,092,323
9 to 12 months 9F121d A 559,100 556,557
Over 12 months HBiE1218 A 4,182,705 3,549,744
7,354,186 8,746,455
As at 31st December 2014 and 2015, certain amounts of the RZE—NFRZF—AF+_A=+
accounts payable were retention money under construction —B ABTENERBEXRAPLETHR
contracts, which are payable according to pre-agreed terms. & BARBEAHENGERIZN -
As at 31st December 2015, approximately HK$560,141,000 (2014: RZE—RAF+_A=+—8"  EFK
HK$707,658,000) of accounts payable were due to certain related KR #49560,141,000%8 7L (= F — 1Y & -
companies in respect of property construction (Note 38(b)). 707,658,000 L) A M ERELEMNE T

B 1 B2 BR K (BT RE38(b) °

Accounts payable are denominated in Renminbi. The carrying value FERERFAARESE BNERERZER
of accounts payable approximate their fair values. EHEAFEBEE -
20 BORROWINGS 20 B E
2015 2014
—E—FF —ZE—E
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET F# T
Non-current FE 7 B
Bank and financial institution borrowings MITRMBRBEEE 33,213,814 32,140,081
Senior notes BREER 2,303,130 4,607,387
35,516,944 36,747,468
Current mEh
Bank and financial institution borrowings RITR B EEEE 11,188,721 12,638,362
46,705,665 49,385,830
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20 BORROWINGS (continued)

198

In January 2011, the Company issued 11.75% senior notes with an
aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,340,000,000) (the “2016 Notes”) for a total
consideration of approximately HK$2,340,000,000. The senior
notes mature in five years (January 2016) and are repayable at their
nominal value of US$300,000,000. The Company is entitled at its
option to redeem all or a portion of the senior notes at the
redemption prices specified in the offering circular, plus accrued
and unpaid interests to the redemption date, subject to the terms
and conditions specified in the offering circular. In May 2015, the
Company redeemed all the outstanding 2016 Notes at 102.9375%
of the principal amount of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,326,999,000) according to the mechanism
specified in the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date. The redemption amount included a
premium of US$8,813,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$68,359,000). The redemption premium together with the
unamortised borrowing costs, totaling HK$79,311,000, were
charged to the consolidated income statement during the year
ended 31st December 2015.

In January 2013, the Company issued 9.875% senior notes with an
aggregate nominal value of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,327,000,000) (the “2018 Notes”) for a total
consideration of approximately HK$2,327,000,000. The senior
notes mature in five years (January 2018) and are repayable at their
nominal value of US$300,000,000. The Company is entitled at its
option to redeem all or a portion of the senior notes at the
redemption prices specified in the offering circular, plus accrued
and unpaid interests to the redemption date, subject to the terms
and conditions specified in the offering circular. In March 2016, the
Company redeemed all the outstanding 2018 Notes at 104.9375%
of the principal amount of US$300,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,325,288,000) according to the mechanism
specified in the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest
to the redemption date. The redemption amount included a
premium of US$14,812,500 (equivalent to approximately
HK$114,811,000). The redemption premium together with the
unamortised borrowing costs, totalling HK$136,970,000, will be
charged to the consolidated income statement during the year
ended 31st December 2016.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

20 B E @)

RZZE——F— A RRARBTREEE
300,000,000 3 7T (8 & 7 #J2,340,000,000
,%75)21175F1E5% =B ZF—AF
=) - KB 4 A2,340,000,0007% TC °
BREE TJ%E’\EE&(_;*/\E A) &
HA 37 7B #% H M {E300,000,0003 TT1& & -
RARKEREEREEBEMITAL
BRE(N BB ASBENREAMNZ
FE)ED 2 BLELERE  HEXEH
EBEHMETAZIERRIGHMRR - R =
E—hFHA AAREREZEEBEG]
AR 2 1 ] % /X £ % %8.300,000,000 3 7t (48
B R #12,326,999,000/% JT ) #102.9375%
SNMEZERBRZENRRGTHEE
B BBITEINN T —RFE %E%oﬁ“
[O] & %8 6 45 5% {€.8,813,000% Tt (B E R4
68,359,000 7T ) ° & B & B # [[{ K ?%& Fi
BEEKAE 79,311,000/ LB st AR E

- RAF+-_A=+—BLEFENK
ABUEFERA -

MR-ZT—=F— A ARaBTREEE
300,000,000 7t (18 & R #72,327,000,000
,%75)29875H§§E BT Z=ZZE—N\F
ZE ) - R (B4 A2,327,000,0007 TC °
155% %Fﬂﬁ&fé( =—/\¢—H>EIJ
B - I 78 ¥ H ™ {8 300,000,000 T (& &
PiN/N Hﬁﬁf”“%ﬂﬁéé%@uﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂz
BRE(NLELBEZERASEENREAMNZ
FMEVEREZHRFLBALEZE  HEIH
ERHATFTRAZ IR RIGHERRR - R =
T—RFE=ZA  ARARBRESHBEKANG
AR Y # 1) 1% 7K & B8.300,000,0003% 7t (1B %
R %72,325,288,0007% 7T ) #)104.9375% &
E2HAERN_-"Z—N\FE2E BEREH
FEONAHEMEASHE -ERSER
514,812,500 JT (8 & 7 49114,811,000
B IT) HE B o & ££/5136,970,0007% JT AY
EOZEERABHERKABERNEZ
—E-RFE+ A=+ —BILEENLE
ABRERTE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

20 BORROWINGS (Continued) 20 88 @)
The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are as follows: REBRRERERZELEEZERNT
2015 2014
—E-RF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1st January w—HA—H 4,607,387 4,586,251
Early redemption of the 2016 Notes REBR-ZT—AFEE (2,326,999) —
Amortisation of issue costs BRI 22,385 19,708
Exchange difference ME 5, = 58 357 1,428
At 31st December m+=-—A=+—H 2,303,130 4,607,387
The senior notes are jointly and severally guaranteed by certain BEEEERETFTHEB AR EE L ERIZ
subsidiaries and are secured by the share capital of the MER WARB AR ZBRAIEEE - R
subsidiaries. As at 31st December 2015, the net assets of these —E—FAFE+-_A=+—H " ZEWBA
subsidiaries were approximately HK$8,178,703,000 (2014: A2 BEFEY A8,178,703,0007% - ( =
HK$11,123,635,000). Z— P04 : 11,123,635,0005% 7T) °
The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows: EBEZRHS TN :
Bank and financial
institution borrowings Senior notes Total
BRITRVBEHRBEE BERE mct
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-Rf ZT-NF -B-HF —T-HMNF —EB-HF —T-NOF
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TRER FAT TER THET TER THET

Within one year —F R 11,188,721 12,638,362 - — 11,188,721 12,638,362
Between one and two —FEMFR

years 8,205,656 11,790,754 - 2,313,585 = 8,205,656 14,104,339
Between two and five years M4 & 7 F A 18,387,494 12,898,569 = 2,303,130 2,293,802 20,690,624 15,192,371
Over five years BBERF 6,620,664 7,450,758 - — 6,620,664 7,450,758

44,402,535 44,778,443 = 2,303,130 4,607,387 46,705,665 49,385,830
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20 BORROWINGS (Continued) 20 B E @)

The borrowings are denominated in the following currencies and
with the following respective weighted average effective interest

EEATIERAREMLRRTIZEER
AEF BRI RGE

rates:
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-mEF
Effective Effective
HK$’000 interest rate HK$’'000 interest rate
FET B A% FA T BB H =
Renminbi AREE
— Bank and financial — IRIT RIS
institution borrowings EN=R 43,075,911 7.44% 43,175,590 7.69%
US dollar VI
— Senior notes —BEEE 2,303,130 10.40% 4,607,387 11.39%
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 877,584 2.08% 1,111,683 1.82%
HK dollar BT
— Bank borrowings —RITEE 449,040 2.68% 491,170 2.65%
46,705,665 49,385,830
The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are as BEZEEERATFEET
follows:
Carrying amount Fair values
BREE AYE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —T-WE ZE-HF —FT-0OF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAT FHET FH&T
Bank and financial institution WITRMEHEEE
borrowings 44,402,535 44,778,443 44,756,464 44,654,027
Senior notes BREEE 2,303,130 4,607,387 2,440,099 4,491,807
46,705,665 49,385,830 47,196,563 49,145,834

The fair values of the bank and financial institution borrowings are
based on cash flows discounted using the Group’s average
borrowings rate of 2.6% to 8.1% per annum as at the year end (2014:
2.2% to 9.0% per annum), depending on the currency of the
borrowings. The fair values of the senior notes are based on the
market price as at the year end date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

20 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31st December 2015, the Group’s bank and financial
institution borrowings were secured by:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

the Group’s land (prepaid operating lease payments for hotel
properties and self-use buildings) of approximately
HK$183,230,000 (2014: HK$156,631,000);

the Group’s hotel properties of approximately
HK$1,403,224,000 (2014: HK$1,744,076,000);

the Group’s properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$16,901,434,000 (2014: HK$16,075,364,000);

the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately
HK$5,711,516,000 (2014: HK$6,240,264,000);

the Group’s investment properties of approximately
HK$10,504,357,000 (2014: HK$11,543,739,000);

the Group’s available-for-sale financial assets of approximately
HK$3,129,699,000 (2014: HK$3,179,577,000);

the Group’s bank deposits of approximately HK$537,134,000
(2014: HK$1,144,675,000); and

the Group’s equity interests in subsidiaries of HK$1,006,586,000
(2014: HK$439,188,000).
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20 B E @)

n=

T-FF+-A=+—0 AEEZ

RITRMBEEBEZEETATIERR
PEIR

U)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

7N £ B #7183,230,00058 T (= & —
Y 4F : 156,631,000 jT) 2 £ 3 CH
EMERBAEFZEAMKERE
IE)

7R 5 B #91,403,224,0005 T (Z & —
Y £ : 1,744,076,0008 7T) 2 B IE Y
%

7N £ E 4916,901,434,000 T (= &
— P 4F : 16,075,364,0007% 7T ) Z ]
HEEZRREAYE:

NE B 45,711,516,00078 T (ZF —
PO £ : 6,240,264,0007% 7T ) 2 A] 4t
EZEERYE:

K & B 4910,504,357,00058 T (= &
— PO 4 : 11,543,739,000/ T ) Z &
B

7N £ B 493,129,699,00058 7T (Z & —
/g 4 : 3,179,577,0005 70 ) 2 Al {it
EVBEE:

7N & F 49537,134,0008 T (= & —
/Y 4 : 1,144,675,00078 7T) 2 R 17 1%
=R

AEBRHWEBRAZKRAEZR
1,006,586,0007%% st ( — & — 4 4 :
439,188,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same tax authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

21

i 5E Fr 15 Bl

EEHBEEREECHRAEBEELSH
MBREERANPRIAEESR QAR R G
HITEMNEREEEERBRER —
MG HEER - S BREE - BESHE
LN

2015 2014
—E-AF —F—OF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET THETT
Deferred tax assets: FEEFRIBE E -
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered —#HR+Z@AKRYKE 2
after more than twelve months EERIAEE 321,476 265,339
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered —#HR+EARKE 2
within twelve months FEERIAE E 80,686 76,127
402,162 341,466
Deferred tax liabilities: FEEFRIBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised —BRTZER %R
after more than twelve months EEFIB B R (5,270,038) (5,436,096)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised —EBRTEARERZ
within twelve months EEHEEE (593,866) (364,470)
(5,863,904) (5,800,566)
(5,461,742) (5,459,100)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 21 IE % Fr 18 B o)

The net movements in deferred taxation are as follows: EET BRI T -
2015 2014
—EB-HF —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Assets/(liabilities) BE/(Aaf)
At 1st January n—A—H (5,459,100) (5,422,826)
Recognised in the consolidated income statement A 4R & U 25 & 52
(Note 31) (K7 7£31) (184,482) (89,147)
Reclassification from current tax liabilities BEAHRBEEESNHHE = (71,566)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 37) Wb — KB R R (K a37) (61,903) -
Revaluation gain upon transfer of land costs and B E ik N A E KR EE
properties and equipment to investment b AR
properties (Note 25) (Kt 5t25) (196,573) -
Released directly from/(credited directly to) equity BB B, (Bt A) i
(Note 25) (Ktat25)
— Fair value loss/(gain) on available-for-sale —AHEERBEEY
financial assets N EFE (k) 4,611 (171,735)
— Assets revaluation reserve realised upon —HERELHEMERER
disposal of properties held for sale 2EEEERHE 105,431 277,936
Exchange difference fE X =% 330,274 18,238
At 31st December = = (5,461,742) (5,459,100)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 21 EZEFFFESHwm
The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, EERBEELRECEHRIEAGB 2 (1
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within mMEEMHMRBMEINEAER AN Z &4HE )
the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: MmN
Deferred tax liabilities REHREEE
Withholding
income tax on
undistributed Revaluation
profits surplus Total
RERDIK
aRFZFEH
g st BEAER et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1st January 2014 RZTE—NFE—H— — (5,718,011) (5,718,011)
Recognised in the consolidated — F4RE WS R IER

income statement (1,820) (134,675) (136,495)
Reclassification from currenttax B AREAFIEEEEHHE

liabilities (71,566) — (71,566)
Released directly from equity, net B ARl B @ /F58 — 106,201 106,201
Exchange difference MEH =% 123 19,182 19,305
At 31st December 2014 RZE—NFE+=A=+—H (73,263) (5,727,303) (5,800,566)
Recognised in the consolidated ~ 4R& Iz =R

income statement (2,297) (265,240) (267,537)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Uy B8 — I B B 2 &) (172 37)

(Note 37) — (61,903) (61,909)
Credited directly to equity, net BRI AR - FE = (86,531) (86,531)
Exchange difference b =58 4,344 348,289 352,633
At 31st December 2015 R-E—RF+-A=+—H (71,216) (5,792,688) (5,863,904)
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE

Tax losses
HEEER

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
At 1st January m—H—H 341,466 295,185
Recognised in the consolidated income statement 7 45 & Uk 25 3% HE 2 83,055 47,348
Exchange difference PE H, =% (22,359) (1,067)
At 31st December nt+=-—A=+—H 402,162 341,466

The recognised deferred tax assets relate to tax losses amounting #91,608,648,000/ ;t( — & — PO F:
to approximately HK$1,608,648,000 (2014: HK$1,365,864,000), 1,365,864,0007% 7T ) © B R B @8 1 IH S
which are expiring from 2016 through 2020. B BREHBEESRR-_ZT—R"FE2=

T_TEHMEMR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2015, the
Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$366,930,000 (2014: HK$347,413,000 ) in respect of tax losses
amounting to approximately HK$1,799,748,000 (2014:
HK$1,684,627,000).

As at 31st December 2015, deferred tax liabilities of
HK$1,659,026,000 (2014: HK$1,674,570,000) have not been
recognised for withholding tax on the unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China, as these earnings are expected to
be reinvested.

CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

Current tax liabilities mainly represent payable for Mainland China
corporate income tax and Mainland China land appreciation tax.

21

22

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

IE 3L AT 13 Bt (@)

FEEBIEEE @

BEEMRBEETEEMBERBE A
FERBRARRERDRFNERMAMEE
ZHEEBEEBEBER R_ZTE—AF+
ZA=Zt-"H AEBYTEBRREL
i 18 & E #366,930,0008 t( = T —
/g 4F : 347,413,000/ ot ) * W R M BB
18 #91,799,748,0007% ;L ( = T — IO F :
1,684,627,0003# 7T) °

R—EBE—F&E+-_A=+—R0 K&
EHMABmETHBRKRKENE QR X
EHBFAMNENHEERELER BB
&1,659,026,000/8 7Tt( — & — I F:
1,674,570,0007% 70) * RE & tt £ & 5|78
HiERIEBKRE -

B EAKE

AR EEIRRENTEAELE
P15 19 Be & A< #p B K Bk £ b 2 (B A1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

A W R B T (o)
23 SHARE CAPITAL 23 KA
Number of
ordinary
shares Par value
ZEREE HE
‘000 HK$'000
T i BT
At 1st January 2014 R-ZTE—WNF—HF—H 2,245,366 224,537
Repurchase of own shares 8 Bl A & Bk 1 (1,450) (145)
At 31st December 2014 R-ZE—NWMF+=-_A=+—8H
and 1st January 2015 rEZZFE—HF—HA—H 2,243,916 224,392
Repurchase of own shares EAERNEGi ) (9,798) (980)
At 31st December 2015 R—_E—hEFE+=-_A=+—H 2,234,118 223,412

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 3,000,000,000
shares (2014: 3,000,000,000 shares), with a par value of HK$0.1
per share (2014: HK$0.1 per share).

All issued shares are fully paid.
During the year ended 31st December 2015, the Company
repurchased 9,798,000 shares (2014: 1,450,000 shares) for

approximately HK$67,529,000 (2014: HK$10,786,000). These
shares were subsequently cancelled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

24 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 31st December 2015 is
HK$2,181,998,000 (2014: HK$2,385,072,000), of which
HK$2,035,230,000 (2014: HK$2,188,148,000) relates to Believe
Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best Group”). Believe Best
Group is 80% owned by the Group and is principally engaged in
property development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland
China. The non-controlling interests in respect of the remaining
subsidiaries are not material individually.

Set out below are the summarised financial information of Believe
Best Group, which have included fair value adjustments resulted
from the acquisition of Believe Best Group.

Br o B 5 e 2 B RE ()

24 FEFIMES

R—ZEBE—FRE+=_RA=+—8" i
B M ME 2 A2 FE 52,181,998,00078 T
(=— =& — M 4 :2,385,072,000/% 7T ) °
H #2,085,230,0007 jo( = & — I F :
2,188,148,000/% 7T) 5 E & & BR A A
((fEEEEDE@E EEEBHRASEE
B80%HEm  TERFPE KNI REBEE
NEMERRE -GEEHRKHB QR MIEE
FIMEESETTERK -

EEEENMBEMREFHIINTX B
BRUBEEEEMER A TFEHE-

Summarised consolidated balance sheet GEMBRAREE
Believe Best Group
EEER
2015 2014
—E-AfF —EF—OF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets IEREBEE 63,186 69,138
Current assets mENEE 24,669,255 26,076,723
Total assets REE 24,732,441 26,145,861
Liabilities aE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (10,283,826) (11,712,957)
Current liabilities mE A E (4,708,251) (3,932,729)
Total liabilities BEBHE (14,992,077) (15,645,686)
Net assets BEE 9,740,364 10,500,175
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&7 A B R B RE ()

24 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

208

Summarised consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

24 FEEZFHIMHER @
GETHWREREE

Believe Best Group

EESE
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Revenues W z5 75,481 1,003,907
(Loss)/profit before taxation B BiA (B518), & (121,084) 303,028
Taxation 18 (29,984) (230,674)
(Loss)/profit for the year and total comprehensive 4 E (F18), /%A REEL2E
(loss)/income for the year (B18), WA Bz (151,068) 72,354
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to  JEF I M S B 2 2 E
non-controlling interests (E548) U A #a%58 (30,214) 14,471
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests KB T IR RS 2 AR B = =
Summarised consolidated cash flow statement HMERERERPE
Believe Best Group
BESE
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEFH 7 HERE
Cash used in operations KEFACHES (56,229) (1,198,709)
Mainland China corporate income tax paid BT AREDERER (33,551) (380,573)
Mainland China land appreciation tax paid B B KR i (EF (1,771) (20,975)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBMA RS (91,551) (1,600,257)
Net cash used in investing activities KA EBA RS F5E (6,907) (13,317)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMEEES (A EEZ
financing activities RE&FHE (759,469) 2,036,221
Net (decrease)/increases in cash and RBeERREEEBMZORL)/
cash equivalents pricly I PR (857,927) 422,647
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January R—H—BZzHER
ReEEY 1,249,928 830,767
Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents BehIRE&EEBY
M 5 518 (66,774) (3,486)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December R+-_A=+—HzHR& K
ReEEY 325,227 1,249,928
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25 RESERVES 25 fi&
Assets Currency
Share  Statutory revaluation translation  Retained
premium reserve (i) reserve (i) differences  earnings Total
EERE BEER EBER
% 43 % 8 (i) it 4 (ii) =8 REEA st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET THET THET FAET TAET
For year ended BE-_Z-H%+=A8
31st December 2015 =+—-HLEE
Balance at 1st January 2015 R-—ZE—HE—HF—H
% 15,931,098 161,117 1,282,475 6,612,411 31,388,873 55,375,974
Profit for the year FREHA = = - — 1,645,942 1,645,942
Currency translation differences EHEY =58 - - —  (8,279,486) —  (8,279,486)
Repurchase of own shares B B K & i (n (69,563) - - - 3,014 (66,549)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale 7] it & Bt 5 & & 2
financial assets NFEEE = = (18,443) = = (18,443)
Realised upon disposal of HE R E MR
properties held for sale 15 - - (221,267) - - (221,267)
Revaluation gain upon transfer of &% # + 3 A 7K 704 % 2 3%
land costs and properties and BEREMERZ
equipment to investment E 6y
properties - - 763,341 - - 763,341
Deferred tax, net R - F 5 - - (86,531) - - (86,531)
Balance at RZT—HF+=HA
31st December 2015 =t+—BZ&EH 15,861,535 161,117 1,719,575 3,332,925 33,037,829 54,112,981
For year ended BE-_Z-0N&+=A
31st December 2014 =+—-RLEE
Balance at 1st January 2014 RZE—HE—A—H
% 15,941,244 161,117 1,072,634 6,904,380 28,442,067 52,521,442
Profit for the year FEHEF = = = — 2,947,301 2,947,301
Currency translation differences EHEY =% — - — (291,969) — (291,969)
Repurchase of own shares E-AERNE ) (10,146) - - - (495) (10,641)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale a] fft H & BT IS & &E 2
financial assets R E R - - 686,941 - - 686,941
Realised upon disposal of HE R S MR
properties held for sale I5 — — (5683,301) — — (5683,301)
Deferred tax EERIE = - 106,201 - — 106,201
Balance at RZZE—WFE+=A
31st December 2014 =t+—BZ&& 15,931,098 161,117 1,282,475 6,612,411 31,388,873 55,375,974
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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25 RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

)

(i

(i)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are required to
appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) to the statutory reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates
determined by their respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves
can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance of
bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the
development of business operations. When the statutory reserves reaches
an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital of the Company’s
subsidiaries, further appropriation needs not be made.

Assets revaluation reserve represents revaluation reserve of available-for-
sale financial assets, and the balance of fair value gain in respect of 69.5%
interest in Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Real Estate Limited (‘“GZQREL”) (see
(iii) below).

Upon completion of the acquisition of Guangzhou Nonggongshang
Construction and Development Company Limited in 2007, GZQREL
became a subsidiary of the Group. The fair value gain in respect of the
69.5% interest in GZQREL previously held by the Group (as a joint
venture) of approximately HK$2,180,096,000, net of tax, has been
credited to an asset revaluation reserve directly in equity.

Subsequent sales of the properties developed by GZQREL are regarded
as partial disposal of the business of GZQREL and accordingly the related
portion of the asset revaluation reserve is released to the consolidated
income statement. As at 31st December 2015, the asset revaluation
reserve of GZQREL amounted to approximately HK$944,945,000 (2014:
HK$1,060,781,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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26 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 26 Htt(F#8) W=z FHE
2015 2014
—ZE-—FEF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Dividend income from g B WA KB
— available-for-sale financial assets — A HEEMBEE 192,964 179,528
— financial assets at fair value through profit —BAFEEFBERYEZ
or loss WEEE 377 422
Government grants I 47 B 3,920 1,482
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value % 2~ 1% @18 25 51 B8R ~ BT 7%
through profit or loss BEZAFE(EE), WK (577) 1,462
Excess of the fair value of net assets of BWEHBEARFEEATE
a subsidiary acquired over acquisition cost BHUWERAZ 58
(Note 37) (Kt a£37) 2,933 —
Net foreign exchange losses charged in RERE IR R AT 2 BN
consolidated income statement 1R F 5
— net foreign exchange losses — [ H EEFRE (279,028) (45,572)
— exchange losses relating to foreign —BEERHINEEER
currency borrowings capitalised i 518 41,930 -
(37,481) 137,322
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

27 EXPENSES BY NATURE 27 RHEEE D 2BX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses Y BEEHEXRA HEMTHHEES
and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows: B UAE—REITHRER 20T :
2015 2014
= —T-mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Advertising and promotion costs EEMEERX 176,892 175,892
Amortisation of land costs o b AR N B 5 57,044 51,299
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR N & 9,316 9,867
Other professional fees EEX8H 6,807 7,513
Cost of completed properties sold HEDZKE Z KA 8,180,701 10,566,578
Depreciation of properties and equipment MENEREITE 182,738 159,023
Direct operating expenses arising from investment A NERIREWMEEL 2
properties that HELERAX
— generate rental income —EAEs KA 132,291 75,513
— did not generate rental income —WEELARASKRA 26,840 14,440
Employees’ benefits costs (including Directors’ EERAKA(BIEEEWNE)
emoluments) (Note 28) (Ki7£28) 915,403 1,030,881
Loss on disposals of properties and equipment HEMERREER 9,039 2,971
Operating lease rental in respect of premises MEZKEHRERS 30,424 44,499
Provision for impairment of accounts receivable [ Uk BE 3% 5 {8 5 & 22,853 17,038
28 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS 28 EE®AIMAK
2015 2014
ZE-5F —E—mF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FE T FHT
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 643,999 758,018
Sales commission and bonus HEME ML 151,298 115,516
Pension costs S NG AN
— Defined contribution plans — EREHERETE 120,103 157,371
— Provision for/(Write back of provision for) — RERE S EE (0 #)
long-service payment 3 (24)
915,403 1,030,881

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

28 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (continued)

(@) Pensions — Defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under
the MPF scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the employer
and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 from 1st June
2012 to 31st May 2014 and HK$1,500 from 1st June 2014 to 31st
December 2015 and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its employees
in Mainland China. The Group’s employees make monthly
contributions to the plans at approximately 8% of the income
(comprising salaries, allowances and bonus), while the Group
contributes 12% to 22% of such income and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond the
contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

No forfeited contributions (2014: nil) were utilised during the year.
There is no forfeited contributions leaving available at the year-end
to reduce future contributions.

Contributions totalling HK$6,144,000 (2014: HK$11,760,000) were
payable to the fund at the year-end.

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

28 & & & F B & ()

(a) BkE — EHEKRETE

AEBERERERELHL2HE —THA
— (B EEAEE 2 FREERE A
aHlMAEeTE (BB E]) - RIE
wESHE AEEEFKEEESE
BIRABAFHULABENMAES 8 KZ
BEWAZS%MZTEETAHR &
FTEEBESEMEZBAHERZ ERR
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=+—HBA125508 L - ME-_Z—NF
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22%EHH R o BRAELE TN AEEL
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N
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KB o B B R W SR BRI & R AT it
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4 6,144,000/ 7T (ZE — P9 £ : 11,760,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

28 EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS COSTS (continued) 28 1{& & & I B &< (&)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

b) EBBRESHFE AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the REEAREBRREESFALTEERSE
Group for the year include two (2014: two) directors, whose (ZE2E—UF - MB)ES BFE2HMEE
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The REXFHENN O MRE - HA=Z (=
emoluments for the remaining three (2014: three) individual are as E—OE:=Z=Z)FAMALTZBES T -
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 7,313 7,943
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme BEHRKSFE ZHK 303 87
7,616 8,030
The emoluments fell within the following band: Bl v F LA T4 A

Number of individuals

AR

2015 2014

—B-EfF —E-—MmF

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T 2 2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 # 7T £ 2,500,000 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 # 7T £ 3,000,000 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T % 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T % 4,000,000 7T = 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 29 EERmNER
DIRECTORS
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st HEEx—_ZT—AF+-_A=1+—HI=E
December 2015 is set out below: B ZBESZME&EH O T :
As Director (i) As Management (ii)
ERBEZE() 1E 5B B E (i)

Basic salaries,
allowances and

Fees benefits-in-kind (ii) Employee benefits Total
HEAHFE  EUR
e B Y FI i) EERA #ast
Name of director EENF HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET THET TET FET
Executive directors HITES

Mr. Au Wai Kin BEZLEE - - 252 252
Mr. Bao Wenge (v) B AR SLHEW) — — 1,681 1,681
Ms. Chu Kut Yung KiEBLZ L — — 2,430 2,430
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KEKEE - - - -
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BRBEE — - 3,717 3,717
Mr. Xie Bao Xin HEELESE — - 1,491 1,491
- - 9,571 9,571

Independent non-executive B EHIT

directors 2=

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David THEELE 300 - - 300
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver (vii) & & % 5t A (vii) 81 — — 81
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron PREEVE L& 300 - - 300
Mr. Ching Yu Lung (vi) T2 angE 5 A (vi) 150 - - 150
831 - - 831
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ao B S 5 A R ()

29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st
December 2014 (Restated):

ot

29 EEF

BHE_ZT —

As Director (j)
EREE()

= NS @)

ERE @)

Basic salaries,
allowances and

ME+-_A=+—HI*
B BE=ZME (EED)

As Management (i)

Fees  benefits-in-kind (i) ~ Employee benefits Total
EXFe - RER
ik B Y H % (i) EE®=F waEt
Name of director EEMS HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET FET
Executive directors HITESE

Mr. Au Wai Kin (R e - — 252 252
Mr. Bao Wenge (v) B SHE SE () - - 213 213
Ms. Chu Kut Yung RGBT — — 2,499 2,499
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KEKEE — — — —
Mr. Liao Ruo Qing BRELE — — 3,791 3,791
Mr. Xie Bao Xin WEHEE — — 1,516 1,516
Mr. Zheng Shao Hui (vii) B /) 8 2 A (vil) = = 1,103 1,103
— — 9,374 9,374

Independent non-executive BYFEHIT

directors E -4

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David THELRE 290 — — 290
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver (vii) & 7 % 5t 4 (viii) 290 — — 290
Mr. Tan Leng Cheng, Aaron BEELEE 290 — — 290
870 — — 870

During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of
HK$240,000 (2014: HK$240,000).

Notes:

(i) The amounts represented emoluments paid or payable in respect of a
person’s services as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings.

(ii) The amounts represented emoluments paid or payable in respect of a
person’s other services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiary undertakings and included salaries,
allowances, discretionary bonuses and employer’s contribution to a
pension scheme.

(iii) The amounts include salaries, discretionary bonus, housing allowances
and employer’s contribution to a pension scheme.

(iv) During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2014: nil).

V) Mr. Bao Wenge was appointed on 18th November 2014.

(Vi) Mr. Ching Yu Lung was appointed on 1st July 2015.

(Vi) Mr. Zheng Shao Hui resigned on 18th November 2014.

(viii) ~ Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver passed away on 9th April 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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30 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 30 B U A R

2015 2014

—E-AHEF T —MmEF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTHET F#& T

Interest expense and other borrowing costs: MBI MEMEERA:

— loans from banks and financial institutions —RITEMBERBER 3,568,136 3,149,511

— senior notes —BLEERE 331,524 525,157
Total borrowing costs incurred FissE 2 BEENA 3,899,660 3,674,668
Less: Amount capitalised as part of the cost of BT IERERYME L (3,899,660) (3,674,668)

properties under development B0 P AN 2 FRIB
Cost on early redemption of senior notes REEREBERE KA 79,311 =
Interest income from banks and a joint venture RERITRER—HBEERRZ (96,709) (65,267)
FE WA

Net finance income B 75 U A F BR (17,398) (65,267)

The weighted average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised
during the year ended 31st December 2015 was approximately 7.4%

(2014: 7.9%) per annum.

BE_Z-—hF+_RAR=+—HIL#HF
€ B 5E & AN E) & B RS B AN 15 4 R

RN ABTAB(ZT—NF :79E) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

31 TAXATION 31 #HIE
2015 2014
—E2—FF —E—E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current tax N EA R 18
Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) BEBFGH (K iF@E) 140 376
Mainland China corporate income tax (Note (b)) PR ABESEMSE (HaEb) 485,656 672,862
Mainland China land appreciation tax (Note (c)) o B K B £ b SR E R (B 5% (c) 563,248 1,199,782
Mainland China withholding income tax (Note (d) ™1 B A BEFE 0 P 15 % (B 5% (0)) 23,741 105,090
1,072,785 1,978,110
Deferred tax IR RE T I8
Mainland China corporate income tax (Note (b)) AR K B 1 ZE RS R (M 7 (b)) 222,945 190,123
Mainland China land appreciation tax (Note (c)) rh B oA BE + 3 3B A B (B A () (40,760) (102,796)
Mainland China withholding income tax (Note (d)) &1 B8 A [ 38 0 B 15 55 (4 77 (0)) 2,297 1,820
184,482 89,147
Taxation (Note(e)) I (K it Ee) 1,257,267 2,067,257
The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until March RAREREHMERERIE EEZT
2035. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated “hF=ZAL -EBEZESHWERA
under the International Business Companies Act (now the BVI DREABEZHESBEBEEELREGE
Business Companies Act, 2004) of the British Virgin Islands, or the RRBREZHSEEERFIA2004) - 5 &
BVI Business Companies Act, 2004 of the British Virgin Islands, BRIZHEZRBERIHEEELNFE
and are not liable to any form of taxation in the British Virgin Islands. 2004 A 32 - MBEZFEMER 2
RBEZESHIE -
Notes: Hat -
(@)  Hong Kong profits tax @ BEMNEN
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% on the estimated HE_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HLFE"
assessable profit for the year ended 31st December 2015 (2014: 16.5%). BEAFNGSHERFAGBTERB &5 2

16.5% s IR H (Z T —PU4F : 16.5%) °

(b)  Mainland China corporate income tax (o) PR RECEMESH
Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are subject to BHE-_ZT—AF+-A=+—BHLFE"
Mainland China corporate income tax at the rate of 25% for the year RPBAREKRIEEECHEBERRAR
ended 31st December 2015 (2014: 25%). 5% ZHMEHMPBRRNEREREHR(ZF
— P4 : 25%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

31 TAXATION (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Mainland China land appreciation tax

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

31 HIE @

et - (%)

(©

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds
of sales of properties less deductible expenditures including costs of land

and development and construction expenditures.

(d) Mainland China withholding income tax

Dividend distribution made by Mainland China subsidiaries and joint
ventures to shareholders outside of Mainland China in respect of their
profits earned after 1st January 2008 is subject to withholding income tax

at tax rates of 5% or 10%, where applicable.

(e) The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical ()
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

profits of the group companies as follows:

rh B A BE £ 1 12 (B
REKRE T B ER B LG (E - A&
5 b EE AT /S AIB 0 0T 1R B 2 (B 45 L it
RANREREAS RBERAN)  BHRER
R 30% = 60% U °

B K ETRAA S
REAREME QR RAE QAR B AR
AP R BEER T NF—A—H
18 BRER 2 4 F P 4 I 2 B S 0 IR ZH 42 5% 3k
10% (A& ) < Bt R G AN RS o

N6 B B TR s A R AR AR & B A B pn#E R
HERREMNBEEFEZE RSB IEEN
T~

2015 2014
—E-RF —ET—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT F&T
Profit before taxation & 55 A1 v 7 2,839,305 4,995,193
Less: Share of loss/(profit) of associates W D hEE &R FEE G 484 (564)
Less: Share of profit of joint ventures e SR /NI bz | (154,196) (91,023
2,685,593 4,903,606
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in BREMEZ %A ERER
the respective regions BEFFEZHE 702,116 1,233,298
Income not subject to tax TRRBBA (55,066) (132,159)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 135,326 9,100
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses PRABAERERBIEEIS (1,481) (15,419)
Deferred tax asset not recognised RERELEHIBEE 58,468 42,783
Land appreciation tax deductible for calculation of income tax AR EATERBSHEARZ
purposes + 3B E R (130,622) (274,246)
Withholding tax on dividend income from PRC subsidiaries and BB A G L& ZE R A2
joint ventures f& B A Z FEMEL 26,038 106,910
734,779 970,271
Land appreciation tax T EE 522,488 1,096,986
Taxation E 1,257,267 2,067,257

The weighted average applicable tax rate was approximately 25% (2014: 25%).

NI E A B R H25% (=T — T : 256%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

32 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

32 BRAR
X

FHREE -

BREXABMNIREARRBRERB A
FE A58 M BR A F AE BT E BB I

2015 2014
—®-HF —T-Mm4F
Profit attributable to equity holders of RAERERE AENG
the Company (HK$’000) st A (F#7T) 1,645,942 2,947,301
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in BERETERR 2 NEFLSE (T
issue ('000) f%) 2,238,837 2,244,126
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) A E AR B F (BT EIT) 0.74 1.31
Diluted 8
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted HAEERBERNE  BEHEBITENY

average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Since there was
no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years ended 31st HE_ZT—
December 2015 and 2014, diluted earnings per share is equal to

basic earnings per share.

33 DIVIDEND

BRZINEFHHEELAE  UREAME
BB H2EBRESR
AFERZFTE-—HEHF+ZH=
+T—BLEFE WREBEAREEN LB

BEH o BN

B At ESRETFRNESRERRN —

B o

33 KB

2015 2014
—E-HEF —E-mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Interim dividend paid of nil (2014: nil) per B R HA R B AR i AR
ordinary share EET(ZZT—NF: ZHET) = =

Proposed final dividend of HK$0.10 (2014: nil)  ## )& & HAI% & & A% T 38 A%

per ordinary share 0.107 7T (7 F:ZTHT) 223,020 =
223,020 —
Final dividend of HK$0.10 per share in respect of the financial year EEgEEamnd s —A1F+=A
ended 31st December 2015 (2014: nil) has been proposed by the =+t HIEFHREEIR H REARE TR
Board and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the Q10T (ZE—FE /) ZKRBEAEF

forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements as at
31st December 2015 have not reflected this dividend payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

34 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH 34 GREREREKRMTE
FLOW STATEMENT
Cash generated from/(used in) operations REELX (A zZHE
2015 2014
ZE-5F —T-mE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit before taxation & B A A 2,839,305 4,995,193
Adjustments for: EEE-E
— Finance income — BB A (96,709) (65,267)
— Finance costs — B A AR 79,311 =
— Dividend income — REWA (193,341) (179,950)
— Share of profit of joint ventures — DA E R R &E (154,196) (91,023)
— Share of loss/(profit) of associates — DB A A FEECEF) 484 (564)
— Depreciation of properties and equipment —ENEKETE 182,738 159,023
— Loss on disposals of properties and —HEMERREEE
equipment 9,039 2,971
— Amortisation of land costs — i B AN 5 57,044 51,299
— Provision for impairment of accounts — FEURBR SRR B B

receivable 22,853 17,038

— Fair value gain on investment properties —BREMERAFEKE (1,334,369) (1,222,228)
— Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at —BAFEEBERYEZ
fair value through profit or loss WBEECATE
& (W) 577 (1,462)
— Net exchange loss —[EHEBEFE 237,098 45,572
— Excess of the fair value of net assets of — W EBNBARFEE
a subsidiary acquired over NFEBHWERARZ
acquisition cost k| (3,025) —
Changes in working capital (excluding the effects 4B & & # &) (T aiE U~
of acquisition/disposal of subsidiaries and HEWE QA RERZES
exchange differences on consolidation): FERB2TE):
— Properties under development for sale and — AR EZERPYER
completed properties for sale B E BB E 2,839,883 (212,561)
— Accounts receivable — FEURBR 3K (87,439) 35,343
— Prepayments for acquisition of land — Wi b 2 TR RIE (15,594) (1,935)
— Prepayments, deposits and other current —JEftEE - HE R
assets Hi B & E (327,574) 244,120
— Accounts payable — ETERK (908,156) 1,045,501
— Land cost payable — B+ R AR (571) (443,460)
— Deferred revenue — B A 2,315,539 (5,211,258)
— Accruals and other payables — JEETFRIE I E M FE 1 IR 138,962 194,323
Cash generated from/(used in) operations REEL/(FFA)ZHS 5,601,859 (639,325)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

34 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH

222

FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

In February 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interests in Guangdong Zhongfu Real Estate Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangdong Zhongfu”) from Ms. Chu Kam Lai (“Ms. Chu”), a
related party, and a third party for a total consideration of
approximately RMB53,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$67,945,000). Ms. Chu is a sister of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and an aunt of
Ms. Chu Kut Yung, the Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company. The major asset of Guangdong Zhongfu is a lot of
land for property development in Huizhou City, Guangdong
Province, Mainland China, and the transaction has been accounted
for as an acquisition of assets.

4 mEBHEREXRNTw@

W B8 By I8 2 B

RZE—RAF_A AKEETKBE#HE
ATXREeBZLT((XRELETDE—RE=
FRERERGTRERERERAR(RE
RAPE]D 2100% R Az - BREDN A
AR # 53,500,000 7T (48 & 7 #967,945,000
BIL) e KX LTAARAEEEEHFER
KEERBGK WARRAEEGEHERFE
AERELITHGEG BERFPRERNTEEE
AR PBRAEEREEMNTAEYD
XBRR o IH WEZXIHIMEWEEEA
E\Eo

HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: FTE 2 FEE
Properties under development for sale AHEECERPYME 67,921
Other assets H & E 21
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEY 3
67,945
Satisfied by: AT H X E R -
Cash consideration HeRE 67,945
Analysis of the net cash outflow arising on EEXRWREZFHRESMN
acquisition: A
Total cash consideration RIS RE (67,945)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EWEs ReRBESEFEY 3
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition EEEWEZFReRT (67,942)

On 30th June 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Tianjin Royal Garden Hot Spring Development
Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Royal Garden”). The transaction has been
accounted for as a business combination. Details of the acquisition
are disclosed in Note 37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

35 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

Financial guarantees not provided for in the financial statements are
as follows:

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

MBER

AR BHREPELEEH M BERDN
T

2015 2014
—E-RE —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities FLiEE NEEYE 2 & T
granted to certain buyers of the Group’s BRIBRIREE R MR RT
properties i 2 1R 10,385,586 10,082,539
Guarantees given to banks for bank borrowings  FLF B 2 & 2 R 17 & & MM
of subsidiaries IRITIEHR 2 BER = —
Guarantees given to a bank for bank borrowings gt — & & A &l R 17 & & 1 A
of a joint venture RITIE L < BR 2,232,710 2,371,138
12,618,296 12,453,677

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities granted to certain
buyers of the Group’s properties represented the guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to
the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible
to repay the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks
and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession
of the related properties. Such guarantees were to be discharged
upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate
which are generally be available within 1 year after the purchasers
take possession of the relevant properties; or (i) the full repayment
of the mortgage loan by the purchasers of properties.

The Directors consider that in case of default in payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties can cover the repayment
of the outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalty (see also Note 3.1(b)).

WREEAKREYNEZE TERRHKRE
ERmERTIEL ZERAERE TR
BRHOZEBREZER DEBRAEE
MEZETERLHZ2EZBENR - RE
ZERNGR MZEERBRZIEBN
R AEEARABERERNENERIET
ZHARERRIBASER B E &
R MASEBAERGHBEYE AT
RHENRMERAE  B()ELFEHEMBE
BERREXEREBMER—FAHE
H) HZEVWENERDEFRREE
RUARPERE)  ZERGEEE -

EEZRR HHBRBRAEFNER - HE
MENFIBE FERABME S RERN
BEAERZFHNE LR (FRE2
B BT 3£ 3.1(b)) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

36 COMMITMENTS 36 HiE

(@) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred
are as follows:

(a) BEAREIE
RNEFHHRAREEZERARZOT !

2015 2014
—E-EHF —T—mF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Contracted but not provided for B4 18 R B &
— Acquisition of land and equity interests in —WHEETHE T ER
certain land holding entities 2 I R R A R 2,375,192 3,542,121
— Property construction costs — WS K 2,084,936 2,983,084
— Capital contribution to an associate ——HBEARZHE 255,771 271,629
4,715,899 6,796,834

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of
premises under various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

(b) B&EHERE

AEBREZHDEBRAEMEZ T FHE
KEHEmEMALSEREAE - BED
AaAESEERE  REEZREEMNES
BWERINT

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—MNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Amounts payable JE T 3R IE
— Within one year —— &R 12,708 24,263
— Within two to five years —MEERFNRN 4,610 12,890
— After five years —hF1& 35,485 37,685
52,803 74,838
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) Future minimum rental receivable

The Group leased out certain properties under operating leases.
The future minimum rental receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases is as follows:

36

Br o B 5 e 2 B RE ()

AE @)

(c) "RRZEEWHES
AEEBRGEEELEETYE - KB
7R B A T R R R R R %
mF -

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—MNF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

— Within one year — —F R 812,607 433,429
— Within two to five years —MEERFRN 2,434,409 1,091,996
— After five years —hF% 1,175,777 758,996
4,422,793 2,284,421

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In December 2014, the Group entered into an agreement with two
related companies, Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing Zhujiang”) and Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangdong Zhujiang”), to acquire 100% equity interest in
Tianjin Royal Garden for a total consideration of approximately
RMB440,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$554,400,000).

Beijing Zhujiang and Guangdong Zhujiang are ultimately owned by
Mr. Chu Wai Hong, son of Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the Chairman of the
Board of Directors of the Company, and brother of Ms. Chu Kut
Yung, the Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Tianjin Royal Garden owns and operates a hot spring
resort which is located in Baodi District, Tianjin, Mainland China.

On 30th June 2015 (the “completion date”), the Group completed
the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Tianjin Royal Garden for a
total consideration of approximately RMB440,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$557,944,000).

37

EBaot

RZE—WF+ZF - & E S R E
ArEldt R KR IEHERE AR AR
FHIDRERKIKERMDABRAR
(TEBRIKIL T M AR EIRT
THRIBRI00%E  BREN/BAR
#& 440,000,000 7T (48 55 1A #9554,400,000 7
JL) °

ERRIKERKIAARAESTS
FARABRAEEZTFRARREST SR
FRERZETZRARBREERKERE
B RERITRABREAREE @AM
A FR BOR B RO T B K [ AR R E AT o

R—ZE—RAEFXXA=Z+HBHUZEKH
BN AEBETHREBREER IS S
BRMI1I00% K E BRENAEARE
440,000,0007C ( 18 & 7 #9557,944,000 %
JL) °
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37 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 37 ¥ & 6Fwm

226

Details of the net assets acquired and excess of the fair value of net
assets of the subsidiary acquired over acquisition cost are as

FRUBEEFELRKRKBENE QR F
EERFEBHKBRAZEB ZFE

follows: (N
HK$'000
T
Purchase consideration: BERE:
Cash consideration paid (Note) BEBReREHZE) 32,731
Indebtedness assumed Fr& EE 525,213
Total purchase consideration REERE 557,944
Less: Fair value of net identifiable assets acquired & : Yt Al s B B B ) F E v A T 1E
(See below) (2 TXx) (5660,969)
Less: Exchange difference R EH E R 92
Excess of the fair value of net assets of the W B AR FEEAFERBRL
subsidiary acquired over acquisition cost UGBk AN 2 & 58 (2,933)

Note:

Cash consideration paid is denominated in Renminbi.

Recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

Wit :

ENBReRBUARBE-

BEWBABNEERMAERBEZER

assumed were as follows: ST

HK$'000
FBT
Land costs + it Bk A 253,862
Properties and equipment e PG 404,058
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 260
Other assets EmEE 13,630
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEE (61,903)
Accounts payable, accruals and other payables &~ BR 5%~ FE 5T 30 18 2 B & 1~ 3 0E (48,938)

Net identifiable assets attributable to the 100% 7K £ (B BT U B H9 100% A% 7N 4 25 FE {1
equity interest acquired by the Group Al & Bl & EFE 560,969

The revenue included in the consolidated income statement since
30th June 2015 contributed by the acquiree was HK$3,617,000.
The acquiree also contributed loss of HK$20,215,000 over the

same period.

Had the acquiree been consolidated from 1st January 2015, the
consolidated income statement would show revenues of
approximately HK$12,850,037,000 and profit for the year of

approximately HK$1,560,049,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns
approximately 54.77% to 55.01% of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31st December 2015 (2014: 54.68% to 54.77%).
The remaining shares are widely held.

The ultimate holding company is Sounda Properties Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

(@) The following significant transactions
were carried out with a related party:

Sales of Goods and Services (Note)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

38 AEALRZ

RARIHKRARAKEEZS  ERBEZZT
—hAFt+-_A=Z+—BLEFEREEH
54.77% Z=55.01% (ZZF — V04 : 54.68% =
54.77%) AR a5 - 82 TR R E A
TEZEAR -

R E H“’“Tﬁ%ﬁLE%ﬁBﬂ’AT v
KN RBRELBESEMEIHRD

(@ Ty AHE—BZEEALE
TZEERS:

HEEmKRIR® (A aE)

2015 2014
—E-RF —EF-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FET
Property management services to a related RBEF—REEEATZ
company W% B IR IR 5,694 3,569
Property design services to a related company REF—HEBAEARZ
ES ST 924 8,465
Shop and office lease services to a related RBRHEF—REEATZ
company RN =HE RS 1,430 2,475
8,048 14,509

SHAREEARAR —T-HFFHR 227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

&7 A B R B RE ()

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38

228

(a) The following significant transactions

BEALTRZ m@m

(@ THRE-—RHEEALE

were carried out with a related party: TRREERS :
(Continued) (%)
Purchase of Goods and Services (Note) BEEmEIRS (FF)
2015 2014
—E-REF —ZT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Property construction services from a related —EBEEQRIRE Y E
company PR 92,648 531,359
Property construction supervision services from —EBEEQRIRE Y E
a related company BEEERK 4,875 2,948
Electricity installation, low voltage system and —HAERRREZENRE
intelligent building system installation and % ERRREEREFESR
consultancy service on budgeting and cost ENEETEBER
control for construction work from a related BZZM i 55 58 AR 7%
company 46,814 146,753
Office lease services from a related company —HAEARRHZHAE
HER®G 9,922 3,633
Consultancy services in respect of development  —EBE R GIRE AW E
planning and sales agency service for HEERRE RBERE
commercial property projects from a related 2 JEA [ AR 7%
company = 37
Informatization and computerization related = F'EJ FAERNRIRBEZEEMER
services from a related company P {b A8 8 AR 75 12,879 43,788
167,138 728,518

Note:

This related company, Guangdong Hanjiang Construction Installation Project
Limited (“Hanjiang”), is 99% owned by the son of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the
controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company)
and brother of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of

the Company).

All the services mentioned above were charged in accordance with

the terms of the underlying agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Amounts due from/to related parties
were as follows:

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

38 AEALTRZ

m)f%/ﬁﬁEAiZn

2015 2014

—®B-EF —F—@F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Due from a joint venture Y —HEEE R A2 HE 32,031 —
Due from associates JE U Bt 2 A A 210 223
Due from related companies (Note) & UL B8 & N a) 38 (M i) 3,899 9,984
Due to an associate BT — B QR 2 RIE 6,588 6,996
Due to related companies (Note) FEREER A 8 (H 2%) 596,329 88,232
Due to joint ventures ERNE&ERRZK 3,473,505 3,112,088

As at 31st December 2015, all outstanding balances with related
companies, associates and joint ventures were denominated in
Renminbi, unsecured, non-interest bearing and without
predetermined repayment terms.

As at 31st December 2015, the Group also had accounts payable
of approximately HK$560,141,000 (2014: HK$707,658,000) due to
certain related companies (Note) in respect of property construction
(Note 19).

Note:

These related companies are owned by the son, the brother and the brother-in-
law of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and Chairman of the Board
of Directors of the Company) and brother and uncles of Ms. Chu Kut Yung (Deputy
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company).

(c) Amount due to non-controlling interests

The amount due to non-controlling interests represents
shareholders’ loans to subsidiaries from the non-controlling
interests, which are denominated in Renminbi and non-interest
bearing. The amount is not repayable within the next twelve
months. Certain portion of land has been pledged for the amount
due to non-controlling interests.

R-B—RAFE+-_A=+—8" E‘@F‘EL
Al - H‘;‘?é..-f’ AIREERAZEEBHERH A
ARBEE  EEMA - %Q&IH%EEL

RZEBE—RAE+-A=+—8 &~&H
MEEMNETEELAR(ME)WERESE
X IH 49560,141,0008 T (=& — M 4F :
707,658,0007& 7T) (M 7E19) o

ZEBBERARRAKELE (KD AERKRRE
EEeIR)ZATF RERKRARRAEHRL L
(ARRAIEFGRIRIZAR BRXRBELHES
Z AT e

(c) ENFERMERS KR

F& 1< FE 438 I 145 4 25 2 SRR 5 IR 12 I M
mAMBRRMEL ZBRER  BREFKIA
BAARBFERRE - BAFKELFR
ARE+=EA W%%ﬁoﬁﬂ"iimaﬁﬁﬁgﬁ
RIS KR -
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 38 BEZE A X Z (&
(d) Key management compensation: d FEEEE RN :
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and allowances e RERL 16,766 11,177
Pension costs SR NS DN 588 356
17,354 11,533
(e) Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang ) AATDEBGEERE MK
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of SEMBBEELRIEM
Directors of the Company, to the Group ERERARAMOAEEEL
in relation to the acquisition of Panyu 2 A

230

Zhujiang Real Estate Limited

In March 2010, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
interest in Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Limited (“Panyu Zhujiang”)
from Hanjiang.

Panyu Zhuijiang possesses the right to develop a piece of land in
Panyu District, Guangdong, Mainland China. Hanjiang agreed to
perform and complete all necessary demolition and preparation
work to obtain the land use right certificate at its own expense. In
relation to the Group’s acquisition of Panyu Zhujiang, Mr. Chu
Mang Yee has undertaken to the Group to guarantee the due and
punctual performance by Hanjiang of its obligations in relation to
the land (subject to a maximum amount of RMB3,600 million). As
at 31st December 2015, Hanjiang was in the process of applying
the land use right.

(f) Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company, to the Group
in relation to acquisition of Believe Best
Investment Limited

In 2007, the Group completed the acquisition of 80% of the issued
share capital of Believe Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best”)
from Mr. Chu Mang Yee. Believe Best has, through its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary (the project company), a piece of land for
property development in Chaoyang District, Beijing, Mainland China
(known as the “Jing Run Project”).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(f) Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company, to the Group
in relation to acquisition of Believe Best
Investment Limited (continued)

In relation to the Group’s interest in the Jing Run Project (through
its 80% interest in Believe Best), Mr. Chu Mang Yee, has (i) fully
guaranteed the bank loans which were used by the project
company for the demolition and relocation of the extra public
greenfield site peripheral to the Jing Run Project at the request of
the local government; and (i) undertaken to the Group to be
responsible for the excess amount, if any, being the difference in
the unit cost per square metre (including the demolition and
relocation fees for the extra public greenfield site and the land
transfer fees as compared with the original agreed valuation price
of Jing Run Project) for the gross floor area to be developed,
payable by the project company in respect of any increase in plot
ratio as the government may approve. The demolition and
relocation work on the extra public greenfield is ongoing and related
costs of approximately RMB1,493 million had been incurred by the
Group up to 31st December 2015 (2014: RMB1,493 million). Such
additional costs may be compensated by an increase in plot ratio
for the Jing Run Project, although government approval for increase
in plot ratio is pending.

(g9) Acquisition of Sun Excel Investments
Limited

On 3rd November 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with
Farrich Investments Limited (“Farrich”), a related company, to acquire
100% equity interests in Sun Excel Investments Limited (“Sun Excel”)
at a total consideration of RMB6,605,066,000. The consideration
would be satisfied by () cash of RMB2,313,787,000, and (i) the
issuance of 523,247,000 shares of the Company for
RMB4,291,279,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,387,332,000),
on the basis that the construction will be fully completed by Farrich at
its own cost.

The sole asset of Sun Excel is its 100% interests in Beijing
Chuanghe Fengwei Real Property Development Co. Limited (formerly
known as Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Technology Investment and
Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co A”) and Beijing
Shengchuang Hengda Real Property Development Co. Limited
(formerly known as Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Technology
Investment and Management Co. Limited) (“Project Co D”). Project
Co A and Project Co D hold the land use rights of a piece of land in
Tongzhou District, Beijing, Mainland China (the “Project”).

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

() XAXFAEESEFEREMK
TERBBEERERR
DA [ A KB AE 2 A
(%)

REBASERNRBEE 2 E=(BBE
MEEZ80% %) T KM TELE)
FHERBEAREEHBN ZER 3
REEBAEEN B L ZFE
MA AR B 2 BITE R K i) M) A & E &
o S HBUAT BLSERK BE AN A A AR b - i
ZIFEMGMPE 2 BEE  MEBFLHK
ZEMRAN(BERABEERAZTEL
HEAB BN EZI I I FER
ARITHERERE) SRERAZT2HE -
RAKEERESNZIEE A AaAJRE
HEBL ceE(E) BINSAZILT
W2 FEBIEERETY  MASERE
E_ET—HF+_A=+—HEE4LHD
A R #1,493,000,0007C (ZZ — M 4F : A
R #1,493,000,0007T ) Z #8 B8 5K X - 58 Hh
A ERIEMABEE 2ABEERFMU
WE - AMBARARELIBNEREE 24
) ©

() WBHERERRAT

R-ZZE—ZF+—A=ZH A5EEHEH—
MEEQAREEREAEARAATEESE))
RIS Wk - LB R E A R 6,605,066,000
TWEBBABEREER2AR(RED Z
100% A% &~ # &= K B # U@)E € A
K #¥2,313,787,0007C © K(i)gt A R &
4,291,279,000 7t ( 48 & 1 495,387,332,000
7 T ) 3 17523,247 000 % A A 7 B 19 B9 77
ANEZF U ENDEREEBTAEREST
e B -

BEM-—WNEEAERLEREAAGLEE
WEMZEESR AR (FELRAEZHE
FIREEEBERAR)(EBRARAD K
tRRAEERMERE AR A A (A
BUARRABENBREEEARAR)
(T8 B AFID)) H100%# 25 - T B X @A
LIEH RRID#E A H B A 2B MNER
— Bz L ERAE(ER] -
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38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

232

(g) Acquisition of Sun Excel Investments
Limited (continued)

The acquisition of Sun Excel was completed in October 2013 and
523,247,000 shares were issued by the Company. As at 31st
December 2015, cash consideration of RMB465,221,000 (31st
December 2014: RMB158,750,000) out of the total cash
consideration of RMB2,313,787,000 were paid, representing the
amount of construction work completed by Farrich. The acquisition
costs paid were recognised as investment properties under
development and prepayments for construction work (Note 15(ii)).

(h) Disposals of land use rights to Mr. Chu
Mang Yee, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of the Company

In May 2012, the Group entered into agreements to dispose of its
land use rights of two pieces of land in Panyu District, Guangdong,
Mainland China and Baodi District, Tianjin, Mainland China to Mr.
Chu Mang Yee, for considerations of RMB29,258,305 and
RMB2,500,000, respectively.

The transactions have not yet been completed as at 31st
December 2015. It is expected that the Group will recognise gain
on disposals, net of tax, of approximately RMB9,834,000 upon
completion of the transactions.

(i) Acquisition of Tianjin Royal Garden Hot
Spring Development Co., Lid.

As detailed in Note 37, the acquisition of Tianjin Royal Garden was

completed in June 2015.

(i) Acquisition of Guangdong Zhongfu Real
Estate Investment Co., Ltd.

As detailed in Note 34, the acquisition of Guangdong Zhongfu was
completed in February 2015.

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015

38 EE

A:t/\% 1=
(9) WIBREREARA T @

WEBEER-ZE—=F+tAXZKAR
KN BB % 17523,247,0000% Bz 19 & &=
—E-AE+_-_A=+—HHEBELR
8 &£ A R #2313,787,000 T F H) A R #&
465,221,000 (ZE—mWE+ =R =+—
H: AR#158,750,0007T)H &K B2 &
T CAEREERRZEETIREE -
NEEXNAEERAZREFREDER
2% T2 2 A 5138 (Bt sE 15(i) °

(h IXRLABEEEEERD
MEEHE L bERE

>

—E—ZFRA AEEEFLHE
2 Bl A A R ¥20,2583057C & A R #&
2,500,0007C fE AR E » MK FmAK L EH
EEMRATREAREERFESERFEKX
B R EE IR A MR T £ A o

R-ZZE—RHF+_A=+—"H8 RXHEX

SERK o FA AN & B i R R 5 5 AR B fE AR

%WMW%HE@@AE%%MWO

7T|:o

(i) WEEBXEHKIFRERE
ZERD T

AN TR AR W REHRIIF =

BRER-ZB-—REANARR

() WEERHDEHERESRS
/N

WK ESA L WEERTRER
“E-RAF-_ARK-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

39 COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

39 &R F BRI T

POSITION
2015 2014
—E-5F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Asset BE
Non-current asset kEFRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZEE 20,597,658 22,155,460
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other current assets T8 1~ 3818 « 12 & & H % &)
BE 3,165 290
Cash and cash equivalents ReNREZEEY 2,303 180,842
5,468 181,132
Total assets BmEE 20,603,126 22,336,592
Equity =
Share capital A% 2 223,412 224 392
Reserves (Note) & (M) 17,954,861 17,263,411
Total equity ERBE 18,178,273 17,487,803
Liabilities af&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings TE 2,303,130 4,607,387
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FE &R I8 & H fth FE 5 5RIB 112,886 232,017
Current tax liabilities REFIEA & 8,837 9,385
121,723 241,402
Total liabilities BEHAE 2,424,853 4,848,789
Total equity and liabilities EaREEERE 20,603,126 22,336,592
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39 COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 39 A& 7 B AR R &R @)
POSITION (continued)

Note: Hiat -
Reserve movement of the Company RRAFIZHBED
Currency
Share translation Accumulated
premium differences profits/(losses) Total
2R
BHRE EMERER (&518) et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&ET FHET F&T F&T
For the year ended 31st December BEz-—Z=-R%t+=AH
2015 =Et+—HLEFE
Balance at 1st January 2015 R-_ZE—RF—HA—H
a5 15,931,098 2,235,468 (903,155) 17,263,411
Profit for the year F R — — 1,828,284 1,828,284
Currency translation differences EHER =% = (1,070,285) — (1,070,285)
Repurchase of own shares RN g ) (69,563) = 3,014 (66,549)
Balance at 31st December 2015 R-Z—R&E+_-A
=t+—RAZ&EH 15,861,535 1,165,183 928,143 17,954,861
For the year ended 31st December BE-Z-WNE+=A
2014 =St+t—ALEE
Balance at 1st January 2014 R-ZE—WFE—HF—H
2R 15,941,244 2,295,116 (349,856) 17,886,504
Loss for the year FEEIER — — (5652,804) (552,804)
Currency translation differences EHETE =58 — (59,648) — (59,648)
Repurchase of own shares fARRNE g ) (10,146) = (495) (10,641)
Balance at 31st December 2014 R-_ZT—MWFE+_A
=+—B2&E% 15,931,098 2,235,468 (908,155) 17,263,411
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

40 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st December

2015

Place of incorporation and

Br o B 5 e 2 B RE ()

40 T EKE QA

KFAR-F-RE+-A=+—-A2

TEMBRRARE:

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

B8

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
SR AR L 1t B R EBTR SEEGRE
NRERB EEERER R Aokt TEXBREBHE
Directly Indirectly
HiE GEE3
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands, US$2,000 100% — Investment holding
International Limited limited liability company 2,000t in Hong Kong
AEAIRBRERAR EBELES  BAREERF NEBIREZER
Sun Excel Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, US$2,600,001 100% — Investment holding
HERERRAT limited liability company 2,600,001 7T in Hong Kong
EBRLES AREERF REBIREZER
Addup International Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
KXEERARAT limited liability company 18T in Hong Kong
B8 BREMERF NEBIREZER
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
BEEEERAR limited liability company 2%TT in Hong Kong
EBELHE  BREMERF REBREZER
Beijing Chuanghe Fengwei Real Property Mainland China, US$13,666,625 - 100% Property development
Development Co. Limited limited liability company 13,666,625% 7T in Mainland China
ERAIE EHEMERZFRAR REIAKE - BREMERR] RRBREERY R
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate Mainland China, US$220,580,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company 220,580,0003= 7T in Mainland China
IREEHEHEREBEERAR REIARE - BREERA] NGIETPNGEE =LY E S
Beijing Hopson Longhui Restaurant Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 — 100% Restaurant management
Management Company Limited limited liability company AR #3,000,0007T in Mainland China
IREEEREEREEBERAA PEIAKE - BREMEAR] NP AREERER
Beijing Hopson Luzhou Real Estate Mainland China, RMB1,793,370,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #1,793,370,0007T in Mainland China
EREEFNEHERZARAR REIARE - BREERA] R B RREZE R
Beijing Hopson Shiguang Investment Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 = 100% Investment holding
Management Limited limited liability company AR¥3,000,0007T in Mainland China
IREERHIREEEHBRAR REIARE - EREMERA] AR BIARER & Rk
Beijing Hopson Wangjing Real Estate Mainland China, RMB364,990,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #364,990,0007T in Mainland China
ItReEERFMERZFRAR REIARE - EREERRA] R BIRREERERY %
SHEAREEERAR —TE-—AFFH
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40 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
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(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

40 TEHE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRA Bk FEXBREE DR
Directly Indirectly
HiE Sk
Beijing Hopson Xingye Real Estate Mainland China, US$31,600,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company 31,600,000 7T in Mainland China
EREEREEMEREZEFRAT HEIARE - EREMERA RPBARERERYZE
Beijing Hopson Yuijing Real Estate Mainland China, US$165,760,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company 165,760,0003 7T in Mainland China
IREERRFEHEREERAR REIARE - EREERA] R BIRREERY X
Beijing Longjia Runhe Real Estate Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C in Mainland China
tREFHEFEMERZEFRAR PEIARE - EREMERA] RRBI AR
Beijing Longyuan Shunjing Real Estate Mainland China, RMB20,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #20,000,0007T in Mainland China
ERERIEREHERZEER AR REIARE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY X
Beijing Shengchuang Hengda Real Mainland China, US$67,385,504 = 100% Property development
Property Development Co., Limited limited liability company 67,385,504 7T in Mainland China
IR BREIEEREREAR AR REIARE - EREMERA] R REZERYZE
Beijing Shengfenai Architecture Mainland China, RMB2,000,000 — 100% Architectural design
Consultant Company Limited limited liability company AR #2,000,0007T in Mainland China
I RREHEERHBAERAR REIAKE - EREERRA] P B RRER 2
Beijing Xinjingrun Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China, US$444,540,000 = 80% Property development
B EERR A limited liability company 444,540,000% T in Mainland China
REIARE - BREERA] NGRS =LY E S
Beijing Yichuang Nuoyi Investment Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
Management Company Limited limited liability company A K #10,000,0007C in Mainland China
IREAHEKREEEBRAA] REIAKE - BREMERRA] A BIRRER & R
Beijing Yihai Yinuo Investment Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 — 100% Investment holding
Management Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C in Mainland China
IREEFHITEEEBRAR REIARE - BREMERA] R B RPBEIR B 12 %
Believe Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$200 - 80% Investment holding
FEREAR AR limited liability company 20037 in Hong Kong
REELHS AREERAT NEBIREER
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40 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

40 T EKE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
AR 3L it B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEXRBREEDR
Directly Indirectly
HiE B
Chia Lung Group Company Limited Samoa, US$6,500,000 — 100% Investment holding
EREEREARAR limited liability company 6,500,000 7T in Hong Kong
EEEGRE - AREEAA REBIREER
Dalian Hopson Fubang Real Estate Mainland China, US$32,747,000 - 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company 32,747,0003<7T in Mainland China
RESEEAFHERRBERAA REIARE - EREERRA] pNGIETPNEEE =LY ES
Dalian Hopson Xingye Real Estate Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #50,000,0007C in Mainland China
NESEREEMERZEAR AR PEIARE - EREMERA R B REZERERYE
Dynawell Investment Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
B EBRAR limited liability company 10,000 7T in Hong Kong
B EREERT] NEBIREZER
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong, HK$2 ordinary = 100% Investment holding and
BEXEERAR limited liability company HK$3 non-voting property investment
BE  AREEAR deferred shares (Note) in Hong Kong
2B T EBR REBREERRIREY
SELERERE
BT R AD (M1 77)
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, US$2 = 100% Investment holding
RREXERAR limited liability company 2% in Hong Kong
EBELEE  BREERF REBREER
Grand Avenue Limited Hong Kong, HK$22,500,000 = 100% Investment holding
s B R A A limited liability company 22,500,0005% 7T in Hong Kong
BE  BREEAR REBIREER
Guangdong Esteem Property Mainland China, HK$5,000,000 - 100% Property management
Services Limited limited liability company 5,000,000/ 7T in Mainland China
BERREEMFERBERDAF REIARE - EREERRA] pNGIETPNES =Y ES
Guangdong Hopson Dijing Mainland China, US$37,500,000 = 100% Property development

Real Estate Co. Ltd.
BRAETEFMESRAR

limited liability company
REIAKE - EREMERA

37,500,000% 7T

SHAREEABRRAA

in Mainland China
RRBIAREERYZE

—T-EEFH
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(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

40 TEHE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
SR AR 3L 1t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRA Aotk FEXBREE DR
Directly Indirectly
HiE Sk
Guangdong Hopson Hongjing Mainland China, RMB200,280,000 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited limited liability company AR #200,280,0007T in Mainland China
BEREENREHERRAR FEIKRREE - GREEAA R B AR
Guangdong Hopson Lejing Mainland China, RMB44,500,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Co. Limited limited liability company AR #44,500,0007T in Mainland China
BRAELZFEHMERRAR REIARE - EREERA] R BIRREERY X
Guangdong Hopson Minghui Mainland China, RMB41,500,000 = 90% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #41,500,0007C in Mainland China
EREERERERRAR PEIARE - EREMERA] RRBI AR
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua Mainland China, RMB41,500,000 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #41,500,0007C in Mainland China
BRAEBERMERRAR REIARE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY X
Guangdong Huajing New City Mainland China, RMB93,500,018 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #93,500,0187T in Mainland China
BERESHBMEMERRAR REIARE - EREMERA] R REZERYZE
Guangdong Huanan New City Mainland China, RMB464,750,000 - 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #464,750,0007T in Mainland China
BREMTMEHEFR AR REIAKE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY %
Guangdong Huanan Real Estate Limited Mainland China, RMB48,074,420 = 70% Property development
BREREHEERAT limited liability company AR#48,074,4207C in Mainland China
REIARE - BREERA] NGRS =LY E S
Guangdong Jinan Real Estate Limited Mainland China, RMB65,084,340 - 90% Property development
EREMEWERR AR limited liability company AR #65,084,3407TC in Mainland China
REIAKE - EREMERRA] RRBRREERY X
Guangdong New Tai An Real Estate Mainland China, RMB19,100,000 = 100% Property development
Limited limited liability company AR ¥19,100,0007C in Mainland China
BRIRLEMEBR AR REIARE - BREMERA] R REZERYZE
Guangdong Zhongfu Real Estate Mainland China, RMB10,010,000 — 100% Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd. limited liability company AR #10,010,0007T in Mainland China
BRTEEMERERRAR REIREE - BREERAR A BIRRERR & PR
Guangzhou Chuangda Investment Mainland China, RMB100,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #100,000,0007T in Mainland China

EMEERERREBRAR

TEIAE - BERAEAR

Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Br o B 5 e 2 B RE ()

40 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of incorporation and

40 T EKE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEXRBREEDR
Directly Indirectly
HiE B
Guangzhou Hechuang Construction Mainland China, RMB200,000,000 = 100% Provision of construction
Company Limited limited liability company AR #200,000,0007T service in Mainland China
BMEaI TRREEBARAR REIAKE - EREMERA o B RBERR 2 S AR 7S
Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Mainland China, RMB53,550,000 — 97% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #53,550,0007C in Mainland China
BMEERZFEHMERRRAR REIARE - EREERA] R BIRREERY %
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Mainland China, RMB42,500,000 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #42,500,00070 in Mainland China
BMNEERFHEMERRAR PEIARE - EREMERA RRBIAREZERYZE
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Mainland China, RMB221,619,440 — 95% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #221,619,4407T in Mainland China
BMNEE®RSEMESRAR REIAKE - EREERRA] PR B RREERY %
Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Mainland China, RMB133,340,000 = 95% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #133,340,0007T in Mainland China
BMEEREEREERRAR REIARE - EREMERA] B REZ R
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Mainland China, RMB42,287,624 — 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #42,287,624 7T in Mainland China
BMNEEEEREERRA R REIARE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY %
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 = 100% Water supply
Water Supply Limited limited liability company AR #3,000,00070 in Mainland China
BMNEEERFKERADF] REIKEE - GREFEAR R HR B R BE itk
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Mainland China, RMB500,000 — 100% Provision of clubhouse and
Business Services Limited limited liability company AR #500,0007T residential services
EMNEEESRBERAR FEIRRE - AREMEAA in Mainland China
N B RERES R
FEmR%
Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Mainland China, RMB131,420,019 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR#131,420,0197T in Mainland China
BEMNEEREREERRAR REIARE - EREMERA] RRBAREZERYZE
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Mainland China, RMB82,040,000 — 99.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #82,040,0007T in Mainland China
BMNEERsFEERRAR REIARE - EREERRA] N B KRR %
SHEAREEERAR —TE-—AFFH
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240

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

40 TEHE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRA Aotk FEXBREE DR
Directly Indirectly
HiE Sk
Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Real Mainland China, RMB47,250,000 = 70% Property development
Estate Limited limited liability company AR #47,250,0007C in Mainland China
BMNEERmREERRAR REIARE - EREMERA RRBAREZERYZE
Guangzhou Huayue Longting Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 — 100% Restaurant management
Restaurant Limited limited liability company AR #3,000,0007T in Mainland China
EMNERRRERERER AR REIARE - EREERA] R B REEEER
Guangzhou Jiannan Property Mainland China, US$12,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company 12,000,000% 7 in Mainland China
BMNEREEERERANF PEIARE - EREMERA] RRBI AR
Guangzhou Kengding Architecture Mainland China, RMB2,000,000 — 100% Architectural design
Design Consultant Company Limited limited liability company AR #2,000,0007T in Mainland China
BMNEBRRERAEABRAR REIARE - EREERRA] P BIRRER 2
Guangzhou Nonggongshang Mainland China, RMB2,170,243 = 100% Property development
Construction and Development limited liability company AR#2,170,2437C in Mainland China
Company Limited FREIKRE - BREMEAR R B AR B
BMTEImEERRAEAR
Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao Estate Mainland China, RMB30,000,000 - 67% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #30,000,0007C in Mainland China
BMN=HEEEEGRAA REIARE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY %
Guangzhou Wanxiangying Mainland China, RMB1,000,000 = 100% Property development
Real Estate Company Limited limited liability company AR #1,000,0007T in Mainland China
BMNTEREYEERBRAR REIARE - EREMERA] R B REZE R
Guangzhou Xinchangjiang Mainland China, RMB60,000,000 — 95.5% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #60,000,0007T in Mainland China
BEMNHRIZERAEARAR REIARE - AREERRA] R BRREERY X
Guangzhou Yihui Real Estate Mainland China, RMB37,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #37,000,0007C in Mainland China
BN st EMRE AR AR REIARE - BREMERA] NGRS E S
Guangzhou Yijing Arts and Culture Mainland China, RMB500,000 — 100% Investment holding
Company Limited limited liability company AR #500,0007T in Mainland China

BEMNHES X EMERBRAR

TEARE  ERATAR
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DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

Place of incorporation and

40 T EKE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
AR 3L it B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEXRBREEDR
Directly Indirectly
HiE B
Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate Mainland China, RMB43,800,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #43,800,0007T in Mainland China
BMEREMERZEARAR REIAKE - EREMERA RPBIARREERYZE
Guangzhou Yisheng Real Estate Mainland China, RMB52,500,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #52,500,0007C in Mainland China
BT s R EIER AR AR REKREE - GREFEAR RRBIARREERYZE
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodu Mainland China, RMB535,500,000 — 99.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited limited liability company AR #535,500,0007T in Mainland China
BN IEEE EGR AR REIKREE - BREERAA RRBIRREERYZE
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate Mainland China, US$2,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company 2,000,000 7T in Mainland China
BMEZILEEEGR AR REIARE - EREERRA] NRBAREERY R
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong, HK$2 ordinary — 100% Investment holding
BEKEERAR limited liability company HK$10,000 non-voting in Hong Kong
A - BREMERAA deferred shares (Note) REBR AR
BT EBAR
10,000 7T 1% =4
BIER D (M 7E)
Hopson (Guangzhou) Industries Mainland China, US$4,830,000 — 100% Property development
Limited limited liability company 4,830,000 7T in Mainland China
AE(BEMEEERAR REIAKE - EREERRA] R B KRR R Y
Hopson Development (Consultants) British Virgin Islands, US$2 = 100% Provision of property design
Limited limited liability company 2T and advisory services in
SHBIRE(BEM)BRAR EBEZES  BREMAR Hong Kong
REBREYERAR
R RS
Hopson Development (Properties) Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100% Property investment
Limited limited liability company 10,0008 7T in Hong Kong
AHAREXARAR BE - EREMERTA REBIREME
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$1 = 100% Investment holding
EEFBEHERRAR limited liability company IESH in Hong Kong
EBRUHES BREERF REBIREZER
Huidong Zhongfu Real Estate Co., Ltd. Mainland China, RMB42,186,475.63 = 100% Property development
BRPEEEARAA limited liability company AR ¥42,186,475.637C in Mainland China
RREIAKE - EREMERA RRBARREERYZE
EHEEEEBERAR T —HEFH
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(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

40 TEHE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRA Bk FEXBREE DR
Directly Indirectly
HiE Sk
Huizhou Daya Bay New Coastal Mainland China, RMB100,000,000 = 60% Property investment
City Development and Investment Co.  limited liability company AR #100,000,0007C in Mainland China
Ltd. REIAKE - EREMERA] R BIARRER &Y
BINAREEEFE M ERIRE
BRATA]
Huizhou Haolong Industrial Development Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property investment
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C in Mainland China
BMTRREEERARARA] REIRRE - EREERA] B RBEIR B2
Huizhou Hopson Xinneng Mainland China, HK$50,000,000 = 100% Property development
Properties Limited limited liability company 50,000,000 7T in Mainland China
BMNTEEGREEARAR REIAKE - EREMERA RRBARREZERYSE
Huizhou Yapai Real Estate Mainland China, RMB250,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #250,000,0007T in Mainland China
BN EREESR AR REIARE - EREERA] R B KRR R
Huizhou Yaxin Real Estate Mainland China, RMB119,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #119,000,0007T in Mainland China
BN ERHEHERR AT REIARE - EREMERA RRBARERRYZE
Ji Run Property Investments Limited Hong Kong, HK$1,000,000 = 80% Investment holding
HHEFERERRAA limited liability company 1,000,0005 7T in Hong Kong
BE  EREERR] NEBREE
Karworld Holdings Limited Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100% Investment holding
EMEBERAR limited liability company 10,000/ 7T in Hong Kong
B EREERRA REBIREZER
Kunshan Hopson Property Development  Mainland China, RMB200,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #200,000,0007T in Mainland China
Bl EFMERBEFRAR REIARE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY %
Malaysian Teoghew Industrial Estate Mainland China, HK$25,000,000 = 55% Property development
Development (Guangzhou) Ltd. limited liability company 25,000,000 7T in Mainland China
BB IENERARAR] REIARE - EREMERA] RRB AR
Max Clear Investments Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
GBI EABRAR limited liability company 15T in Hong Kong
BE  BREEAR NEBIREZER
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DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Place of incorporation and

Ak B S 285 A% B R ()

40 T EKE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRAE Bk FEXRBREEDR
Directly Indirectly
HiE B
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, UsS$2 = 100% Investment holding
HIBEEERAR limited liability company 2% in Hong Kong
RBRUHES  BRAEERF REBIREZER
Ningbo Hopson Ci City Leisure Mainland China, US$10,000,000 - 100% Property development
Sports Company Limited limited liability company 10,000,0003 7T in Mainland China
ERAF MRS R REIKRE - EREERRA] pNGIEPNEEE =LY ES
BIRAR
Ningbo Hopson Kam City Real Mainland China, RMB150,000,000 = 100% Property development
Estate Company Limited limited liability company AR #150,000,0007T in Mainland China
ERESERUMEESR AR RREIAKE - EREMERA ENGIETPNGE =LY E S
Ningbo Hopson Ming City Real Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 - 100% Property development
Estate Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007T in Mainland China
EREEBHEERRAR] REIARE - EREERRA] pNGIETPNEEE =LY ES
Ningbo Hopson Real Estate Mainland China, RMB220,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #220,000,0007T in Mainland China
ERAEAREESRAR PEIAKE - EREMERA] NPT =LY E S
Outward Expanse Investments British Virgin Islands, US$2 — 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company 2T in Hong Kong
BAIREARRRAR] EBELES  BAREERF NEBIREZER
Panyu Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China, RMB100,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR ¥100,000,0007T in Mainland China
EBWIFEMERRAR REIARE - EREMERA] B RBEE R
Plaza Royale Water Palace Mainland China, RMB72,000,000 — 70% Hotel operation
Convention Hotel Tianjin limited liability company AR #72,000,0007T in Mainland China
Co. Limited HEREE - BREEAR pNGIEPNEF Tl
REFRBRBEERAAF
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, UsS$2 = 100% Investment holding
HEEEBRAR limited liability company PE in Hong Kong
EBRLHES BREERF REBIREZER
Prestige Dragon Development Hong Kong, HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
Limited limited liability company 10,000/ 7T in Hong Kong
BEEREBR AR BE  BREEAR NEBREZER

SHAREEARAR —E-AFFRH
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(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRA Bk FEXBREE DR
Directly Indirectly
HiE Sk
Right Strong International Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 = 100% Investment holding
SEEBIR B R A A limited liability company 18T in Hong Kong
B BEREAERR REBIREZER
Shanghai Anxu Warehousing Mainland China, RMB500,000 = 100% Warehouse
Company Limited limited liability company AR #500,0007TC in Mainland China
PEREEREARAR REIARE - EREERA] pNGlE PNER=
Shanghai Dazhan Investment Mainland China, RMB3,050,000,000 = 100% Property development
Management Company Limited limited liability company AR #3,050,000,0007T in Mainland China
LERERREEEARAA PEIARE - EREMERA] RRBI AR
Shanghai Fanmei Architecture Mainland China, RMB?2,000,000 = 100% Architectural design
Design Company Limited limited liability company AR #2,000,0007T in Mainland China
BRRRERBRAA] REIARE - EREERRA] A BIRRER A2
Shanghai Hechuang Linhai Property Mainland China, RMB900,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR ¥900,000,0007T in Mainland China
EEERIREFERZARAR REIARE - EREMERA] R REZERYZE
Shanghai Hopson Jinting Real Estate Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #50,000,0007C in Mainland China
A RERMERBEERAR REIAKE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY %
Shanghai Hopson Property Development Mainland China, US$59,900,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company 59,900,000 7T in Mainland China
ERERMEREARAR] REIARE - BREMERA] B REZ R
Shanghai Hopson Sanlin Real Estate Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR #50,000,0007C in Mainland China
LEEE=BFEEREZFRAR REIAKE - BREMERRA] RRBRREERY X
Shanghai Longjia Properties Limited Mainland China, RMB?20,000,000 = 100% Property development
FEEEEEARAA limited liability company AR #20,000,0007T in Mainland China
REIARE - BREMERA] R REZERYZE
Shanghai Longmeng Real Estate Mainland China, US$44,370,000 - 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company 44,370,000 7T in Mainland China
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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40 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

40 T EKE QA

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEXRBREEDR
Directly Indirectly
HiE B
Shanghai Sanxiang Real Estate Mainland China, US$8,000,000 = 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company 8,000,000 7T in Mainland China
PE=REEERBERAT REIAKE - EREMERA RPBIARREERYZE
Shanghai Shangshi Haiyun Properties Mainland China, RMB800,000,000 - 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #800,000,0007T in Mainland China
B FESEEEERAF REIARE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY %
Shanghai Tongzhen Investment and Mainland China, RMB5,000,000 = 100% Property development
Consultant Company Limited limited liability company AR #5,000,0007C in Mainland China
ERIRREEAGRAF PEIARE - EREMERA RRBIAREZERYZE
Shanghai Yutai Real Estate Development Mainland China, RMB400,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #400,000,0007T in Mainland China
FEHRFEMERRARAR REIAKE - EREERRA] PR B RREERY %
Shanghai Zeyu Properties Limited Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property development
EERFEERRAA limited liability company AR #50,000,0007T in Mainland China
REIAKE - EREMERARF] B REZE R
Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate Mainland China, RMB50,000,000 — 100% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #50,000,0007C in Mainland China
EBIEEEHEGRAR REIARE - EREERRA] R BIRREERY %
Shanxi Hopson Dijing Construction Mainland China, RMB956,865,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #956,865,0007T in Mainland China
IS ETRERARAR] REIKEE - BREFEAR B RREZE R
Shanxi Hopson Jiashi Investment Mainland China, RMB30,000,000 - 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company A K #30,000,0007C in Mainland China
ISR EREARAR PEIAKE - EREMEARR] RRBRREERERY %
Shine Wealth Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands, US$1 = 100% Provision of consultancy
e EEAR AR limited liability company 1%E7T in Hong Kong
EBRELHE BREMERF B SRR AR TS
Size Up Investments Limited Hong Kong, HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
BEEBRAR limited liability company 1587 in Hong Kong
B BREMERA NEBIREZER
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, us$2 = 100% Investment holding
SEBEFRARA limited liability company 2% in Hong Kong

HBRAHS  AREEAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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40 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

246

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

40 TEME L

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

EXRC D)

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRA Aotk FEXBREE DR
Directly Indirectly
HiE Sk
Suizhong Haisheng Tourism Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 - 51% Property development
Development Corporation limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C in Mainland China
ZHBRIRNEE XBERBRAR HEIARE - EREMERA RPBAREZERYZE
Sun Advance Investments Limited British Virgin Islands, Us$1 = 100% Investment holding
REREBR AR limited liability company 1%E5T in Hong Kong
EBELES  BAREERF NEBREE
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, UsS$2 = 100% Investment holding
T EEBRAR limited liability company 2% in Hong Kong
EBRUHES BREERF REBIREZER
Suzhou Ruiyin Properties Limited Mainland China, RMB480,000,000 — 100% Property development
N REE AR AR limited liability company AR #480,000,0007T in Mainland China
HEREE - BREEAR R BIRREERY %
Tianjin Babo Real Estate Development Mainland China, RMB?30,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company A R #30,000,0007C in Mainland China
KEMEIGEHEREFRAT REIARE - EREMERA] R REZERYZE
Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Estate Mainland China, RMB375,826,000 — 98.9% Property development
Development Company limited liability company AR ¥375,826,0007T in Mainland China
REGEBSEHEREARAA REIAKE - EREERRA] PR B RRE R
Tianjin Hopson Environmental Protection  Mainland China, US$500,000 = 75% Research and development
and Energy Saving Technology limited liability company 500,000% 7T of environmental
Development Company Limited FEARE - BREEAA technology and product
REESERREOERMAEBR AT in Mainland China
R BARER T RFAER
PRANT R E
Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate Mainland China, RMB280,000,000 — 92.3% Property development
Development Limited limited liability company AR 280,000,000 in Mainland China
REGEWIEHERBERAR FEIKEE - BREFEAR PR BIRRER R
Tianjin Jade Buddha Temple Museum Mainland China, RMB200,000 = 100% Museum operation
Management Company Limited limited liability company AR #200,0007T in Mainland China

REMEEREHESENRLCEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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40 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40 T ENEB R RFHE @

(Continued)

Place of incorporation and

Percentage of equity

Issued and fully interest attributable to

Principal activities and

Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
E AR S 4t B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRAE Aotk FEXRBREEDR
Directly Indirectly
HiE B
Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design Mainland China, RMB3,000,000 = 100% Architectural design
Company Limited limited liability company AR #3,000,0007T in Mainland China
RAEEFRERFERADF REIAKE - EREMERA ENGIETPNGS G e
Tianjin Ruiwan Investment and Mainland China, RMB115,000,000 - 90% Property development
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #115,000,0007T in Mainland China
REWEREFERBRAA] REIARE - EREERRA] pNGIETPNEEE =LY ES
Tianjin Royal Garden Hot Spring Mainland China, RMB?20,000,000 = 100% Hotel operation
Development Company Limited limited liability company AR #20,000,0007T in Mainland China
RERIFRRRFAEBERDF] REIKEE - GREFEAR O B R BEAT & B IR
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands, USs$2 — 100% Investment holding
HREBEARAR limited liability company VEI in Hong Kong
EBELES  BREERF NEBIREZER
Trisum Investment Limited Hong Kong, HK$5,000,000 = 100% Investment holding
BRI EBRAR] limited liability company 5,000,0005% 7T in Hong Kong
B - EREMERF REBIREZER
Value-Added Guangzhou Limited Mainland China, RMB8,000,000 - 70% Property development
EMTINEERAR limited liability company AR #8,000,0005T in Mainland China
HEREE - BREEAR R B RREERY %
Zhejiang Kehua Digital Plaza Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 95% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007C in Mainland China
AT RIS E S B R A R) REIAKE - BREMCERA] NGIETPNGE =LY E S
Zhongshan Hopson Haojing Real Estate  Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007T in Mainland China
PmEERREHERRAR REIARE - EREERRA] RRBRREERERY %
Zhongshan Hopson Hongjing Real Estate  Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,00070 in Mainland China
RIUMAEZERRIESRAR REIARE - EREMERA] R B REZERYZ
Zhongshan Hopson Xijing Real Estate Mainland China, RMB10,000,000 — 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #10,000,0007T in Mainland China
P EEERSEHERRAR REIARE - EREERRA] RRBREERYE
EHEIREBMERDAR ZT—AFFH 247
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40 DETAILS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

41

248

(Continued)

40 FEHEBQAIFE@

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation and Issued and fully interest attributable to Principal activities and
Name of company kind of legal entity paid capital the Group place of operation
AR S it B R BBTR SEELRE
ARER EEERER BRBRA Aotk FEXBREE DR
Directly Indirectly
HiE Sk
Zhongxian International Mainland China, RMB2,250,000,000 = 100% Property development
Company Limited limited liability company AR #2,250,000,0007T in Mainland China
H B ERA R AR REIARE - EREMERA RRBAREZERYZE
Note: Bt -

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not entitled to any
dividend or distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares and thereafter one-half of the assets are distributable to holders of the
non-voting deferred shares.

EREEERERD I ERZ - EEKRR
FTRABREIEEREFREZTHEIIE B I
100,000,000,000,0005& T E » Jk T L @K A
AN BEBEE, —$A DR TEREZERETRK
BEEA-

4g AK N\ =] =)
DETAILS OF ASSOCIATES N HEQFFR
Particulars of issued Place of
Name shares held incorporation Principle activities Interest held %
£ FEERTROFE SEMEIHHE FEXK s %
Beijing BHL Logistics Limited Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 25
ERREYREFERAA US$20,000,000 R B K e development
EERIII] N MEER
20,000,000% 7T
Guangdong Huasheng Cultural Registered capital of Mainland China  Operation of school 40
Development Company Limited RMBS5,000,000 FR B K e EIRER
BREEAHREERERAF MR
AR #5,000,0007T
Tianjing Jingjin Financial and Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 30
Property Investment RMB300,000,000 alCipN development
Company Limited FEAR AN VISR
RERECREFREE AR #300,000,0007T
BRATA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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42 DETAILS OF JOINT VENTURES 42 ¥ RNTAFE
Particulars of issued Place of

Name shares held incorporation Principle activities Interest held %

28 e TROFE SMRRTHH FBEK iR %

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 60.98

International Properties US$47,890,000 LN S development (Note(i))
Company Limited AR A and property (K aE(0)
IERRFXERREXBR AR 47,890,000 7T investment
MEERR
MERE
Guangzhou Diyi Dyeing Factory Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 65
Company Limited RMB82,991,973 alCipN development (Note(ii)
BINE —RERRBER AT AR AR MEER (B 72 (i)
AR#82,991,9737T
Guangzhou Dongtai Textile Registered capital of Mainland China  Property 65
Company Limited RMB28,570,000 A B K development (Note(i)
BMNREGEBEEBR AR EER TN MEER (K 3% (i)
AR #28,570,0007T

Notes: Bist:

0] The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board of (0] AEBHRABARELQNASI4%EES
Directors of the joint venture while ordinary resolutions of the joint venture A E & AIZERMARBRAEE % @
require 75% of the voting of the Board of Directors. 75% 18 %

(i) The Group is entitled to 57.14% of the voting power in the Board of iy AEBEHEEEEDRASTIMNEETSHRE
Directors of the joint ventures while ordinary resolutions of the joint BMEERRIZEBAZRREES ”S
ventures require 66.7% of the voting of the Board of Directors. 66.7% % R 1 °

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET 43 HERERSEHE

DATE

RZE—RNFE=ZA ' ARAELOREI

In March 2016, the Company redeemed all the outstanding 2018
Notes at 104.9375% of the principal amount of US$300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,325,288,000). Details of this

event are disclosed in Note 20.

NFER

A1 55 o

BHERSE

HEERLR —ZE-—HAFFHK

% AN 4 %8300,000,000% 7T #H ZF B 4
2,325,288,0007% 7T ) K 104. 9375%— =z —
o BBt EEMFER

A Bt 520
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Summary of Financial Information

Sk 285 B 1BE 22

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS SEMBARRE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—B——f% —%2--f —B-=% —mE —T-RfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT FAT FHT FAET TERT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets *RBEE
Land costs TR AR 714,967 1,528,998 1,928,700 1,869,029 1,976,377
Prepayments for acquisition of land 4z B + 3t ¥8 1+ 22 131,221 131,197 135,305 134,852 126,980
Prepayments for construction work ~ Z:R T2 278 1‘1‘ = IE — — 1,340,636 1,480,246 587,141
Properties and equipment Y MR B 3,264,839 3,435,475 4,105,363 4,060,382 3,958,050
Investment properties BEMF 16,637,473 16,535,733 22,515,040 25,474,413 = 28,935,997
Goodwill Pﬁ 2 41,245 41,237 42,528 42,386 39,912
Investments in associates g AR ZIRE 151,685 154,659 158,257 158,290 148,579
Investments in joint ventures REERAIZIRE 1,753,004 4,027,439 5,599,225 8,102,176 7,778,864
Available-for-sale financial assets A HERBEE 5,203,335 2,684,836 2,665,885 3,342,755 3,129,699
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 220,240 299,334 295,185 341,466 402,162
28,118,009 28,838,908 38,786,124 45,005,995 47,083,761
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments for acquisition of land U B + b FE 5 T IE 13,508,836 11,006,809 10,273,666 10,241,218 9,658,469
Properties under development AEREZERER
for sale S 49,064,535 54,314,252 55,122,056 50,742,439 = 49,836,168
Completed properties for sale AHEE ZBEEK
LS 11,640,241 14,407,957 21,412,298 28,277,161 25,196,674
Financial assets at fair value through 12 A F(Bi& B2
profit or loss SRR TS EE 11,456 13,552 12,146 13,607 13,101
Accounts receivable & Uit B 3R 232,940 347,695 406,179 385,076 425,296
Prepayments, deposits and other BRRE - -EE Rk
current assets Hithme & & 3,634,376 2,924,163 2,553,024 2,300,768 2,497,694
Due from a joint venture U —FE A & A B IR = = = = 32,031
Due from associates g /NG E | 31,890 31,884 32,882 223 210
Due from related companies e EERR 1 I 6,188 6,361 6,440 9,984 3,899
Pledged/charged bank deposits BER/ MERT
L2 1,030,093 1,232,929 1,189,562 1,223,534 676,049
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBLEEY 2,618,161 4,356,241 5,389,295 5,486,993 4,753,340
81,778,716 88,641,843 96,397,548 98,681,003 93,092,931
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Summary of Financial Information (continued)

% G R B ()

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (continued) %R & B 8 iR R 3% (@)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——F —T——F —T-—=F —T-NF ZE-HF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FHERT

LIABILITIES 8&
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable A EEA 5,120,006 5,137,933 7,728,568 8,746,455 7,354,186
Land cost payable FE 5 £ 3 X AR 602,612 750,732 533,335 88,832 83,092
Borrowings g 13,629,307 15,520,648 9,472,831 12,638,362 11,188,721
Deferred revenue EEWA 9,679,048 14,233,334 15,544,864 10,290,304 ~ 11,937,499
Accruals and other payables JE & RUIE K E A
JE 1 3R 2,062,465 2,762,720 2,990,449 3,184,658 8,177,798
Due to an associate R — B ARz
HIE 6,808 6,807 7,020 6,996 6,588
Due to related companies B BEDQR 2 HIE 81,704 265,210 101,939 88,232 596,329
Due to joint ventures ENEL AT ZHE 1574135 2145551 2,368,135 3,112,088 = 3,473,505
Current tax liabilities AHHIEEE 4,117,827 4,228,820 5,025,763 4,364,813 3,863,892
37,773,912 45,051,755 43,772,904 42,520,740 = 41,681,610
Non-current liabilities *kREBER
Land cost payable JRE 5t £ 3 B AR 81,481 59,651 61,418 61,212 57,638
Borrowings e & 21,718,581 21,270,578 29,900,660 36,747,468 = 35,516,944
Due to non-controlling interests JIE 1 I 120 Il 1 25
Z A 439,841 556,080 573,493 571,574 538,205
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEAE 5,816,801 5,548,087 5718011 5800566 5,863,904
28,056,704 27,434,396 36,253,582 43,180,820 41,976,691
Net assets BEFE 44,066,109 44,994.600 55,157,186 57,985,438 = 56,518,391
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable KAFIEEEE A
to the Company’s equity holders AR R 7R & R 5
Share capital & 2% 173,600 173,600 224,537 204,392 223,412
Reserves B 40,910,852 42,014,189 52,521,442 55375974 54,112,981
41,084,452 42,187,789 52,745979 55,600,366 = 54,336,393
Non-controling interests JEVE R 2,981,657 2,806,811 2,411,207 2,385,072 2,181,998
Total equity e 44,066,109 44,994,600 55,157,186 57,985,438 = 56,518,391
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Summary of Financial Information (continued)

% & R BE B ()

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS RelaEk
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—E——F 2% —T-=F _T-NFE ZB-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHT FATT FAT FATT THER
Revenues g 8,007,537 9,926,605 15,648,207 17,044,862 12,845,184
Cost of sales E=RIDN (4,329,161) (5,683,720) (9,660,856) (11,793,197)  (9,683,196)
Gross profit ES 3,678,376 4,242,885 5,987,351 5,251,665 3,161,988
Fair value gain on investment BEMERNFERE
properties 107,397 214,622 540,606 1,222,228 1,334,369
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale & 7] it HE B E E
financial assets g 25 — 1,770,414 - — -
Other gains/(losses), net Hipls,(B518)  F58 361,764 58,957 283,848 137,322 (37,481)
Selling and marketing expenses HERMSGHEEER (466,549)  (508,766)  (544,241) (383,522) (494,310)
General and administrative expenses ~ — & M 1TE & A (1,271,430) (1,357,088) (1,411,121)  (1,389,354)  (1,296,371)
Finance income B IS 29,098 35,807 31,069 65,267 96,709
Finance costs B 75 B K (238,539) (215,829 — — (79,311)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates AN (=0 /NEC]|
i A/ (B 1R) 351 3,003 (1,226) 564 (484)
Share of (loss)/profit of joint ventures D15 & & A &
(B518),/ 4 A (3,284) (154) 1,423,387 91,023 154,196
Profit before taxation B A% Al v A 2,197,184 4,248,851 6,309,673 4,995,193 2,839,305
Taxation 18 (788,773) (1,360,748) (2,475,187) (2,067,257)  (1,257,267)
Profit for the year FE&EH 1,408,411 2,888,108 3,834,486 2,927,936 1,582,038
Attributable to: JEAE
Equity holders of the Company RRARREREA 1,430,081 2,982,790 3,852,073 2,947,301 1,645,942
Non-controlling interests FE 2 M R 2 (21,620) (94,687) (17,587) (19,365) (63,904)
1,408,411 2,888,108 3,834,486 2,927,936 1,582,038
Dividends % 2 = = = — 223,020
252 Hopson Development Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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